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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

Mr. LIU Jinghong (resigned with effect from 4 May 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
(resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. BAI Tao
Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018 and
3 April 2019 as Chairperson)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
(resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. BAI Tao
Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018 and
3 April 2019 as Chairperson)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FITJ«NEVWQ/S ing /

China Qinfa Group Limited FEZZESEHRE A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\FF#

ot
I

N\

a

%

BEIEHID S &

PR

BT o

=
“T-AFOA=HEEE

@
)}
I g I

CHSEE
BNISH SR W
ofF
e

OO B
S
% | HEHE

Qﬁ@:%fﬂihﬂ:+—5@%&)
ﬁ@:% NFALAZ+—BREZT)
(BEZZE-NEHNA=H®EEEZMT)

B}
St
3
o
| HF

HF HF 0
my I
IE:
A~

T-NFMHA=HREEE)
NEFEALAZ+—HEBE)

| HF

IR #E IR
(BZF-N\FhAAZ+—BEEZE)
BARKLE
(BZE—NENA=HLEEZMT)
FHEES

= & Bt \
(BEZZE—NFMNA=ZH®BEMT

7 & % \
(BZZ-NFALAZ+—BREE)
B #EitAE

DR REF I (EFE)
(B-ZE—N\NEhA-t+—PRBEEZEFE
BT NWFHNAZAREZAARER)
B LA

(B NENA=HEEZMT)
REZEE®

= B Bt \
(BAE-Z—NFMNA=ZH®EEMT

b = & 4 -
(B=T—NFALA=-+—BRET)
q @mEE

DIRERR(ETF)
(BEZE—N\NENA=-t+—HREZTR
BT NWFHNAZHEEZERERE)
BARKLE
(BZE—NEHNA=HLEEZT)

>
ll
B
HE T

IRk

Y4 2



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— J\FF#f

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing
Mr. BAI Tao

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF

THE GROUP’S SUBSIDIARIES IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 5706, 57th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110,
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd
Jincheng Bank Co., Ltd
Bank of Dongguan Co., Ltd

STOCK CODE
00866

WEBSITE

http://www.qginfagroup.com
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110,
Cayman Islands
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities and equity for the AEBRBELEM B FENEKE  EE -
last five financial years is set out below: BEEERERBENOT
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\¥ -t ZT-R%¥ —1F —mE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR
(Note) (Note)
(W3 &) (B &)
Turnover EEH 3,652,869 3,005,671 716,187 1,414,524 6,488,279
Gross profit/(loss) R/ (£8) 390,674 686,628 36,503 (706,918)  (190,400)
Results from operating activities AT R 2,024,200 5,065,153 319,922 (7,689,352) (641,619)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEATER(BB) 1,759,082 | 4,686,441 (127,033)  (8,037,702)  (1,177,656)
Income tax (expense)/credit EREI /B2 (75,614) (962,091) (189,694) 1,105,525 (114,657)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(BR) 1,683,468 3,724,350 (316,727)  (6,932,177)  (1,292,313)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: H&H/(EE)
Equity shareholders of the KNARBEEEA
Company 1,504,509 3,158,349 (330,542) (6,011,184) (1,183,426)
Non-controlling interests R RER 178,959 566,001 13,815 (920,993) (108,887)
1,683,468 | 3724350  (316727)  (6,932,177)  (1,292,313)
Coal handling and trading volume ~ BERE&EREHE
("000 tonnes) (F ) 10,167 7,062 2,123 3,952 15,935
Note: The results of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were presented  Miif: BE-_F-—AF R _FT-—MOFEF+ _-_A =+

on a combined basis of the Group from both continuing and discontinued

operations.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

—BEFEZEBEDREHAEEZHE

BERERILEEEB 2 EE2T)-
EE-RELRESR

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+-8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

-N& —+F —ZZE-RE —hE Z—E-MNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR | ARETE ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Total assets BEHLE 9,874,769 | 10,298,242 5,662,432 5,310,782 14,881,169

Total liabilities BEAE (9,391,923)| (11,502,859) (10,583,739)  (9,940,178) (12,514,827)

Total equity/(deficit) *”A*// (B 4h) w2 5 482,846 | (1,204,617)  (4,921,307)  (4,629,396) 2,366,342
4
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of
China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
result of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

MARKET EXPANSION WITH ORDERLY
DEVELOPMENT

The Group continued to derive revenue from its core businesses including
coal production, coal sales and shipping transportation. Given the
decrease in liabilities after debt restructuring, its current financial position
was able to cope with the investment plan of production capabilities
expansion so as to acquire market share in the coal industry of China.

Looking ahead, in response to the state’s Belt and Road Initiative, the
Group will set up a branch company in Indonesia under such framework
by investing in and expanding into a number of areas including coal
mine construction technologies featuring high calorie thermal coal as
investment focus.

Adhering to its business objective of “Integrity and Diligence” for the
year, all employees of the Group will continue to strive for excellence
and equip themselves to cope with future challenges, while seizing every
opportunity under the prevailing changing market environment with a
view to generating long-term and attractive returns to its shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all shareholders,
partners and employees for their strong support to the Group over the
years. It is believed that, by capitalising on our clearly-defined business
strategies, coupled with our professional and efficient management team,
the Company’s business will continue to be on the right track.

Xu Da
Chairman
21 March 2019

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERETWE DT

The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier in
China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain, including coal
mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal in the
PRC and shipping transportation business. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group continued to focus on these business
activities and expanded its integrated coal supply chain through
upward vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2018, the coal business maintained steady and positive
growth momentum with relatively stable coal price. The Company
captured the prevailing favourable environment and expanded its
business.

Expansion of Coal Trading Business to Inner Mongolia

In the first quarter of 2018, the Company acquired Ordos Lianhang
Trading Limited and expanded its coal trading business to Inner
Mongolia, the PRC. In addition, it successfully expanded the
procurement channel in Inner Mongolia and re-sell coal to other
state-owned energy companies to achieve a highly integrated and
comprehensive coal supply chain from production, transportation to
sales. Apart from Inner Mongolia, the Company continued to procure
coal from other cities locally and abroad.

Against the backdrop of shifting state policy from “total capacity
reduction” to “structural capacity reduction and system-based
capacity optimisation”, coal supply in the PRC gradually tightened
and caused a gap in the coal supply in some cities in the PRC. The
Company seized the opportunities arising from increasing market
demand for imported coal and maintained a relatively high level of
foreign trade during the year. At the same time, leverage on the
fast growing foreign trade, the Group's market share of quality coal
capacity in the PRC was expanded.

SERTEEALNREH HRERER -
RE—BIERRKHEERE  BRERPERK -
BxEE BR TR ERERMEERR
B-BE_T-NF+_A=T—HLF
B AEBEBEIZEXBIDNEBL
tHEEBEGRRE —BUERRERESE-

EBKEDME
BE-_FT-NEFERRERTFRMHH
B-REEYRE  ARBIEEE A F &
RE -ERER-

KRREZEBREEAERS

ARARZZE-NEFEF-FTRBEFSBEZH
THITEZERAA YEEREZEK
BREFBHARET RYRABAZTNEER
BB UBELEMBBERENERRQA
EEEBHSE —RBILYxEBMERRKMH
- TAR KRR AEBRANEMET
RENTISIHERBRIK -

EERBRIBAELNEZERIBREREHE
MEER REUEEEERINWARE T B
PR R R B ok B E A B A B
MERHEELBARD - ARABBEMSY
EORKNFR LA EltAFEIE KX
RBEE-BERFERS KT AEKER
RERNIIER BENAEEEBRNEE
BKERKN TSN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Optimisation and Liabilities Reduction

After careful consideration, to maximise the interest of shareholders,
the Company sold a vessel named MV “Oriental Wise” builtin 2011 to
an independent third party in 2018 and the net proceeds amounted to
RMB112 million. The purpose of the disposal was to reduce operating
costs, effectively utilise various resources and strengthen the Group’s
cash flow with a view to achieving a sound financial position.

Debt Restructuring

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9 August
2018, the Group and a current creditor reached a loan restructuring
proposal for the repayment of the original debt.

Implementation of Financial Budget and Optimisation of
Internal Control System

During the year, the Company upgraded the accounting system and
internal information system, and established a target cost management
system. The optimised financial statements made the daily accounting
work of the management of the Company and various department
heads more convenient, while enhancing the work efficiency of
employees and the transparency of the internal governance of the
Company.

EEEWED T

BLLtEE BREAERE

KBEEZR URRNTZAREL X2
ARZE-N\FEMBLUEF=-FHE—#
—E——FEE B AMVIOriental Wisel &9
BEM IS FEIN2EARE - #EILRBESE
BERA EARMERSEERKINRA
SEReR ZREINVBRERER OB
Hy o

BEHEHA

WARBEHR -_ZT-NFNAALAZA
HE AEBRAEEANEZERER
EREREHRSE -

ETHMEEE BLABEERS

ARABIRAEEERTEFAERRANLE
HESR BUTEERKABTEREER KE
tHBMBEREREARAEEE SHME
ERTHEZEIERERFE REIR
BEHMAEIHORAKRFAREAIE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

As of 31 December 2018, the Group owned and operated five coal RZZE—-NF+_A=+—H XEE#*
mines in the PRC. The table sets forth certain information aboutthese FEI#HBE RLELAREER - T XK H 5 B &

coal mines. ZEREBEOETER-

Production Operation
Location Ownership Site area capacity status
W HEEBAISH H & LEERD EEMR

(million

(sqg. km) tonnes)

(FARE) (B 8mn)
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 4.3 1.5 Under
— Xingtao Coal Shanxi operation
EXRER-FEKE L 78 8 N B
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 2.4 0.9 Under
— Fengxi Coal Shanxi operation
EXRER-BFAKE L 78 38 B
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 2.9 0.9 Under
— Chongsheng Coal Shanxi operation
EEXHRBR-FHAKE W 78 28 EE R
Shenda Energy Xinzhou 100% 4.0 0.9 Under
- Xinglong Coal Shanxi development
o3 B IR — LR R Ly 78 T N (Temporarily
suspended)
F P (E =)
Shenda Energy Xinzhou 100% 4.1 0.9 Under
— Hongyuan Coal Shanxi operation
WERR-LTEBEKE L 7 b o EE R

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultantto A& BEZFE —FRBE LB EBEB 2 AR &
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as of 30 June 2016 in  JORCFBRIEFH R T —"F XA =+HH
accordance with the JORC code. PERFEEREERERSE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWEDN

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B xS =
Characteristics of the commercial coal produced by the Group’s A% B &) & & K AE P4 E /B E RO

operating mines are as follows: IR

Huameiao
Huameiao Huameiao Energy -
Energy - Energy - Chongsheng
Xingtao Coal Fengxi Coal Coal
EXRER- EXRgER- EXRgER-
Coal Quality Characteristic BESE PR ¥ B E SERHE
Seam [ 4 9 9
Moisture (%) J( 7 (%) 9.13-12.11% 2.07-2.90% 8.70-11.84%
Ash (%) (%) 21.07-29.94% 18.36-30.42% 21.25-23.85%
Sulfur (%) =] E}\LE(O/) 0.76-1.81% 0.31-0.84% 1.78-2.40%
Volatile Matter (%) EEY S = (%) 21.96-27.49% 19.90-29.49% 27.54-28.88%
Energy Content (Ml/kg) BHBOKEER TRr) 17.30-18.13 17.08-22.03 20.36-22.25




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED T
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OPERATING DATA 2=
Reserves and Resources HERERE
Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao Shenda Shenda
Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Total
EXRWR- EXERMR- EXRMF- WE®F-  WEER-
AR E BHAE SHEE RERE LERE @t
Reserves e
Reserves as of 1 January 2018 (Mt) HE-_T-N\&
—R-HNEE
(BEW)
- Proven reserves -DhERER 59.94 14,53 27.20 22.49 30.16 154.32
- Probable reserves - E 12.26 27.43 19.51 9.53 117 69.90
Total reserves as of 1 January 2018 HEZ_Z-N\E
(M) -f-HEAREE
(FEH) 72.20 419 46.71 32.02 31.33 22422
Less: Total raw coal production HERREEES
for the year (M1) (BEMW) (2.98) (2.48) (142)  na THERA (0.04) (6.92)
Reserves as of 31 December 2018 HZ-3-\&
(Mt) TZA=t-H
WHEEER 69.22 39.48 45.29 32.02 31.29 21730
Resources ERE
Resources as of 1 January 2018 (Mt) HE-_Z-\&
~A-RO4AE
(FEmH) 108.58 66.09 70.41 459 4178 332.82
Less: Total raw coal production HERREEES
for the year (M) (BEM) (2.98) (2.48) (142)  na T@EA (0.04) (6.92)
Resources as of 31 December 2018 BZ-B-\E
(Mt) TZA=t+-H
WERE(FEW) 105.60 63.61 68.99 45.96 41.74 325.90
10
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The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at the
abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWED T

TRITNEAKBERATIEFENEFEESE
A 8%

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-_A=+—RHLEE

2018 2017

—E-NF —ET—+tF

("000 tonnes) (000 tonnes)

Raw coal production volume EREE (F mWd) (Fmg)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal T X EEER - B 2,975 2,767
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXREER-FAKE 2,477 1,898
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXRER -S=HKEE 1,423 1,984
Shenda Energy — Hongyuan Coal iERR - REEFE 42 -
Total T 6,917 6,649

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLFE

2018 2017

—E-NEF —E—+F

("000 tonnes) ("000 tonnes)

Commercial coal production volume (Note) & ¥ /&&= & (Mt &) (F mg) (F mW&)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal EXRER - G HEE 1,934 1,798
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXRER-SAKE 1,610 1,234
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EERRE - ST B 925 1,289
Total @t 4,469 4,321

Note: Per the competent person’s report issued on 30 September 2011, 31

May 2013 and 25 July 2016, the volume of commercial coal produced by
Huameiao Energy is calculated by a yield rate of 65% raw coal.

11

B i -

BER-_Z——FAA=+H —T—=F
AA=+—-HE-_ZE-XEtA-+AHH
BAMEEBRALTRSE EXREREEN
o AR BV 65% 48 H R HE -

RN



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED T

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses

The Group's exploration, mining and development expenses consist

of the following amounts:
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R RAERRAZBER
AEENHRE REAAZERABENUT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—LF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR Tt AR®T T
Materials and consumables Y1k X OE S 69,101 85,157
Staff cost 8 T gk &~ 204,376 199,054
Other direct cost HEfHEHZEKAK 43,606 44,329
Overhead and others fEKANEM 618,075 361,264
Evaluation fee R 955 1,347
Total m st 936,113 691,151
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt % [ B8
Revenue
Year ended 31 December
BEZEt+=-BA=+—HBL=EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F i
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T 7T
Coal business BIRE 3,482,441 2,857,163
Shipping transportation fiEEE 170,428 148,508
3,652,869 3,005,671

12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Coal business

EEEWED T

Coal Handling and Trading Volume BMREBHBREKEE R
of Coal Business

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the volume of the Group’s
coal handling and trading recorded a 44% increase as compared with
2017. The coal selling prices during the year ended 31 December 2018
were in range between RMB127 per tonne and RMB597 per tonne,
which were lower when compared to the range between RMB201
per tonne and RMB650 per tonne in 2017.

The average coal selling price and the average monthly coal handling
and trading volume for each of the three years ended 31 December
2018 are set forth in the table below:

R R EK
Year ended 31 December
BE+T-_A=1t—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
‘000 tonnes '000 tonnes
T W T ma
ZE
10,167 7,062
HE-_Z-\FT+A=+—HBLFE"

A

H-_Z -+t FHAL AEENEREER
EH5EEMA4% REBEZ-_FT - N\F+=
A=+ —HLEFEANEXREEN TTM
ARBI12ITEEHARKBS7 T -2 F
—tEtENTEBMARE20MTEEMW AR
¥ 650 7T A #5 B 43 b &K -

HE2-_Z—"\F+_A=Z=+—"HILE=ZF%
EEE FHREREEERETHE AE
REERBSEHINT X

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE

2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F| ZE—+tF ZZE—RHF
Average selling price (RMB per tonne) Fi¥ & E (G M A R ) 343 405 287
Average monthly coal handlingand F¥H & AR k& & &
trading volume (‘000 tonnes) B5&(TH) 847 589 177
13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the PRC
domestic markets to customers, including power plants, cement plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in the
coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for use in the
combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat. Cement
plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production process. The
following table sets forth information regarding the Group’s revenue
from coal business by industry segment during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017:
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AEBKREEAETEBEATSRBHOKRK
RERKREETEER KEBRLRKERE
SEEEFP - AKBEFPZHURPHEL
BwE BEBMRBEARARMKREBRE
NEEZRAARBEERER  MARKE
EBRTHNIERH SRR TREIH X
SERBE_T-NFR_ZT—LtF+=
AZ+t—BLEFERTEDHBE D NWEK
EBHBWAREFR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-—HLFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF
Percentage Percentage
Revenue of revenue Revenue of revenue
ERKA 16 B A
N WHE 2L /N BB DL
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
AR TR (%) AR®ETF T (%)
Power plants ®ER 1,088,788 31.3 1,641,106 57.5
Coal traders KRB S E 2,365,204 67.9 1,115,412 39.0

Cement plants and IKOTE R Ko B Ath *

others* 28,449 0.8 100,645 3.5
Total S 3,482,441 100.0 2,857,163 100.0

* Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers.

Shipping transportation

The segment revenue for shipping transportation from external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB170.4 million
as compared with RMB148.5 million for the same period in 2017.
The Group has recorded 14.8% increase in shipping transportation
revenue principally because of increase in freight rates and charter
hire rates during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group in 2018 amounted to RMB3,262.2 million,
representing an increase of 40.7% compared with RMB2,319.0 million
in 2017. The increase was due to the increase in coal handling and
trading volume during the year of 2018.

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business segment:

EEEWED T

Ei=R-J DN

AEBR -_Z—NFHHEERLE AR
#3,262,200,0000 T B T —+F AR
2,319,000,000 7T & fM40.7% ° % 3% h0 J5 @B 7
HRCEELEBHER T — \ELMTE -

TREIHKRER DB HEKA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLFE

2018 2017

—E-NE T —+t%F

RMB million RMB million

ARBBETR ARBBETT

Cost of coal purchased SN BE B R B9 AR AN 1,450.8 898.5

Cost of coal transportation B R GE B Y K AR 745.3 621.1

Cost of self-produced coal B EE R A& 935.2 689.9

Materials, fuel, power BER e -Fh 69.1 85.1

Staff costs 8 T fk A 204.4 199.1

Depreciation and amortisation e Ky 418.0 222.3

Others H 243.7 183.4
Total cost of sales of coal business MR G D PR 4288 & R A

segment 3,131.3 2,209.5
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The Group purchases coal mainly from the PRC market. The following
table sets forth information regarding the Group’s origins of coal
based on sales volume and revenue in 2018 and 2017:
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AEETEAPEANTHEBER T
AR EHAEAR - \FR-F—
CEHMMBEERKADEZERIORZ
an

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F
Sales volume Revenue Sales volume Revenue
HE LN HE WA
‘000 tonnes RMB’000 ‘000 tonnes RMB’'000
Origins of coal B RIR ¥ W AR TR T mE AR®ET T
China F 10,112 3,469,104 6,205 2,631,073
Overseas RSN 55 13,337 857 226,090
Total FE 10,167 3,482,441 7,062 2,857,163

The Group keeps expanding the network of suppliers to ensure a
supply of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its key
PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed business relationships
with the majority of them over a period of not less than three years.
This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality coal.

Gross Profit

The Group's gross profit was RMB390.7 million during the year ended
31 December 2018 as compared with gross profit of RMB686.6 million
during the same period in 2017. Gross profit decreased mainly due
to the increase in depreciation and amortisation arising from the
reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and
coal mining rights.

AEBEETRBEERABG NERAEA
AEEEMNREHENRRME-

AEBEEFZREBARKHEREREZL
TREAFBEE BEAZHZEHER
BELZFNEBEXRBERE E<A&EHE
BETAEREENRKRHERE-

EF
HE-_ZT-NFF+A=Z+—HLEHF
B A&SEKMEMNAAK 390,700,000
LMt FRBAABENARE
686,600,000 EF TR EEH R ER Y
¥ BERERMEREREERZRESISB
EAEMITE R HIE IR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's other income,
gains and losses amounted to a net gain of RMB1,957.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately of RMB1,761.2 million, as
compared with a net gain of RMB195.8 million in 2017. The increase
in other income, gains and losses in 2018 was mainly due to the
one-off gain arising from the debt deduction. Detail of the gain
on the extinguishment of borrowings is disclosed in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increase by 16.5% to RMB60.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, as compared with RMB51.9 million in
2017. The increase in distribution expenses was due to the increase
in coal handling and trading volume during the year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s administrative
expenses amounted to RMB260.6 million, representing an increase
of 45.6%, as compared with RMB179.0 million in 2017. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost and the increase
in the rent on coal conveying station.

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s other expenses
amounted to RMB45.7 million, representing an increase of 32.6%,
as compared with RMB34.5 million in 2017. The increase was mainly
attributable to increase in penalty interests on litigation.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2018 amounted to RMB265.1
million, representing a decrease of 30%, as compared with RMB378.7
million in 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the debt restructuring
in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB1,504.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately of RMB1,653.8 million as compared
with profit of RMB3,158.3 million in the same period in 2017. The
decrease in profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was mainly attributable to decrease in reversal of impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and strives
to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital by internally generated
financial resources and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group recorded net current liabilities of RMB4,647.0 million (2017:
RMB8,852.3 million).

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial flexibility by
diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium term loans to replace
short term loans. The Group is currently negotiating with financial
institutions to renew and extend bank borrowings and consider ways
to improve the Group's working capital. As of 31 December 2018,
the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB115.7
million (2017: RMB80.3 million), representing an increase of 44.0%.

As at 31 December 2018, the total bank and other borrowings of the
Group were RMB1,987.8 million (2017: RMB6,045.9 million), which
were classified as current liabilities. As a result of the non-payment
of loan principal and interests of RMB750.4 million and RMB194.5
million respectively, borrowings amounting to RMB260.1 million
(2017: RMB1,499.8 million) due for repayment after one year which
contain a cross default clause that demands immediate repayment
when there is default in any bank loans repayment are classified as
current liabilities. The bank and other borrowings carried interest at
rates ranging from 4.35% to 7.28% (2017: 4.35% to 7.28%) per
annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB1,257.4 million (2017: RMB1,806.0 million), of which RMB1,257.4
million (2017: RMB1,806.0 million) were utilised. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, several banks assigned their bank loans due
from the Group amounting to RMB543.3 million to asset management
companies in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
except amount of RMB10.6 million in United States dollars (“USD")
and amount of RMBO0.13 million in HKD, were held in RMB. All the
Group’s bank and other borrowings were made in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as borrowings netted off sum of cash
and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits divided
by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was 44.3%
(2017: 57.9%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to debt
deduction. Detail of the gain on the extinguishment of borrowings
is disclosed in note 8.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in RMB
and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group's subsidiaries in
the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while overseas purchases are
usually denominated in USD. The Group's subsidiaries usually receive
revenue in RMB. Hence, the Directors do not consider that the Group
faces significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's assets in an aggregate amount
of RMB5,452.3 million (2017: RMB5,794.0 million) in forms of
property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights, lease prepayments,
inventories, trade and bill receivables and bank deposits were pledged
to banks for credit facilities granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for certain matters disclosed in the Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements in this announcement, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Company will focus on capacity expansion as its
work focus under the state’s policy framework of the Belt and Road
Initiative and enter the fast-growing coal market in Indonesia. Coupled
with effective marketing strategies, we expect the core businesses
of the Company such as coal business and shipping transportation
business will continue to improve in the coming year.

As to overseas coal market, the Company will set up a branch company
in Indonesia in the coming year to explore the possibility of new
development there and actively invest in the development of high
calorie thermal coal. Indonesia is currently one of the major suppliers
of the world’s thermal coal. Based on the estimates, the thermal
coal supply in Indonesia will continue to grow in the future. While
the prevailing economic conditions in Indonesia remain positive, the
Company endeavours to boost its development overseas by seeking out
opportunities on investing in local mines, acquiring quality coal mines
and exporting the techniques and management of well exploitation
with a view to enhancing the Group’s profitability.

In addition, as the production efficiency of Huameiao Energy improves
this year, the positive impact will increase the production and therefore
volume of coal production is expected to increase in the coming
year. At the same time, we will closely monitor the production costs
and step up efforts to enhance the level of safety management. We
will fully commit ourselves to achieving the coal trading volume and
production volume targets in the coming year to secure the earnings
next year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the Group has stepped up the investment in the infrastructure of
Hongyuan Coal Mine over the past two years, such mine has significantly
improved its production capacity and is targeted to gradually resume
production starting from the second half of 2019. In addition, as
Hongyuan Coal Mine and Xinglong Coal Mine are close in terms of
geographical location, the Company is in active communication with
the local government to explore the possibility of merger between
Hongyuan Coal Mine and Xinglong Coal Mine so that Xinglong Coal
Mine can capitalise on Hongyuan Coal Mine’s infrastructure in the
course of production to minimise future investment needs to build
infrastructure for Xinglong Coal Mine and further optimise the coal
production capability of the Group.

The Company expects that the operating costs will continue to
increase in the future. Accordingly, the Board will closely monitor
the human resources and other expenses of the Company. Meanwhile,
the management will endeavour to enhance the work efficiency of
various departments. Leverage on its sound financial position and
clearly-defined business strategy, the Company is well positioned
to capture the growth opportunities arising from various markets to
maximise returns for its shareholders.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Fortune Pearl International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr.
Xu Jihua, the controlling shareholder, pledged 949,000,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 38.06% of the issued
share capital of the Company, for the purpose of securing the loans
of approximately RMB2,592,463,000 as at 31 December 2018 owed
by certain subsidiaries and an associate of the Group to a creditor.
In addition, pursuant to the debt restructuring proposal, if there is
any material change in the shareholding of the Company held by
the controlling shareholder of the Company, the creditor shall have
the right to withdraw the debt reduction and the revised repayment
schedule granted to the Group. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 August 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2018, the Group employed 2,237 employees. The
Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to motivate
its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to staff members
with outstanding performance.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also subject to
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
In accordance with the relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC are required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly
social insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance.
Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong have
participated in mandatory provident fund scheme, if applicable, in
accordance with Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Moreover, as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 19
June 2009, the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme
and a post-IPO share option scheme in June 2009 to incentivise and
retain staff members who have made contribution to the success of
the Group. The Directors believe that the compensation packages
offered by the Group to its staff are competitive in comparison with
market standards and practices. The Company has terminated the
2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new Share Option Scheme
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting on 27 June 2018.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal
in the PRC and shipping transportation. The principal activities of
the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 22 of
this report and the section “Corporate Social Responsibility” on pages
73 to 75 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 87 of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account and contributed surplus are distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be made,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution comprise share premium, contributed surplus and
accumulated losses of approximately RMB104,112,000 in total (2017:
nil) as follows:
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RZE—NF+_A=+—8B  AQaq
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BREBRATHARKI04,112,0000( = F
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2018 2017

—E-NF| ZE—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT| AREFIT

Share premium B& 19 % (B 344,186 344,186
Contributed surplus S NS 658,719 658,719
Accumulated losses Z2ErEiE (898,793) (1,369,694)
104,112 (366,789)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's result for each of the five years ended 31
December 2018 and the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity as at
31 December 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are set out on page
4 of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor

any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2018 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAIl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

Mr. LIU Jinghong (resigned with effect from 4 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the
Articles shall not be taken into account in determining which particular
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, Mr. BAI
Tao and Ms. Wang Jianfei will retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 84(1) of the Articles and Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng will retire in accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles.
All retiring Directors, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in
which a Director is or was materially interested or had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 50 to 55 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which were
required (a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company

DIRECTORS" REPORT
ESEHE

EERBEITRAERKRMS - 8
AROREZFZEERAR

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H ARAE
ENERBITBRABRARR K E B EE
(EERBBEPNENEEFLBE KD
(TExRBEEMNDFEXVE) 2B - 185
Bein Rz A () IR IB & 5 R I B &6
EINFEATHERARAMEFEECMA
Hb)RELTRAKE+AELTAAE
FETRFRZG2BETH(ZRES A
BBHMARRI MBI BRmIXRBMT

REAQXT zERE

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares

of the Company (%)

EEARFAERTRE
gl = ZBAE D (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
Espns EuaMg ¥R KB %R xR
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.01 Nil
ITRRE L ExnEEAA i i
Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 45,135,251 Nil 1.81 Nil
RERE ExBEAEA i e
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 45,000,000 Nil 1.80 Nil
BEKEE EnEAAME) i i
Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned  Beneficial owner (Note 2)
with effect from 3 April 2019) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
=EBEE(B-Z—NF ExlAAME2)
mA=HBEME i i
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 3) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
285 R & & EnA AME3) i i
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Notes:

1. The beneficial interest of 45,000,000 shares includes 20,000,000 shares that
may be issued pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr.
FUNG Wai Shing under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

2. The beneficial interest represented 500,000 shares that might be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. HUANG Guosheng
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015. Due to Mr. HUANG
Guosheng’s resignation, the 500,000 options granted have lapsed on 3 April
2019.

3. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued pursuant
to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen under the
Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

* Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the Board.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF

THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FTERRREAQRAREAP Z2HES

RKR

RZE-NF+ZA=+—B T AL
(BARAEFHARSITHRABINRAEAR
Az REARODT  BERAQAR
BEAFALBEGIENBKRFEZERE
RO P AC 8% 2 #E s ROR B -

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)

HERRABREBRITRAEAZ
k4 & B BAE 2 (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholder Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
IR R % & EEME L3y KB "R KRB
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
REESXREE) EnE A i i
Interest in a controlled 1,154,000,000 Nil 46.28
corporation
REZES QR 2 Ea= i
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,154,000,000 Nil 46.28 Nil
2aEsE) EanE A i
China Minsheng Banking Beneficial owner 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil
Corp. Ltd.
PERERITRO BR E=HEAA i i
NES]!
Note: B 5E -

1. Mr. XU Jihua is a former Director who resigned on 8 December 2016. Mr. XU 1.
Jihua is interested in 100% shareholding of Fortune Pearl International Limited
(“Fortune Pearl”), which in turn is interested in 1,036,000,000 shares and
118,000,000 shares which may be allotted and issued upon full conversion
of the perpetual subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS") held directly
by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to have interests in

the shares so held by Fortune Pearl.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Share Option Scheme detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount of
HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2018, which was convertible
into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial conversion price
of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to adjustments). Assuming
the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the PSCS at
the initial conversion price, a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares
will be issued. The PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole ultimate
beneficial owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who is the father
of Mr. Xu Da and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s companies
shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant company against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or
her in the execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation
thereto pursuant to their respective Articles of Associations. Such
provisions were in force during the course of the financial year ended
31 December 2018 and remainedin force as of the date of this report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees is
based on their performance, duties and responsibilities, qualifications
and competence displayed. The Group has adopted a performance-
based rewarding system to motivate its employees and such system
is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-
end bonuses will be offered to those staff members with outstanding
performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance
and responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by companies
of comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers were as follows:
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AEBESFHEL AR FMALTHF
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EEEN

FA ARAYTERBEBREEXEMEE
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TEHEBREFR

AEETEHRERREFPAERBEEE
MzBDHLWT:

Purchases 2y R
- the largest supplier - AMERE 21.0%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate - AR EEEET 35.3%
Sales HESH
- the largest customer -HZARFE 19.1%
— five largest customers in aggregate - AREFAG 56.2%
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None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers
or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions
(other than continuing connected transactions that are exempted
under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31
December 2018:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, each member
of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus), and their
respective equity interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU
Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being the then Controlling
Shareholders of the Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered
into the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a term
of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to pay an annual
fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China Qinfa Group for the
exclusive management and operation of the coal operation business
and the inland shipping transportation business of the China Qinfa
Group, and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of the China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section headed
“Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant to the
Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company for all transactions
under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance with the
applicable announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions for the
Company were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group's business; (ii) in accordance with the terms of the
respective agreements governing such transactions on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (iii) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to
or from independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that (i)
the transactions carried out during 2018 have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group's business; (ii) the transactions
carried out during 2018 have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all
revenue generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa
Logistics; (iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been
entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure Contracts
and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group is concerned and in
the interests of the shareholders as a whole; and (iv) no dividends or
other distributions have been made by any member of China Qinfa
Group to its equity interest holders.

The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus)
and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus). Having
considered the demand for coal imported from overseas into China
and the expansion of the Group’s overseas coal operation business,
the Directors strategically planned to centralise the management and
operation of the Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets
and determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage and
operate the coal operation business in China through the establishment
of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”), a member of
Hong Kong Qinfa Group and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company in February 2008.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations with the
relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at which the Group
operated its coal business, the Directors understood that the PRC
governmental authorities did not grant Coal Operation Certificates
to foreign equity controlled companies as a matter of practice.
In addition, according to (i) Article 7 of the Regulations on the
Management of Waterway Transport of the PRC promulgated by the
State Council on 12 May 1987 and revised on 27 December 2008 and
(i) the Guidance of Foreign Investment (Amended 2007) and after the
verbal consultations with the relevant PRC governmental authorities
at Zhuhai, the Directors understood that the PRC laws and regulations
prohibited the issue of Waterway Transportation Licences to foreign
equity controlled companies. These views had been confirmed by the
PRC legal advisers of the Company.

In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and operate the
coal operation business in China, the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the Prospectus) (collectively the
“Structure Contracts”) were entered into under which all the business
activities of China Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa
Logistics and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Pursuant to
the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October 2010, 15 December
2010 and 17 December 2010, equity interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Trading Co., Ltd., Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd. and Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd have been transferred to the Group. As of 31 December
2018, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai Qinfa Trading”) and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping”) remained
controlled by the Group under the Structure Contracts. As advised by
the PRC legal advisers of the Company, foreign investment is allowed
to operate coal trading business according to the Guidance of Foreign
Investment (Amended 2017). As such, the Company proposes to
unwind the contractual arrangement of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading in due
course.
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Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009. Qinfa Logistics is entitled
to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
after deducting all relevant costs and expenses (including taxes) and
has the right to acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest
possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa Logistics a pledge over
the equity interests in equity holders for the purpose of securing
the performance of the contractual obligations under the Structure
Contracts. Any amendment to the Structure Contracts shall be subject
to the approvals of (i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the
purpose of promoting good corporate governance, the shareholders
in general meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts can
be made unless required under the Listing Rules or approved by Qinfa
Logistics in writing in advance. For details of the Structure Contracts,
please refer to the section headed “Reorganisation and the Structure
Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial results
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and economic
benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa Logistics. In addition,
all the directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
are to be nominated by Qinfa Logistics. Through its control over the
directors of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa
Logistics is able to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping so as to ensure due implementation of
the Structure Contracts. The Structure Contracts also enable Qinfa
Logistics to exercise control over and to acquire the equity interests
and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
at the lowest value and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations with an undertaking from the Controlling
Shareholders to provide to Qinfa Logistics all the consideration
received pursuant to any such acquisition. Based on the Structure
Contracts, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of
equity ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa Logistics
is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this basis, the financial position and
operating results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the Company’s subsidiaries, and
their financial position and operating results are consolidated in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The revenue and total
asset value subject to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts
amounted to approximately RMB527,219,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 and approximately RMB205,896,000 as of 31
December 2018, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and provide for
the resolution of disputes through arbitration in accordance with the
arbitration rules of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in force at that time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”)
in China. Accordingly, the Structure Contracts would be interpreted
in accordance with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally
resolved by arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration
Rules.

There are risks involved with the operation of the Group under the
Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the Directors, if the
Structure Contracts are considered to be in breach of any existing
or future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory authorities
would have broad discretion in dealing with such breach, including:

imposing economic penalties;

— discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong Qinfa
Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping;

— imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the Structure
Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping may not be able to comply;

— requiring the Group to restructure the relevant ownership
structure or operations;

— taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could
adversely affect the business of the Group; and

— revoking the business licences and/or the licences or certificates

of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and/or voiding
the Structure Contracts.

/
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The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the risk and to
ensure proper implementation of the Structure Contracts:

(a)

as part of the internal control measures, major issues arising from
implementation and performance of the Structure Contracts are
reviewed by the board of directors of Qinfa Logistics on a regular
basis which is no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;

matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at such regular
meetings which is no less frequent than on a quarterly basis; and

the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Hong
Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is no less frequent
than on a monthly basis, to the senior management of Qinfa
Logistics on the compliance and performance conditions under
the Structure Contracts and other related matters.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the contractual
arrangements under the Structure Contracts and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted, and their impact on the Group. The
Board also confirmed that save for the removal of restrictions on
foreign equity controlled companies to operate coal trading business
as disclosed above, there is no removal of restrictions that led to the
adoption of the Structure Contracts.
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On 15 March 2019, the Second Session of the 13th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") voted to
approve the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “Foreign Investment Law"”) to be implemented on 1 January
2020 which has yet to stipulate directly and clearly the regulation
and mechanism in relation to structure contracts. Nevertheless, the
future interpretation and implementation of the Foreign Investment
Law by the relevant PRC authorities may also bring uncertainties to the
corporate structure, management of subsidiaries, corporate regulation
and business operation of the Company.

The Company will pay close attention to the implementation and
possible interpretation of the Foreign Investment Law by the relevant
PRC authorities, and will engage external legal advisors and industry
consultants to provide opinions on the impact and possible solutions
to ensure timely compliance with the Foreign Investment Law by
making necessary responses and adjustments to its implementation
and interpretation.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. The related party transactions as disclosed in
note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements constituted exempt
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and accordingly, are exempted from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions
as disclosed in note 36(a), (c) and (d) to the consolidated financial
statements are not regarded as connected transactions under chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on 31
December 2012 and the Company had elected to defer distribution
payments for the year ended 31 December 2018 of HKD5,841,000
pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”) on 12 June
2009. The Company has terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and adopted a new Share Option Scheme (the “2018 Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders at the
general meeting on 27 June 2018. The principal terms of the schemes
are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
whereby 26 employees of the Group were granted the rights to
subscribe for shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise the
contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. The principal
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are substantially the same
as the terms of the Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and

(ii) the total number of shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so has been
terminated upon the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. No
share is available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options MRAMREHE BEBERXR AR EEMER
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of #E&H &I M KRITE M B K LB E R # —
this report: HIEEI T
Number of share options outstanding
HATHEBRERE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At Exercise of the
Category/Name of 1 January during 31 December price Company
Participant Date of grant 2018 the year 2018 HKD  Exercise period (%)
HEAR
i i BRTREMH
-NE i -N\F TEE BOBEI
SHEERN/MHE  REAH -B-B FRX¥% tZA=t-H Br TEH (%)
Employees 12 June 2009 7,600,000  (2,800,000) 4,800,000 126 12 June 2009 to 0.19
E& ZEEAFRATZH 11 June 2019
—ZTNF
ANATZRE
“T-NF
~AT—A
Total 7,600,000  (2,800,000) 4,800,000 0.19
&t
Notes: P &L -

1. The exercise price per share is HKD1.26 per share.

2. Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from 3 July 2009, being the listing
date of the shares on the Stock Exchange. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the option in cash.

3. Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:
(@ 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the first
anniversary of the Listing Date;
(b)  30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the second
anniversary of the Listing Date; and

() 40% of the total number of the options can be exercised from the

//exw/he third ann)}sary of the Listing Date.
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The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”.

The significant inputs into the model were:

° risk-free rate of return — 3.03% per annum;

° forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and
° forecast dividend yield = 1.50% per annum.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”, the total
fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e. 12 June 2009)
was HKD7,650,000.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair value of
options and is a common choice among various option pricing models for
assessing the fair value of options. The value of the options depends on the
valuation arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on variables.
Any changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect on the
assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of share options outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 4,800,000.

Share Option Schemes

On 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Share Option
Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from 12 June 2009. The Company has terminated the
2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted the 2018 Share Option
Scheme pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders at the
general meeting on 27 June 2018. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
from 27 June 2018. No further options can be granted pursuant to
the 2009 Share Option Scheme. Nonetheless, options granted prior
to the termination of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the 2009
Share Option Scheme. No share options had been granted under the
2018 Share Option Scheme since its adoption. The major terms of
the 2009 Share Option Scheme and the 2018 Share Option Scheme
(collectively, the “Share Option Schemes”), which are substantially
the same, are set out below.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHE

BEEXAAHAEEMERESIZEOER
%E’J’Aﬁfﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ (ZIEAERETEER]
BE -

MAZKRANETEGAER:
e BREREME-FF303%:
e  TFRBIMRMEIKIE-56%: K&
e BAKRBKZXR-TFF150% -

BETBEREINHAE"

¢/\ A+ZR)H A
47,650,000 7T °

B =8 ER
REHA ,H\H(Eﬂigg
TENERBEEARE

[THEABRETERR] D AFABERER

REmMER EZEMRFEFGERELAAED
BERBRTEEATRATAMRE - BRE
F@Hﬁﬁf“%%%??“ﬁkﬂ%ﬁﬁ

PRERERMEMEHIEEREREIAE
FEEREATE -

RZB-NF+_A=+—H0 BRAAE
Al ﬁ%ﬂxﬁéquzUIET/:.\%ﬁ48000001\ﬁﬁﬂx%
RIEATEE

iR RS 8
RZEZAF A+ B AQAEHZ
TTNFERESFE HR-_ZEZFTALFAX

A+ -ZBRFT+TFHEANERLER-R
BRER_ZE-—NFRAAZTELEHER
AELBEB-—HRBER AQ jEﬂJt:
EENFEREFEIREEN T —\F
BB AR Al - :gfﬂiﬁkﬁﬁaq

T-NERAZTtLtHABFTEHHEAR
MEER -BEE-—TOBREARE -
ZTZANFEREFERLE - AT —FF
U BB A RE ST B AR 1E AT IR RO BB AR ORE S A
EERNRAIBEB _ZTNFBEREFTEN
RATE - RN T - N\ FERETSR -
MEBRENABETERL- :%%ﬂi
BREFE N - \FERETS(HHE

(B ETE DB EZRR(MWE AR EER)

SR



DIRECTORS" REPORT
EZEHE

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable the Company
and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
share; (ii) the closing price of the shares on the date of the offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to an
employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit shall be
subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed ten
years from the date of grant. The Share Option Schemes do not specify
any minimum holding period. The acceptance of an offer must be
made within 30 days from the date of offer with a non-refundable
payment of HKD1.00.
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On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options (the
"Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new ordinary shares
of the Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to 15 eligible
participants of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise price
HKD1.50 per share (which represents the highest of (i) the closing
price of HKD1.50 per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
HKD1.392 per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO.10 per share). The Options are
valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January 2012 to 16 January
2022. None of the Grantees is a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or an associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of any of them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee
is entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(@) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16 January

2013, 40% of the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16 January
2014, 30% of the total number of Options granted to him; and

(¢) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16 January
2015, 30% of the total number of Options granted to him.
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On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options to
subscribe for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to eligible participants
of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise price HKD0.485
per share (which represents the highest of (i) the closing price of
HKDO0.485 per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD0.484
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of HKDO.10 per share). The Options are valid for
a period of 10 years from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025. Among
the total of 157,500,000 Options granted at the date of grant,
1,500,000 Options were granted to the Directors, and 156,000,000
Options were granted to eligible participants who were not directors,
chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, nor an
associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them. Among
the eligible participants of 156,000,000 Options granted, two
eligible participants with 22,000,000 Options granted to them were
subsequently appointed as Director on 12 April 2017. Among the
23,500,000 Options granted to Directors, 3,000,000 Options were
lapsed upon resignation of Directors on 4 May 2018, 21 September
2018 and 3 April 2019.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee
is entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(@) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2016,

40% of the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April 2017,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April 2018,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options B —ZZT N FBEREF S XL O E KT
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this EREE —FFBFHIINAT :
report:

Number of share options outstanding

WRITEEREHE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
At Lapsed At Exercise capital of
1 January during 31 December price  Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2018 the year 2018 HKD  period (%)
R® R® EARDH
ZE-N\§ —E-\f TEE BRTRA
SHEERN /KR R AH -B-B RER%X¥™ +=A=+t-H B ARE BRE D (%)
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing 30 April 2015 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.80
BEMREE ZZ-RfMA=TH 29/04/2025
“Z-h%
mA=+HE
bl S 3
MAZ+NH
Mr. LIU Jinghong 30 April 2015 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - 0.485  30/04/2015 to Nil
(Resigned with effect from 4 May 2018) —Z—HAFMA=1H 29/04/2025 &
AR EHE _Z-1F
(BZZ-\FHANBREMA) mA=+HE
b S 3
MAZ+NH
Independent non-executive Directors
BUkHTES
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 30 April 2015 500,000 - 500,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.02
(Resigned with effect from 3 April 2019) —E—RFMNA=1H 29/04/2025
EEBLE —Z-1F
(BZE-NERAZHEHA) MA=+HZE
“Z-n%
mMA=+A1A
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - 500,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.02
AHREE —Z-R4¥MmA=+A 29/04/2025
—T-8%
MA=+HZE
“E-n%
mMA=t+hA
Mr. XING Zhiying 30 April 2015 500,000 (500,000) - 0.485  30/04/2015 to Nil
(Resigned with effect from 21 September —Z-RAFWA=TH 29/04/2025 i
2018) =g
MEBREE MA=+HZE
(BZ2-NEAAZT-HERMT) —Z-HE
mMA=1+hA
Sub-total 23,500,000 (2,500,000) 21,000,000 0.84
bt

T S N
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BEEEWmE
Number of share options outstanding
HRITEEREHE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
At Lapsed At Exercise capital of
1 January during 31 December price  Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2018 the year 2018 HKD  period (%)
i R EALNE
ZE-0\¥ —B-N\F TEE EERTRE
SHEER/ M BREBH -B-8 RERX¥ +=A=+-H B RE BHED (%)
Employees 17 January 2012 5,187,798 (1,111,671) 4,076,127 1.50  17/01/2012 to 0.16
E& “E-_%-RATtA 16/01/2022
—E--f%
-AttRZE
—E--
—R+RHE
30 April 2015 103,000,000  (27,000,000) 76,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 3.05
—Z-R¥@A=+A 29/04/2025
—Z-nf
MA=+HZE
“Z-n%
mMAZ+NA
Sub-total 108,187,798 (28,111,671) 80,076,127 3.21
it
Total 131,687,798  (30,611,671) 101,076,127 4.05
A
Notes: B A

The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under
2009 Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial Option
Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were:

o risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

o forecast fluctuations in share price — 55.31% and 53.89% respectively; and

o forecast dividend yield — 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

AR-_ZETE——F—A++ttBE=_ZFE—HFWNA
T+ARBE-ZETNFEREFEIELOERE
MARENFEAZCHEAERETEERN ]| BT -§
AZEAHETEHAES:

|

ERRBEHRE-FFDAN1.51% K 1.64% :
o TERIRREIKIE -9 5/55.31% &%53.89% : &

e TEARBUZE-FFNAN2.11%K%0% -

A :
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Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”,
the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e.
17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively) was approximately
HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The “Binomial Option Pricing
Model” is designed to assess the fair value of options and is a common
choice among various option pricing models for assessing the fair
value of options. The value of the options depends on the valuation
arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any
changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect on the
assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of share options outstanding
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was 101,076,127. No further
options can be granted pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate number of share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2009
Share Option Scheme was 105,876,127. No share options had been
granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme since its adoption
and there was no outstanding share option under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2018. As at the date of this annual
report, the number of securities of the Company available for issue
under the 2018 Share Option Scheme was 249,341,398, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately RMB4,493.4 million. Particulars
of the bank and other borrowings are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float with at least 25% of the shares held by the
public as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business, that competes or is likely to compete (either
directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders and the
executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”) have entered
into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2009 in favour of the
Company. The Covenantors have provided the Group with written
confirmations that they and their associates (other than members of
the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-competition
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an annual
review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of non-
competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of refusals
provided by the Controlling Shareholders on their existing or future
competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Covenantors and their
respective close associates did not direct any Business Opportunity (as
defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the independent
non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on the decision
made in relation to Business Opportunity.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the Company’s
Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject to Hong Kong
stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the purchaser and
seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the consideration or, if
greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/sold or transferred
(rounded up to the nearest HKD'000). In addition, a fixed duty of
HKD5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from Hong
Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.
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Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other dispositions
of shares in the Company are exempt from Cayman Islands stamp
duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in
any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of
subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares.
It is emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription
for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
XU Da
Chairman

Guangzhou, 21 March 2019
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENREREERERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (##£), aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director
on 9 October 2014. Mr. XU is also a Chairman of the Group. Mr. XU
achieved a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU has more than 5 years
of working experience in thermal coal procurement operation from
overseas. He joined the Group as import and export manager in 2009.
Mr. XU did not hold other directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.

Mr. BAI Tao (B £), aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director
on 9 October 2014. Mr. BAl is also the chief of executive officer and
a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Board. Mr. BAl is principally responsible for the Group’s overall
management and operation. Mr. BAl graduated from Cardiff University
with a bachelor and master degree in civil engineering. Mr. BAI has
more than 5 years of working experience in construction project
management. He joined the Group as general manager of Zhuhai
Hengqgin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior to joining the Group
in 2012, Mr. BAl worked as a manager of engineering management
department in a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.
BAI did not hold other directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.
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Ms. WANG Jianfei (E87%), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 May 2008. Ms. WANG joined Qinfa Group in 2000, and
was the Chief Executive Officer of the Group during 2008 to 2015. Ms.
WANG obtained an associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles
University Foundation in consortium with Hebei Business College in
1995. Ms. WANG completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored
by the B A R K2 E g & AR EABZ L BEAFTH O (Risk Capital and
Network Economy Research Center of China Renmin University) and
Bl 13 E #5537 0 (China Enterprise Management Training Center)
in 2002. Ms. WANG has more than 15 years of enterprise management
and operation experience. Before joining the Group in 2000, Ms.
WANG worked in FIEMEBER(FEER)ER AT (COFCO Industry
(Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995 to 2000. Ms. WANG
has been a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange, since 30 November 2009. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (1), aged 49, was appointed as an
executive Director on 12 April 2017. Mr. FUNG is also the Company
Secretary and Chief Finance Officer of the Group. Mr. FUNG graduated
from University of London and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor degree in banking and finance and MBA in finance
respectively. Mr. FUNG is an associate member of each of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants with over 20 years’ experience in
finance, auditing and accounting fields. Mr. FUNG joined the Group
in 2014. Prior to joining the Group, he was the chief financial officer
of a private group since June 2010. He was the qualified accountant
and company secretary of Ko Yo Chemical (Group) Limited (previous
stock code: 8042, current stock code: 827) from February 2002 to
December 2005. Mr. FUNG was also the independent non-executive
directors of TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code: 8022) from
12 August 2008 to 11 July 2012. On 16 August 2017, Mr. FUNG was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of e-Kong Group
Limited (stock code: 524). Save as disclosed above, Mr. FUNG did not
hold any directorship in any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2/#5)K), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. LAU graduated
with a bachelor degree of science in Business Administration from
Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU
has been serving as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the financial controller of a
subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board, for over three years and had worked with an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong for five years. Mr. LAU was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Dragon Crown Group
Holdings Limited (“Dragon Crown”) on 30 November 2010. Dragon
Crown was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10
June 2011. Mr. LAU was also appointed as an Independent non-
executive Directors of SDM Group Holdings Limited (“SDM Group”)
on 26 September 2014, SDM Group was listed on GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014. From 3 September 2013 to 29
December 2014, Mr. LAU was also a non-executive director of ZMFY
Automobile Glass Services Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. On 7 May 2018, Mr. LAU was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of CTEH Inc.
(stock code:1620). Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold
any directorship in other listed companies during the last three years.
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Prof. SHA Zhenquan (A #&x#), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2018. Prof.
SHA has been a professor of the School of Business Administration of
South China University of Technology (2 I T X 2) since April 2003.
He obtained a bachelor of science degree in mathematics from East
China Normal University (22 B EM & K 22) in December 1982, a master’s
degree in engineering from South China University of Technology
(FEFIE T AE) in July 1991 and a doctor’s degree in philosophy
from City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Prof. SHA is a
member of the 12th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (TRl ARBUA T EEHZE B 2). He was
an independent director of Shenzhen Noposion Pesticide Co., Ltd
CRIIZ =S BRI AR A 7)) (stock code: 002215) from December
2009 to December 2015 and an independent director of Sincap
Group Limited (stock code: 5UN), a company listed on Singapore
Exchange from May 2012 to September 2014. He is an independent
non-executive director of Canvest Environmental Protection Group
Company Limited (B23R{RE HHE R A 7)) (stock code: 01381) which
is a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), an independent director of Donlinks International
Investment Co., Ltd. (BEMEEBIBIEERMHERRAR]) (stock code:
000893) and Letong Chemical Co., Ltd. FR/EMEEBIL TRH AR A
A]) (stock code: 002319), which are companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Prof. SHA did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies during the last three year.

Mr. JING Dacheng (8 XM), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 April 2019. Mr. JING is
a member of the Communists’ Party of the PRC and has years of
experience in public service. He was recruited by the military in 1968
and served the positions of soldier, squad leader in the army, cultural
section chief of the political department of guard force division no.4
of Hebe provincial military region, secretarial section chief and chief
of coordination section of Qinhuangdao military division. From May
1986 to June 2007, Mr. JING served as a member of district committee
and standing committee and political committee of the armed forces
division of Haigang District, Qinhuangdao, Hebe Province, CPC
Haigang District designated secretary and executive deputy district
chief of the people’s government of Haigang District and chairman of
the standing committee of the National People’s Congress in Haigang
District. He officially retired from his duties in August 2008. Mr. JING
did not hold any directorship in other listed companies during the
last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YU Tao (F3E), aged 46, is the vice president of the Group.
Mr. YU is responsible for both domestic and international shipping
business of the Group. Mr. YU has a Master degree of Maritime Law
of Dalian Maritime University, is a professional manager with rich
experiences in international shipping practice and management. Mr.
YU has worked on board of vessel and then engaged in shipping
practice and management for over 17 years. Mr. YU joined the group
in 2008 and worked as shipping manager, deputy shipping general
manager, and was appointed as shipping general manager in 2013.

Mr. BAI Lei (B5), aged 52, is the vice president of the Group,
and is principally responsible for domestic investments and financial
planning matters. He takes full charge of domestic financial operation,
development strategies and ensuring the efficient operation of
financial systems. Mr. BAl graduated from )T F4 A2 (Jiangxi University)
in 1989 with a bachelor degree of enterprise management and
subsequently obtained the qualification of accountant. Mr. BAI held
the positions on financial and finance aspects in various institutions
and had accumulated more than 20 years of working experience in
relation thereto. Mr. BAI joined the Group in 2016 when he was
appointed as the financial controller in China. He was appointed as
the vice president of the Group in 2017.

Mr. Ql Jinyuan (Z3%)R), aged 50, is the vice president of the Group,
and is principally responsible for the management and operation works
on coal mine business. Mr. QI graduated from Renmin University
of China in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree in national economic
planning and management, and obtained a master degree in business
administration from JA/dt%& Z E & (Hebei Provincial Party School) in
2003. Mr. QI has more than 20 years of experience in the field of
investment management and financial planning with specialty in
taxation planning works on financial aspect. Mr. QI was appointed
as the vice chairman of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company
Limited, a member of the Group in September 2015 and as the vice
president of the Group in February 2016.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MA Jihai (555 78), aged 51, is the general manager of coal mine
division of the Group. He is responsible for mine production policies
performance, efficiency promotion and ensuring the implementation
of regulations. Mr. MA graduated from £& L% K2 (Changchun
University of Technology) in 2013 with a bachelor degree in the major
of coal mining technology. Mr. MA has more than 20 years of working
experience in coal mine related industries. He is very familiar with
coal operation and environment, and has therefore made significant
contribution to coal mine business of the Group.

Mr. JIA Min (E[R), aged 53, is the vice president of the Group,
and is in charge of coal mine division. Mr. JIA graduated from LR
FHE K2 (Shangdong University of Science and Technology) in 2003
majoring in mining engineering, and obtained a master degree in
business administration from ®#AZ (Nankai University) in 2006.
Mr. JIA joined the Group in 2017. Before joining the Group, he has
been awarded many honorary titles such as ZBEIE R PEEFEE
(National Excellent Mine Director of Coal Enterprise), Advanced
Worker in Progress of kx5t TE&E (Coal Science and
Technology), and IEBREEFEER (Excellent Entrepreneur of
Shandong Province) for many times. Mr. JIA has more than 30 years
of experience in the production management and mining technology
in the coal industry. With outstanding working performance, he has
created many industrial records in China, Asia, and even the world.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise on accountability and transparency and
are adopted in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to
fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate governance code
of practices since the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, monitoring its operating
and financial performance, performing the corporate governance
duties and evaluating the performance of the senior management.
The Directors, individually and collectively, have to make decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided to
enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when requested.
The company secretary provides secretarial support to the Board and
ensures adherence to Board procedures and the relevant rules and
regulations which are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

/
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are managed by the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to these officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have
to obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, four of whom are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

Mr. LIU Jinghong (resigned with effect from 4 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect from 3 April 2019)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2018)
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
(appointed with effect from 21 September 2018)
Mr. JING Dacheng
(appointed with effect from 3 April 2019)

All executive Directors are responsible for implementing the business
strategies and managing the business of the Group in accordance
with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited
to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group. The Company maintains appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance.

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-executive
Directors are set out on pages 52 to 53 of this annual report. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company held an
annual general meeting and the Board held eight Board meetings,
all of which were convened in accordance with the Articles, and the
individual attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

RE,/ BEREERE
General Board
Name of Directors EEpns Meeting Meeting
BEAE ExEgeR
Ms. WANG Jianfei Falma+ 0/1 8/8
Mr. XU Da " ExA 171 8/8
Mr. BAI Tao A B4 171 8/8
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing RSB B & 1/1 8/8
Mr. LIU Jinghong B |A K E 0/0 2/2
(resigned with effect from 4 May 2018) (BZE—-N\ERAMBAEET
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =B LA 0/1 8/8
(resigned with effect from 3 April 2019) (BEZE—hAhFWOA=ZBREEMT
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen %IJ f% TR & 1/1 8/8
Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned with effect e 01 8/8
from 21 September 2018) ( —E-NFAB-_+—HBHEHMT
Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed with effect DIREHFR (B2 — N\ F 0/0 1/2
from 21 September 2018) NAEZ+—HREZMT
Mr. JING Dacheng (appointed with effect FAKEE(B_E—NLEF 0/0 0/0
from 3 April 2019) MA=H#EEZT)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
responsible for providing advice for the overall management and
strategic development and overseeing the operation of the Board.
Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director, is the Chief Executive Officer,
who is responsible for the Group’s overall management, corporate
development, strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day
operation. The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of power
and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration committee
consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAl Tao and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned on
3 April 2019), Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned on 21 September 2018),
Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed on 21 September 2018) and Mr.
JING Dacheng (appointed on 3 April 2019). Mr. HUANG Guosheng
resigned and Prof. SHA Zhenquan is appointed as chairperson of the
remuneration committee of the Board on 3 April 2019.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The remuneration committee held two meetings during 2018 to assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management
and review their remuneration. The duties of the remuneration
committee include determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management. All the
members attended the meetings.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Name of Directors EEnA HERE EREERH

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect BEERBEAE(B-_ZT—NF 2/2
from 3 April 2019) /MA=HRET

Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned with effect from MEREE(BZZE-NF 2/2
21 September 2018) NAZ+—BEET)

Mr. BAI Tao B LA 2/2

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed with effect PDIREH BB -\ F 11
from 21 September 2018) NAZ+—HRBREZME)

Mr. JING Dacheng (appointed with effect BAKEE(BEZZTE—NTF 0/0

from 3 April 2019)

MA=HEEEE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The nomination committee
consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAl Tao and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned on
3 April 2019), Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned on 21 September 2018),
Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed on 21 September 2018) and Mr.
JING Dacheng (appointed on 3 April 2019). Mr. HUANG Guosheng
resigned and Prof. SHA Zhenquan is appointed as chairperson of the
nomination committee of the Board on 3 April 2019.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board include
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory

requir?mfwd regulations/
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The nomination committee held two meetings during 2018 to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to meet the requirements of the business of the Company.
The nomination committee also evaluated the effectiveness of the
board diversity policy. All the members attended the meetings.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Name of Directors EEHR KRB BREE RS

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect BEEBLEE(BEZ_Z—NF 2/2
from 3 April 2019) /mA=HHE T

Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned with effect from MEBREE(BZZE-NF 2/2
21 September 2018) NAZ+—BEET)

Mr. BAI Tao A #EEkE 2/2

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed with effect DiIkEHE(EB T -N\F 11
from 21 September 2018) NMAZ+—HAREZMT)

Mr. JING Dacheng (appointed with effect BFAKEE(EZZT—NF 0/0
from 3 April 2019) MA=HREZT)

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years. All the independent
non-executive Directors entered into renewed appointment letters
with the Company in 2015 for a term of three years. Such term is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company formulated the nomination policy, which set out the
key selection criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
of the Company to nominate and make recommendation to the board
of directors of the Company on the appointment of directors and
re-election for directors.

(1) Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of selection
criteria when assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

(a) personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s businesses and corporate
development and strategy;

(c) willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
the duties as a director and to make required commitments;

(d) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of
an INED;

(e) the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the Company
for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the
Company's business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(f) applicable legal and regulatory requirements; and

(g) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.
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(2) Nomination Procedures

(a)

(b)

For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an additional
director to the Board, the Nomination Committee may select
and evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election
as a director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified.

For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the
Nomination Committee should also review and determine
whether the retiring director continues to meet the criteria
as set out above.

On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee
may submit the candidate’s personal profile to the Board
for consideration.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to the recommendation of a candidate to stand for election
at a general meeting.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set out
the requirements for diversity in Board members and the principles
for the selection of Directors.

(1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increased diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In planning the Board’s composition,
board diversity needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the Board
Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee reviewed
the composition of the Board and concluded that the Company had
met the diversification requirements with regard to age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. When making the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors in the future, the nomination committee will nominate new
Directors pursuant to the requirements of the board diversity policy
to achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board has the discretion to declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject
to the articles of association of the Company and all applicable laws
and regulations.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividends:

— operating and financial results;

—  cash flow position;

— working capital requirements and expenditure plan;
— interests of shareholders;

—  business conditions and strategies;

—  taxation considerations;

—  restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant laws,
rules and regulations; and

— any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any dividend unclaimed
for one year after having been declared may be invested or otherwise
made use of by the Board for the benefit of the Company until claimed.
Any dividend or bonuses unclaimed after a period of six years from the
date of declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other sums
payable on or in respect of a share in a separate account shall not
constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can
be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period or at all.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded of
their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The audit committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen,
Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned on 3 April 2019), Mr. XING Zhiying
(resigned on 21 September 2018), Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed
on 21 September 2018) and Mr. JING Dacheng (appointed on 3 April
2019). Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit committee
of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The audit committee has also monitored the integrity of the financial
statements, annual report and accounts and interim report and
reviewed significant financial reporting judgements contained therein.
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During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the
members attended the meetings.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Name of Directors EEng ERE ERERERE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2185 R & & 2/2

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (resigned with effect ERBEAE(BE-_ZT— LT 2/2
from 3 April 2019) A= HREET

Mr. XING Zhiying (resigned with effect from MEBREE(BZZE-NF 2/2
21 September 2018) NAZ+—BRET)

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (appointed with effect DIREHR (B —N\F ”n
from 21 September 2018) NAZ+—BREZMT)

Mr. JING Dacheng (appointed with effect BAKEEBEZZTE—NLF 0/0
from 3 April 2019) MA=HREZT)

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2018 and interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 to the Board for approval. The
audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company in respect of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
relevant issues as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management
and Internal control” below.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive induction
package which includes introduction on the business operations,
internal procedures and general policy of the Company and a summary
of statutory and regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing
Rules and other relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the
Directors are provided with regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also encouraged to attend both in-house
training and training provided by independent service providers.
According to the training records provided by the Directors to the
Company, each Director has confirmed that he/she has obtained
reading and training materials during the year under review and has
attended the trainings in relation to various aspects, including but not
limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules amendments
and corporate governance practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness
to safeqguard interests of the Group as a whole.

The internal audit function monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems established within
the Company and its subsidiaries for proper accounting records, and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information. The work of the
internal audit function is generally focused on identifying, monitoring
and reporting on major risks faced by the Group, including those
related to business operations, compliance with laws and regulations
and financial reporting. The review of risk management and internal
control systems is conducted on an ongoing basis by the internal
audit function. The Group has also adopted internal control policies
to manage and minimise financial and other risks, ensuring timely
and accurate preparation and reporting of financial information, and
monitoring compliance with laws by the senior management of the
Group in the performance of their duties.

/

68

China Qinfa Group Limited FEZZESEHRE A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R

EERFAAREEERRRE

AEBERMEEERHEZEAMNMNEANE
HE ETBRARAEBEE REfiE
FRh—BBEEONGE UAREZERE L
MR REMARAFEEIRNATRE
EETOBME-FRA EFTHETHRHER
SEEX®%G 2E BRREELRGEENR

HHNEHEHN REFTSBRLRZESR
BTEBE - ARATEBEEHFEARN
Bl kBB R HEEHRENZI R
BREERXTARANEILE SEF
EER RREBEFEANCEFHE NS
JEHR YELFEEBEZEBLE ZHFI-
NEBREETRREFRAE R EWHRAE
RTEMERERERNZHER -

G R S A o

BEEG2AARTARECAERALE
BEARAEAEORREEREE M
T e 5 TR 4 00 AL B IR 4RO B A B -
3 e 5T AR DA AR FRE A S D A B B R3S o

N EZREEZAREERABEZER
BREABRARRRER ZERXG IR ARE
REWMBRARAABKRL WFEEENS
AARENLRERVBERBOA FEE - R

EZBENTE—REPERS EER
ERAEEEENTIZAR BREXK

BE BTARREBRARSHERE R
MER RBEZBEFTERSTERE R
EABEERS - AEBEITE KM A B E
BERER NEERERY G REMERR -
BRESEERRLBESHHEER K&
BEXAEBEEREEEERTRSIBMERE
SR e

A



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FF R

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective systems. Management
also assists the Board in the implementation of the Group's policies,
procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced,
and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control these risks.

The Group has established an audit committee under the Board,
which has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws by the
Group’s senior management and in its daily operations, and of carrying
out investigations for suspected breaches of law. The Company
convened meetings with the audit committee periodically to discuss
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementing and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management process and
risk management report including key risks and mitigation measure, in
which it oversaw the development and implementation of the Group’s
risk management system.

The Board has reviewed the effective of systems and considered that,
for the year 31 December 2018, the risk management and internal
control system and procedures of the Group were reasonably effective
and adequate, and no material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors have also selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates, and have prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s
consolidated financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 76 to 86 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration to the
Group's external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group is set forth below:
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RMB'000

AR T 7T

Audit services % 8RR 7 2,156
Non-audit services* IEZ RS 700
Total &5t 2,856

* Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing Rules
to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate, complete
and timely basis and all other information that might have significant
impact on the decisions of shareholders and other concerned parties
in an active and timely manner. Also, the Company takes effort in
ensuring all shareholders have equal access to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and the
chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings and
results presentation, attend investor forums and respond to investors’
call-in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional investors
and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries
to keep them abreast of the Company’s business and development as
well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects the
feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and
mutually beneficial relationship with the Company’s investors.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company secretary to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, which is presently situated at Room 5706,
57th Floor, Central Plaza, No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled
at shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will
review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries
and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of corporate
social responsibility, dedicated to contributing to society through
nature preservation and helping the underprivileged. To maintain
its sustainable development momentum and become a leading
international coal operator, the Group treats its employees, customers,
the society and the natural environment ethically.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green communities.
Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the Group strives to minimise
damage to the environment while increasing production efficiency,
creating win-win outcomes for the Group and the society.

Land reclamation

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim” guidance
issued by the State Council, five coal mines of the Group (namely
Fengxi Coal Mine, Chongsheng Coal Mine, Xingtao Coal Mine,
Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine) carried out reclamation
activities for all parcels of land compromised during the course of
mine construction and production. The reclamation project focuses
on agricultural production and forest restoration according to the
principle of “using for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry as
appropriate”. The Group will spend approximately RMB355 million
on reclamation projects for the five coal mines over periods of 22,
31, 25, 30 and 30 years respectively. Throughout the process, the
Group will provide streamlined management and land protection
services, thereby allowing the land to maximise its economic, social
and ecological benefits.

Office 4R

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R"” (reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office. Under the 4R policy,
the Group’s employees replace direct paper printing with electronic
scanning and use email to transmit documents in order to reduce
the use of paper, and avoid the use of disposable products. From
time to time, the Group reminds its employees to reuse single-side
printed waste paper for printing internal documents. The Group’s
office drinking fountains also use recyclable plastic bottles. In the
future, the Group will continue to pursue the 4R policy and maintain
a green working environment.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group considers its employees to be essential for the business
success. Therefore, the Group attaches great importance to its
employees’ physical and mental health and working environment, as
well as their continuous skill development to enhance competitiveness.
Thus, the Group has formulated occupational safety guidelines and
policies for the working environment, along with related requirements
for different employees, and provides regular safety training.

Communication channels

The Group believes that work performance and learning attitudes
are affected by internal factors such as the working environment,
attitudes of co-workers and company policies. The Group therefore
adopts an open approach which encourages employees to report
their opinions to the management and provide the Group with ways
to improve our operations.

Employee benefits

The Group’s employees are an important part of its assets. This is why
employees are covered by insurance policies taken out by the Group
and receive medical benefits in addition to wages and bonuses. The
Group also holds an annual year-end party to express its gratitude
for the efforts made by the employees throughout the year and
grants outstanding performance awards to employees with especially
excellent performance.

Employee training

The Group's ability to maintain continuous development amid severe
competition depends on each employee performing their role well.
Towards this end, the Group regularly invites professionals to organise
training seminars on management, law, accounting, finance and other
corporate fields for its employees, allowing employees to keep abreast
of the latest information and making sure they have the knowledge
and skills they need to handle the demands of their jobs.
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Housing allowance

In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also offers housing
allowances to coal miners to help limit the inconvenience they may
encounter in getting to and from the workplace. This arrangement
allows them to relocate to locations near the coal mine at lower cost
to themselves, thereby saving commuting time and expense.

Safety code

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance to the safety
of coal miners at work. Workers are therefore required to comply with
the Group's strict safety code and wear appropriate safety equipment
before entering coal mines. The Group is particularly proud that the
Xingtao coal mine operated by Huameiao Energy was designated
a Grade 1 Safety Demonstration Mine by the China National Coal
Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B EERE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Qinfa
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 87 to 244, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which highlights that the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB4,647,010,000. As at 31 December 2018, the
borrowings and accrued interest amounting to an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB750,362,000 and approximately RMB194,472,000
respectively have been past due and due for immediate payment. As
at 31 December 2018, the borrowings classified as current liabilities
included certain borrowings with scheduled repayment terms over one
year amounting to approximately RMB260,100,000. In addition, as at
31 December 2018, there were several unsettled litigations against
the Group mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately as set out in note 37.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matter
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AREREBEXZEEW

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNERNNEERZSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights

ME - BERRE UK RRE#E 2R ET

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had property,
plant and equipment and coal mining rights in
relation to the coal business segment of approximately
RMB4,793,147,000 and RMB4,250,347,000 respectively,
as disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. Reversal of impairment
losses of approximately RMB108,176,000 in relation
to property, plant and equipment of the coal business
segment was recognised during the year.
R_E-NF+_A=+—H ESEHEEHRE
BRREBODBBEBEAZVDE BERIXEBOARE
4,793,147,000 7T K K& ik BB # 49 A R % 4,250,347,000
TR E M BRERMEISRI6D R KE - FR
MRAERKREBIB BB ZDE BERKEZR
BEEEREDLHARK108,176,0007T

For the purpose of management’s impairment
assessment, the recoverable amounts of the individual
assets or the cash generating units (“CGUs"), to which
the assets belonged were determined by management
based on their values in use using cash flow projections.
In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
management judgements were used to determine the key
assumptions, including projected sales quantities, unit
selling prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth rates and
discount rates, underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Accordingly, the impairment assessment of these assets
was considered to be one of most significance in the
audit and therefore determined to be a key audit matter.
REBEBEELZRENEMS BULEEXHREE
FEN(HREeELEBENDMBEENAKE BT
HEEREERRARaRERAERNKEEREEET -
RETREFNGER EEBFLEANAGUNEE =
EZRJ[ EHREACHAEENAERFENREHREE -
BRUEE BAAAR FF BRERFHEX - Bt
ZEEEZRENGEERERETRER/RREKRSE
By —HELKEETREREZEE-

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights
made by the management of the Group included:
BAMFAE ESEEEEEELNODE BELRENU
MERKBEERENGEOHREFSHE

e We assessed management’s identification of
individual assets and CGUs to test the assets for
impairment based on the Group’s accounting policies
and our understanding of the Group’s business;
BMEE ESENEARERYE E5EXER
WMTH FHEEEABYEENEASELE
e BB AHEEETRERNR

e We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management;

BMAEEEBRMERNERBEAERT A

e We assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including projected sales quantities, unit selling
prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth rates and
discount rates) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and
BABRBASHZEBERITERORE  FEE
ERX(BEEHHEE BUEE BUXNK E
M BEXRFHR)NEEBEME K

e We evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
the management in respect of the growth rates and
discount rates to assess the extent of impact on the
calculations of the value in use.
BPEEBRERFABEX T ENFLEEEMET
WBEREST UG EHEREBEEAENRE
BE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuep)

Key audit matter

HEERER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

EAREREBEXZEEW

How the matter addressed in our audit

BEMNERONMNEEZSE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables and other receivables

BREZZRERBEREBEUAREMEARENFEHNCESRE 2B ERBTMG

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade and
bills receivables and other receivables of approximately
RMB313,728,000 and RMB39,207,000 respectively,
as disclosed in notes 22 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. Impairment losses
of approximately RMB34,897,000 and RMB3,614,000
in relation to trade and bills receivables and other
receivables respectively were recognised as expense
during the year.

RZE-—NF+_A=+—H EEEHEFREKE
SREREWREIAREAMERIIED RIHARK
313,728,000 7T & A K # 39,207,000 7T 3 0 45 & Bf %
WEMT22R23DPNBEE- FRNEBEKRE 5 KA
MERZEBALEMEYRKRENREEBED LA
R # 34,897,000 & A K #3,614,000 7T # 5R & 5l X -
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Our procedures to evaluate the assessment of loss
allowance for expected credit loss on trade and bills
receivables and other receivables:

BAPTERKE ZRERERFER AL H i & WK
HNTEHGEEBRE EEREATHONEF2%E

e We obtained an understanding on the management’s
process for credit risk assessment and assessment
of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade
and bills receivables and other receivables;
BPAREBEETREERREFAHEKE ZRX
EREWREBEUAREMERRENTRBREES
BeEBEEREENAENG T &

e We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
of trade and bills receivables and other receivables
balances based on invoice date and due date as at
the end of the reporting period to the underlying
invoices; and
BPEmEEENNEBEZNRERBEHER
HEHRNINBR AAEKE S HRERENK
REUALAEMEWRIBAROREERL : &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matter

HEEXER
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AREREBEXZEEW

How the matter addressed in our audit

BEMNERONEEZSTE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables and other receivables

(CONTINUED)

ERESRERENEEUAREMGCEKRENEDCEFBZHERETGGE

The assessment process of credit risk involved high
level of estimation uncertainty and required exercise of
significant management judgement. Accordingly, the
assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses
on trade and bills receivables was considered to be a key
audit matter.
FERBROFLEEIRSERFTITEELLFTE
EREBEHERAH At ZFRWE HRENE
WEBNTEREEBR EBEREEBTIRRE L AR
EREHE-

e We assessed the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information and examining the actual losses recorded
during the current financial year and assessing
whether there was an indication of management bias
when recognising loss allowances.
BAHFAEEREENEBEREG®GMATOHAEL 7
FEEREERERVKRERAGHRABNEN 8
RARELBRBOBBNERTE FEELEBE
XREREBFLERAARNELEERNELES
AEBEREBEEAVRFEZSNEREE AR

(B

e For the collectively assessed expected credit losses,
we assessed the reasonableness of the Group's
expected credit losses models, including the model
inputs, model design, model performance for
significant portfolios.
REBHFENEREEEENS  KMFHE &
SEEHEEFRERANEYE BREERE
ABE RXART REREGHRAKRSE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuep)

Key audit matter
HREXRER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

EAREREBEXZEEW

How the matter addressed in our audit

BEMNERONMNEEZSE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings

BEEEREERSERIANFEEZME

As explained in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, there are modifications to the terms of
the Group’s borrowings which the management of
the Group had concluded that the modifications are
substantial modifications and hence has been accounted
for as extinguishment of the original borrowings and
recognition of new borrowings. The new borrowings,
considered as being the consideration paid to extinguish
the original borrowings, are measured at fair value on
extinguishment of the original borrowings with the
difference between the carrying amount of the original
borrowings derecognised and the fair value of the new
borrowings being recognised in profit or loss.

WG E M BEHREAMT28M@E EXEENEER
REEEHRT EEEEEERARLZZFEURENRX
BEHERAEARRREEEREBETRAHEER -
MEEHAREIHEEREEMNRE)RIUH
BEREERNUAAAEFE YR BEZANERMK
IERNREEEEHEENEEAABZHENEE -
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of the new
borrowings included:

BPFEENREZRFERE:

e \We obtained the settlement agreement and assessed
the appropriateness of management’s judgement on
extinguishment of original borrowings with reference
to terms and conditions of the agreement;
BPMSEEHREL S EZ D ERKEAR
AEHEREEERHEERRESE LHEBONSE L

e We reviewed the legal opinion from an external
lawyer engaged by the Group in relation to the
enforceability of the modifications to the terms of
the Group’s borrowings;

BMEN ESEZENNIEME EXEE
ERFERNAT ARG ATHEELNERER

We assessed the qualification and experiences of the
Valuer;

BHAMFEGEEMNER &R

e \We assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the valuation methodologies and key inputs
adopted by the Valuer in determining the discount
rate to be applied when determining the fair value
of the new borrowings and the fair value of the new
borrowings;
BAAGEERAERAEMEEREENHEE
ARRESMERNTREMERMNNBERE AE
NWEFEEZ AR BEzEEMERE B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matter

HEEXER
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AREREBEXZEEW

How the matter addressed in our audit

BEMNERONEEZSTE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings (CONTINUED)

BEHEEREERBBRIANHEE 2L EGE)

In determining the fair value of new borrowings to be
recognised on extinguishment of the original borrowings,
the management of the Group is required to estimate a
suitable discount rate. The management of the Group
and independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group (the “Valuer”) had taken into account key inputs
such as risk-free rate, credit spread and illiquidity spread
when determining the discount rate applied to determine
the fair value.
RETRHEERREEREERNTEBEZ AR E
K EXEEREETEAAESORR X K
EERER EEEZEBCEEHEM(GHER]D
ETRERAREEAABEZREXBEERAREA A
BENEARANX - EEZERRBLETREE-

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
recognised a gain on extinguishment of the original
borrowings of approximately RMB1,904,853,000,
as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
HE_T-N\F+_A=+T—RHLFE EFEE
BREIEEEREEN Kz AR 1,904,853,000
T MRS B RARM I8 ER -

We identified the valuation of new borrowings recognised
on extinguishment of the original borrowings as key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
the significant judgment involved by the management in
determining the fair value of the new borrowings to be
recognised.
BASBOBEEEREERERNFTEE 2B EBRA
RBARERZEE REREGHHBUESVM B RR
BERBARFINEAM RIREEBEETHEERN
BENRAAEZEKXNHE-

e We checked the accuracy of the calculation prepared
by the management for determining the fair value of
the new other borrowings; and
Mt e REETHEAMBE AR ER AR
Wt E 2 Em@E: &

e We evaluated the sufficiency of the relevant
disclosures in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards in the consolidated financial
statements.
BPBRBReMBERXNER ST ERFEM
ARENTEM -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the Group other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A HRE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
?EA%EH&)\%%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-Z—/\F+_A=+—HILFE
2018 2017
—E-NFE| ZE—+tF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
M 5T ARET | ARE T
Revenue I Z 7 3,652,869 3,005,671
Cost of sales 8 & B A& (3,262,195)| (2,319,043)
Gross profit E F 390,674 686,628
Other income, gains and losses Hi g A~ gz N E B 8 1,956,977 195,771
Distribution expenses o X (60,472) (51,908)
Administrative expenses 17 A X (260,630) (178,989)
Reversal of impairment losses on property, ME -BERZREZ
plant and equipment, net R (B B9 18 B B 7 5 15 81,892 2,087,848
Reversal of impairment losses on coal mining & 5% ¥R & 4 2 Bl {2 /& 18
rights $ [o] 16 - 2,206,456
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment FEWE 5 %1 2 A
losses on trade receivables, net BB REBBED
F R (34,897) 147,436
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment TE S I8 K H b fE Uk
losses on prepayments and other REZOBRERER)
receivables, net B 1B B 18 H B )5 78 (3.614) 6,409
Other expenses E A (45,730) (34,498)
Results from operating activities REEKEE 2,024,200 | 5,065,153
Finance income B RS UL A 49 205
Finance costs B 75 B AN (265,167) (378,917)
Net finance costs B 7§ B AS F 5 9 | (265,118)]  (378,712)
Profit before taxation B B Al & 10 1,759,082 4,686,441
Income tax expense FTIS B xX 11 (75,614) (962,091)
Profit for the year 7y 2 7) 1,683,468 | 3,724,350
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Ht2®E WK A (F %)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ExngEsiofEs
to profit or loss: BaemEE )
Foreign currency translation differences BINEIEE & 2 I
for foreign operations "mE = 10,147 (13,822)
Item that was reclassified to profit or loss: EEFOBEEERAIER
Foreign currency translation differences DEMNEBARIEEHN
reclassified to profit or loss upon NEEBEENINE
disposal of subsidiaries wneEZ%H — (180)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) FREMEEUY A
for the year, net of tax Ax)-BRE® | 10,147 | ¢ (14,002)
Total comprehensive income fortheyear S RZHEW AL EHE 1,693,615 3,710,348
Profit for the year attributable to: EhEREHN:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARrETFEEA 1,504,509 3,158,349
Non-controlling interests IE 17 I% 1 2 178,959 566,001
Profit for the year FERHERN 1,683,468 3,724,350
Total comprehensive income fortheyear EEFRZEUAEE:
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company KANBIEREZEA A 1,514,656 3,144,347
Non-controlling interests FEVE I #E = 178,959 566,001
Total comprehensive income fortheyear SR EZHEW A LS 1,693,615 3,710,348
Earnings per share attributable to FRAXAAEREFEA
the equity shareholders of the Company EEERERN
during the year 14
Basic earnings per share = Nl RMB60 cents [ RMB126 cents
. . o AR®600 | AR 1267
Diluted earnings per share BREBEAEF RMB58 cents | RMB121 cents

AR #5845

ARB1215
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3 ARET | AREFT L
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKEG 15 4,793,147 4,683,766
Coal mining rights B R R 16 4,250,347 4,417,366
Lease prepayments HETBNKIE 17 4,793 4,933
Interest in an associate N—HEBE AR 2R 18 = =
...9.048,287 | 9,106,065
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 21 61,850 99,155
Trade and bills receivables FEWEBSZENEINEZE 22 313,728 782,884
Prepayments and other receivables ENREREMEKRIKIE 23 335,181 229,495
Pledged and restricted deposits B\ & =R # 17 & 24 43 294
Cash and cash equivalents HEREE2EEY 25 115,680 80,349
______ 826,482 | 1,192,177
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables e E 5 FIB 26 (562,454) (949,950)
Other payables and contract liabilities EMmENZKBEBREAENEBE 27 (2,647,970) (2,765,989)
Borrowings gTE 28 (1,987,770) (6,045,885)
Tax payable JE %1 18 (275,298) (282,638)
_(5,473,492)| (10,044,462)
Net current liabilities REBEEEE _(4,647,010)|  (8,852,285)
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERABERS 4,401,277 | 253,780
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other payables H b & {4 3R I8 27 (47,155) (174,603)
Accrued reclamation obligations i‘ET BB R 29 (114,465) (105,280)
Borrowings == 28 (2,505,622) -
Deferred taxation IR At 18 19 (1,251,189) (1,178,514)
(3,918,431) (1,458,397)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEE (B8R FE 482,846 (1,204,617)
Capital and reserves B AR K E
Share capital P& A 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities 7k A )X #& 7] ¥ j% 55 %5 30 156,931 156,931
Deficit &5 Al 30 (793,627) (2,302,131)
Total deficit attributable to equity EAREEHEE AEML
shareholders of the Company JE5 4t 48 28 (425,472) (1,933,976)
Non-controlling interests FERER 908,318 729,359
Total equity/(deficit) i (B B8 482,846 (1,204,617)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directorsof China RZ-ZZET— L F=ZA-Z+ —HEFBRF# £
BEERARESTeMERKERE-

Qinfa Group Limited on 21 March 2019.

Xu Da
Director

EF

Bai Tao
BHE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#EZ=-Z—/\GF+=-A=+—HBILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E| —ZE—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt ARBTR| ARBTT
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation K B B a A 1,759,082 4,686,441
Adjustments for: NI =R (o R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment "% - &= KR EITE 10 263,550 159,589
Amortisation of coal mining rights W R BR TR AR 5N 10 167,019 81,678
Amortisation of lease prepayments & T8 15 3} I8 # 5 10 140 140
Finance income BT 75 W A 9 (49) (205)
Finance costs U J DN 9 265,167 378,917
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERZ®
equipment W 2 % 58 8 (14,681) (1,454)
Reversal of impairment losses on property, WME- -BERZEBE
plant and equipment, net B9 18 5 [0 % 28 15 (81,892)| (2,087,848)
Property, plant and equipment written-off ME B E N & E 10 6,886 5,318
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses on  f& U 8 5 2 1E B B,
trade receivables, net OB E#E)E B FHE 34,897 (147,436)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses on 38 fi X 38 & H b fE I X
prepayments and other receivables, net BB B/ ChERE)
BB FE 3,614 (6,409)
Recovery of other receivables previously B B % A 2 #f8E H
written off J& W 3k 18 8 (11,908) -
Gain on the extinguishment of borrowings BOHEZEBE Kz 8 (1,904,853) -
Waiver of management fee payables and RERENEREEB MEN
safety supervision fee payables ZEEEE 8 - (160,753)
Recovery of bad debts previously written off 1 [B] % A 2 #f £ 32 BF 8 - (8,403)
Reversal of impairment losses on coal BR KRR EER
mining rights ¥ [o] 16 - (2,206,456)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 32 # 5 4 & LA IR 15 &
EWRNRAX = 1,224
Net losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEHMBAREEFE 8 - 3,025
486,972 697,368
Changes in working capital: LEEEH:
Change in inventories ZE & 43,562 (49,779)
Change in trade and bills receivables EWE 5 NIE K ER
= 470,220 (243,570)
Change in prepayments and other receivables & {5 X 18 & H # f& U
RIAEF 13,053 66,153
Change in trade payables ERNE S RIEE (470,164) (31,783)
Change in other payables H & 1~ 3R 18 & 159,639 (200,568)
Cash generated from operations REZHMEBRSE 703,282 237,821
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2018 2017
—E-NF —tF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
=g ARBTR| ARBTT
Interest paid 21~ F & (124,712) (95,132)
PRC Corporate Income tax (paid)/refund (B ), BB AR E S
AT 13 1% (10,279) 51,338
Net cash generated from operating RETHMBREFHE
activities ......068.291 ) 194,027
Investing activities RETH
Interest received SR @B 49 205
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HEWHE  HE L& #E
equipment B 15 58 18 121,244 1,510
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment Y 88 ¥ % - Jﬁiﬁ}% & (353,959) (143,300)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W kg — E KB A A (685) (23)
Net cash used in investing activities RATBFRARESFE ~(233,351)|  (141,608)
Financing activities Bt & E 5
Proceeds from borrowings BE A ?E'r KA 25 639,769 791,131
Repayment of borrowings BEME 25 (938,860) (788,517)
Decrease in pledged and restricted deposits B i & = PR #il 17 5RO 2 251 1,819
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE(FrA), B
financing activities rReF® | (298,840)) 4455
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B2 RELZEY
1% b F 8 36,100 56,852
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January N—A—BzHBE£KR
ReEEY 80,349 24,713
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EX25HHNTE (769) (1,216)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ =-HA=+—H 2
ReERkREEEY 115,680 80,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (2007
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company
consider the immediate and ultimate holding companies of the
Group to be Fortune Pearl, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and the ultimate controlling shareholder to be
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu"), the sole shareholder of Fortune Pearl.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with effect from 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201
to 2208, level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza, No.
1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District, Guangzhou City, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are coal mining, purchases and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping
transportation.

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"). However, the presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi (“RMB") in order to present the
operating results and financial position of the Group based on
the economic environment in which the operating subsidiaries
of the Group operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SRR MEE
31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current liabilities exceed
its current assets by approximately RMB4,647,010,000 (2017:
RMB8,852,285,000). As at 31 December 2018, borrowings and
accrued interest amounting to approximately RMB750,362,000
and approximately RMB194,472,000 respectively (2017:
RMB2,805,712,000 and RMB435,551,000 respectively) that
have been past due and due for immediate payment were not
renewed or rolled over upon maturity. Besides, certain borrowings
of approximately RMB260,100,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB1,499,842,000) in total which are subject to cross
default clauses that the lenders could require the Group to make
immediate payment (but not repayable within one year from the
end of reporting date based on the agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the loan agreements) have been classified as current
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

As at the date when the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the Group has not obtained waivers from the
relevant banks on these cross default clauses, and the banks have
not taken any action against the Group to demand immediate
repayment except for as disclosed in note 37(a)(i). In addition,
as at 31 December 2018, there were several pending litigations
mainly requesting repayment of long outstanding payables
with interest against the Group, as set out in note 37(a). These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conminuep)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at 31
December 2018 and subsequently thereto up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.
In order to improve the Group’s financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as
a going concern, the directors of the Company have adopted
several measures together with other measures in progress at the
date when the consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, but not limited to, the followings:

(i) The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and capital expenditures;

(i) The Group is maximising its sales efforts including seeking
long term orders from power plants and coal trading
companies in the PRC with a view to improving operating
cash flows. Considering the stability of coal market and
steady coal prices, the Group is expected to generate
operating cash inflows in coming years from its existing
production facilities continuously;

(iii) In relation to those borrowings that have been past due
or those borrowings that became immediately repayable
due to cross-default clauses set out in the respective loan
agreements, the Group is in the process of negotiating
with the relevant banks and other lenders to extend the
repayment dates and to obtain waivers from banks; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SRR MEE
31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED 2. i 6 M BB X NE R E £ »

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conminuep)

(iv) For borrowings which will be maturing before 31 December
2019, the Group will actively negotiate with banks before
they fall due to secure their renewals so as to ensure that
the necessary funds to meet the Group’s working capital and
financial requirements in the future will continue to be met.
In view that there have been no history of which the banks
and other lenders exercised their rights to call for immediate
repayment of borrowings and their respective interests in
similar cases in the past, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group has good relationship with
banks which would enhance the Group’s ability to renew
the existing short-term borrowings upon maturity.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the measures
described above in the foreseeable future and after assessing
the Group's current and forecasted cash positions, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to
meet in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall due
for the twelve months from 31 December 2018. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group'’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that may arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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3.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new IFRSs and amendments
to IFRSs issued by International Accounting Standard Board
("IASB") that are relevant to the Group for the first time in the
current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

IFRIC-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Except as described below, the application of the new IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to other
IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the classification
and measurement of financial assets and 2) expected credit losses
("ECL") for financial assets.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application
of IFRS 9) and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.1

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 4.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

(a)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables. Except
for those which had been determined as credit impaired,
trade receivables are grouped based on past due analysis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables, pledged and restricted deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") basis as the Group concluded that there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For outstanding financial guarantee provided to an associate
of the Group, the Group considers that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
hence the loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amounts
of the loss allowance determined as at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018 are immaterial.
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3.

3.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

(continued)

(a)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit loss allowance of
approximately RMB6,152,000 has been recognised against
accumulated losses. The additional loss allowance is charged
against the trade receivables.

The loss allowance of trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 reconciled to the opening loss allowance as at 1
January 2018 are as follows:

3.
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RMB’000
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At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 —T—tHF+A=+—H RE
lﬁf}“\ 2T % R £ 39 5% 251,347

Additional credit loss recognised on trade TEWNESREEARANBINEEEHIE
receivables 6,152

At 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RZZE—-—N\F—A—B8 REBEBEHE

& ERFE R 257,499

The management of the Group considered that there was
no material impact on the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities under IFRS 9 and
IAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. In
addition, the credit losses calculated pursuant to the new
requirements under IFRS 9 are not significantly different from
the amount recognised under the Group’s current practices
for assessing impairment on the Group’s financial assets
except for trade and bills receivables at the date of initial
application.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.2 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses
and comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the Group
has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under IAS 18 and IAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

e sales of coal
e  charter hire income

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15

(continued)
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32 BB BRELEREISEIREETF

EHHWRE @
A RPBBR R EEAFISRE
ERNREENEE @)

Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under IFRS 15
at 31 December at 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
R-ZB-N\F
% AR —-A—8
e 2 118 B B
+ZR=+—H REER
EHNEKREE BHOE| BHRNEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N N ARB TR
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and contract liabilities EfENFER AL EE
Receipt in advance from customers KERPEWGE 29,559 (12,298) 17,261
Contract liabilities EHNBEE = 12,298 12,298

As at 1 January 2018, receipt in advance from customers of
RMB12,298,000 previously included in other payables were
reclassified to contract liabilities which are also included in other

payables and contract liabilities.

The application of IFRS 15 has had no material impact on the
Group's accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all
new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 January 2018 had to be restated. The following table show
the adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

102

3. BRAVFRT R A2 5T B BR Bt 35 5
EEA(TEHERTZREEDD

(%)

RAEAFERFERNWHFT REMBE
B PR Br % 3R E 2 Al )

33 AMMMAHMERNEESWBMRR
RPN ERNTE

HRAASENAENESFRRES 1N
“E-NE-A-HHEEMBMRRR
MEBEHRAETES  TREIHRX
FEXBERINABR I EXEH
FENBEBALTERAERN-



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A
Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

BR AR HT RT I A48 FT Bl BR B R R

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA(ERYHREZER]D
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD) (##)
New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily REFERINERVHITRKEEET
effective for the current year (continued) B Bt 3% 3R & 2 Al o)
3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 33 EERMEHEAHEGS HBRR
financial position arising from the application of all *RPANEHRNEE®
new standards (continued)
At Impact of Impact of At
31 December application of application of 1 January
2017 IFRS 9 IFRS 15 2018
Tﬁéﬁﬂ%ﬁ!ﬂ‘% FmER %
RZT—tF HEA BE R=B-NE
TZA=+-H %%FE‘J?Q; FIRNFE -A-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARBTR
Trade and bills receivables ERESREREREE 782,884 (6,152) - 776,732
Current assets RBEE 1,192,177 (6,152) - 1,186,025
Other payables and contract EERFERGNRE
liabilities
~ Receipts in advance from -RERFPRENFE
customers 29,559 - (12,298) 17,261
- Contract liabilities -ehEak - = 12,298 12,298
Current liabilities RBERE (10,044,462) - - (10,044,462)
Net current liabilities RBEETE (8,852,285) (6,152) = (8,858,437)
Total assets less current liabilites ZZERFHEE 253,780 (6,152) - 247,628
Net liabilities BEFE (1,204,617) (6,152) — (1,210,769)
Deficit &5 4l (2,302,131) (6,152) - (2,308,283)
Total deficit attributable to equity AAREZEEAEEEL
shareholders of the Company B (1,933,976) (6,152) = (1,940,128)
Total deficit BHaRm (1,204,617) (6,152) - (1,210,769)
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

IFRIC-Int 23

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 9

Amendments to
IFRS10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to
IAS 19

Amendments to
IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to Definition of Materiality®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective: (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for business combination for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. BRAFEET R &L1E 5T Bl BR B 7% 3R

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, IFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of IFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
IFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (conTinueD)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset for
land prepayment where the Group is a lessee. The application
of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to
lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB9,082,000 as disclosed in note 35(a).
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases. The application of new requirements
may also result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable IFRSs, which collective
term includes all applicable individual IFRS, IAS and related
Interpretations, promulgated by the IASB and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group'’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuep)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When
the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit, the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The Group'’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

4.

BEXHEw
REEATZRE
BERNAASAEBHEEERTE NN
BER - EAFENNL2EKRE SR
BREEHRRRENE ) BEZE
ISR N 4 42 o) A sk K [R) R I RE o

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are BMEARIZCEEREERBRANESR
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using ERAHAREAEUBRERN - R

the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
the associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in
net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuep)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal
of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs and changes in the measurement of existing
liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from changes in the
timing or outflow of resources required to settle the obligation
or from changes in the discount rate. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have been determined,
costs incurred to develop coal mines are capitalised as part of the
cost of the mining structures. All other expenditures, including
the costs of removing waste materials, the cost of repairs and
maintenance and major overhaul, are expensed as they are
incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different estimated useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated
as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep) 4, EXBFTTHEE®

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if
it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a
component has an estimated useful life that is different from the
remainder of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years
of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-production
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the
depletion base.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation (continued)

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. Assets under construction are transferred to the
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment upon the
completion of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if
appropriate, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired from
the government or through a business combination. Coal mining
rights are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-production
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the
depletion base.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights paid
to the PRC government authorities. Lease prepayments are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated amortisation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the rights.

119

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

BEXSHEw®

ME- -BERRZE®

mE®
EREERTKYAERERZANT
SRFE - REZBEENBERKE
SRAVE BELIENEBEER -

FEHF X BEralEMFHRFRE
BEeREsERERA RS RHB(WE
B BN EREZEHNFERBERE
BEARR -

Bk BREE
BRREBRERERBTXBEBEL A H
W BB B K TR B BR OB o R IR BRI R N AR
B B 5K R R IR A AN R R 5T B 8 I
HEZRFBREBBEMMA)IEK-

R rEEERRARGARREE
NFEREENBEMEEETASNE -

HERMNRE
HERNRBEREXNFTERSHEN
T fE KA - THE BN RIER KR
& B R R R R IR B R OB, R ET 8 R
HRZABMEBRWE)IE-

BHEENBEERFHARERERNS
EEmBARPIHE-



N

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZEEBEFRA A
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\4FF#H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SRR MEE
31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuep)

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of spending
estimates at both surface and underground mines in accordance
with the PRC rules and regulations. The Group estimates its
liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon
detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash
spending to perform the required work. Spending estimates are
escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability such that the amount of
provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The Group records as
additional costs of the mining structures in property, plant and
equipment associated with the liability for final reclamation
and mine closure. The obligation and corresponding asset are
recognised in the period in which the liability is incurred. The
asset is depreciated on the units-of-production method over
its expected life and the liability is accreted to the projected
spending date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in timing of
the performance of reclamation activities), the revisions to the
obligation and the corresponding asset are recognised at the
appropriate discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects,
are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued by the Group
gives the right to the holder to convert these securities into a fixed
number of the Company’s shares at any time at a fixed exercise
price per share. Perpetual subordinated convertible securities
with no contractual obligation to repay its principal and no
contractual obligation to pay any distribution are classified as
equity. Respective distributions if and when declared are treated
as equity dividends.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they
are declared.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuep)

Revenue from contracts with customers (from 1
January 2018 based on the transition explained in
note 3)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Revenue from contracts with customers (from 1
January 2018 based on the transition explained in
note 3) (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to customers
which are taken to be the point in time when the customer
has control on the goods and thus, the performance obligation
was satisfied. Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of
ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value
added tax.

Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in nature,
is recognised in accordance with IAS 17 on a straight-line basis
over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised over time by reference
to the progress of which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits when the voyage charter service is
provided by the Group.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmmuer) 4. B R &5 BUEK

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) (continued) WEER(R=F—NF—H—HH)
(&)

Sales of goods BmiEE

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities AmEERaERN —REBHABREFIRE

is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or WHERKRKENKRER BHFITAR

receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value added tax. BEHENAABEINEK - WMEEAH

Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually fRAOFERE BEERTHEHEHRETLNX

in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant EAT HmWBERNFHEKRE

risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the S REOFEBREER WETKENR

buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated B MBBEXNAREER AR AT

costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there s BUELSEBSEEEE M

is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and E Wz BRI AR T HiTER BeR

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable R - M EARGERERESRE

that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured AR 26K l ZELEDER A

reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue ZITEER AW A -

as the sales are recognised.

Charter hire income HEWA

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in nature, is HEAAAOWA(MEEZ AELELH)NE

recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each charter. MELERERER -

Income from voyage charter is recognised on a percentage-of- BHEHABMARTKE S LA EE:

completion basis, which is determined on the time proportion Bt & 8 5l A A2 DA B BT LE ) 38 o

method of each individual voyage.

Finance income B 7% A

Finance income comprise interest income, which is recognised as HHEBRABENBWRA EREESE

it accrues in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, KRANBEBRMNEZRNEE R ﬁ WA KA

using the effective interest method. TR e

Government subsidies BRMB 2

Government subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Subsidies that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Subsidies that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
estimated useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in

4.
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the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are ERBAGERATHRAMEERRNE R =
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. HHER BEENMEBEEEASRMAAEN
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible HMREREZFER ERARATES

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
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difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax BEZIBERBRIN-EERAEIRSGE
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated ARERM BN NS RAEREZENF

with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise borrowing costs, which are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuep)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the MPF Scheme) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the
local municipal government. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (continued)

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to
reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the share-based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuery 4. B R BB R

Provisions and contingent liabilities BERIAAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or NRABEEHERAEEE FAREN
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is HTETERTEAERDLEM=E N

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required HEZBEEREL AT EMGE - Al ®
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made R -

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present

BERARBENSEDIRBERREE
ERMEAEMFEARENREML TR
REeRZEEEHANEAR R THETE
M-MBEEREEENEEGFAHERE
EnEFE EREENAZSFHE®

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash NMENBHEWeEREEETERBRE
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material). K)o

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits IMAKAIBEAEAREEENm ke 8
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, ECERC I i E BEEBERIA
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the BE RIFLHEMNZ R DA AN
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible 51 AltERlme-Al e EE(EEEBES
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the —HENZERREMHEFLENTEAE
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are ﬁﬁ BRNTBEERIABE BRIFLHE
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of A 2% 7 &Y A] BE MEAR K R E R ER o
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Financial instruments ¢EIA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a WEBEBXNALIEASNBKXHNETLN
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of HoRlemEEReRBETURR

the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade and bills receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(from 1 January 2018 based on the transition explained in note
3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuen) 4, EXBFTTHEE®
Financial instruments (continued) @I Awm
Financial assets (continued) ERMEE®

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(from 1 January 2018 based on the transition explained in note
3) (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(from 1 January 2018 based on the transition explained in note

3) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuen) 4, EXBFTTHEE®
Financial instruments (continued) @I Awm
Financial assets (continued) ERMEE®

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on
the transition explained in note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade
and bills receivables and other receivables). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on

& B8 E R E (BB a0 MY 51 3 P A 3B %
FXxB=—F—-\F—F—Bif)

AEEREBEBEEREMBHRELEMNFIHRH
HRBENEBREE(EEERKE S K
T Ko PR R 1R DA K B fth B W R IR) HE R
EHEERRENERRG -BHEER
FEENEERNSHREBAEH  ARR
BT EANKREERRBOHEZ (-

EHEHMEEEREREIARNF
HAMBAIEEMNENSH SR EH
EEBR-HEMmMS 2BARMES
BiEERHNBEERI2MEA N AT &
BEMNBHOEMHERN2HRAHEES

the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors BEERBD AEIREBEAEENE L
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and EEEBEBRERET URBEH AR
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting EREZE —RE&BERAARERE

date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

R B RE (R e R R AR OR B9 TR
A

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills AEBE-—ENERESIHRBRERE
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively BHEATHAHEEBEE -RZEE
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings based on MEBEEEBRDER G EEA &
the past due analysis of the trade and bills receivables. 1 5P AR R e 145( BEo5RBERERER
MBI ETREBTG -

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on
the transition explained in note 3) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

e anactual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on
the transition explained in note 3) (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due with reference to the historical
payment pattern of customers of the Group, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due with reference to the historical payment pattern of
customers of the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep) 4. EXETHEw

Financial instruments (continued) @I Awm

Financial assets (continued) TREE®

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on CRLEERMEGHAM T35 E B E
the transition explained in note 3) (continued) Gxeg —_E—N\FE—H—H#E)®

(ii) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) 15 B)R 8% 5t & &

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events PREEE —EHIXULEEDEH

of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated (BZemEEMTFARRERE

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. BRI E)EERLEREER

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes BE-2MEELHREERENIE

observable data about the following events: BRBEBATIEHNAIEEHE:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the o BWIAXBERANEKRME
borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due o ERAN(WMENSBEEMH)
event; the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic f TANERABRBBERIRA
or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s Bt l B E S A AR B (A Fat
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a RABEERATERTER
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise EOR -
consider;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter e ERAKRAEMBABKESNHE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or ftb BF 75 E4H ¢ 3k

e thedisappearance of an active market for that financial e HRMAEZBHZTMEERXRXE
asset because of financial difficulties. VBB T % o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on
the transition explained in note 3) (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (from 1 January 2018 based on
the transition explained in note 3) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the basis of:

e nature of financial instrument;
e past-due status;

e nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise pledged and restricted
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bill receivables,
and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) had
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that
can be estimated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers
or issuers, the disappearance of an active market for a security,
or observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in
expected cash flows from a group of financial assets. In addition,
for an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of
impairment includes a significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets
measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables) at both an
individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant
assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not
to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment
that has been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical
information on the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater
or less than suggested by historical trends.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninuen) 4, EXBFTTHEE®
Financial instruments (continued) @I Awm
Financial assets (continued) ERMEE®

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the assets original effective interest rate. Losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and reflected in an allowance account against loans
and receivables. When the Group considers that there are no
realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts
are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceed received. Any interest in such transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as
a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuep)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities (continued)

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of
an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or modification
of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment of the original financial liabilities and recognition
of new financial liabilities. The difference between the fair value
of the new financial liabilities, being considered as consideration
paid for extinguishment of the original financial liabilities, and the
carrying amount of the original financial liabilities derecognised
is recognised in profit and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks and financial
institutions on behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/IAS 37 "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018); and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank borrowings
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements
of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep) 4, EXBFTTHEE®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Groups
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Groups
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that persons family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are described as
follows:

Provision of ECL for trade and bills receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
and bills receivables and other receivables. The provision rates
are based on nature of goods provided to the customers as
groupings of various receivables that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group'’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that
is available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade and bills receivables and other receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade and bills receivables and other receivables are disclosed in
note 33. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
and bills receivables and other receivables are approximately
RMB313,728,000 and RMB39,207,000 respectively, net of
impairment loss allowance of approximately RMB253,734,000
and RMB364,598,000 respectively.
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(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuep)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and coal mining rights

When there is indication that property, plant and equipment
and coal mining rights may be impaired, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets or the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit in which the relevant assets are attached to,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating units projected with reference to the projected
sales quantities, unit selling prices, unit costs, gross margins,
growth rates and discounted at a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The estimated uncertainty mainly
includes gross margin, discount rate and growth rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash, a material impairment loss or a further impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and coal mining rights of cash-generating
units for which the management have performed impairment
assessment are RMB4,793,147,000 and RMB4,250,347,000
respectively (2017: RMB4,683,766,000 and RMB4,417,366,000
respectively). Reversal of impairment losses in relation to property,
plant and equipment and coal mining rights of approximately
RMB81,892,000 and nil respectively (2017: RMB2,087,848,000
and RMB2,206,456,000 respectively) was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. EXE5HE R &5
ESTIMATES (conTinueD)
(iii) Depreciation (iii) T B

Other than mining structures and assets under construction, KRG hkHEFNKEER WE BEK

property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual values. The management periodically reviews
changes in technology and industry conditions, asset retirement
activity and residual values to determine adjustments to estimated
remaining useful lives and depreciation rates. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expenses in future periods. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment, other than mining
structures and assets under construction, was approximately
RMB1,815,264,000 (2017: RMB1,978,755,000). Further details
are disclosed in note 15.

(iv) Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Groups coal reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated coal reserves can
be designated as proved and probable reserves. Proved and
probable coal reserve estimates are updated on a regular basis
and have taken into account recent production and technical
information about each mine. In addition, as prices and cost levels
change from year to year, the estimate of proved and probable
coal reserves also change as adverse changes in prices and cost
levels would affect the cost-effectiveness of mining the coal and
hence may cause reclassifications from reserves to resources
categories. This change is considered a change in estimate for
accounting purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in
related depreciation and amortisation rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continuep)

(iv) Coal reserves (continued)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation and
amortisation expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation and
amortisation rates are determined based on estimated proved
and probable coal reserve quantity (the denominator) and
capitalised costs of mining structures and coal mining rights
(the numerator). The capitalised cost of mining structures is
depreciated and coal mining rights are amortised based on the
units of coal produced. At 31 December 2018, net carrying
amounts of the Group’s mining structures recognised in property,
plant and equipment and the Group’s coal mining rights were
approximately RMB1,769,037,000 (2017: RMB1,733,293,000)
and approximately RMB4,250,347,000 (2017: RMB4,417,366,000)
respectively. Further details are disclosed in notes 15 and 16
respectively.
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(v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continuep)

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and mine
closure involves the estimates of the amount and timing for
the future cash spending as well as the discount rate used
for reflecting current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The Group
considers various factors, including future production volume
and development plan, the geological structure of the mining
regions and reserve volume, to determine the scope, amount and
timing of reclamation and mine closure works to be performed.
Determination of the effect of these factors involves judgements
from the Group and the estimated liabilities may turn out to be
different from the actual expenditure incurred. The discount rate
used by the Group may also be altered to reflect the changes
in the market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability, such as changes of the borrowing
rate and inflation rate in the market. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated costs, or
changes in timing of the performance of reclamation activities),
revisions to the obligations will be recognised. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of accrued reclamation obligations
approximately RMB114,465,000 (2017: RMB105,280,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continuep)

(vi) Valuation of other borrowings on extinguishment

As explained in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
there are modifications to the terms of the Group’s borrowings
which the management of the Group had concluded that the
modifications are substantial modifications and hence has been
accounted for as extinguishment of the original borrowings and
recognition of new borrowings. As explained in the Group's
accounting policy, the new borrowings, considered as being
the consideration paid to extinguish the original borrowings,
are measured at fair value on extinguishment of the original
borrowings with the difference between the carrying amount of
the original borrowings derecognised and the fair value of the
new borrowings being recognised in profit or loss. In determining
the fair value of the new borrowings to be recognised on
extinguishment of the original borrowings, the management of
the Group is required to estimate a suitable discount rate. The
Group's management believes that the adopted discount rate of
6.66 % best reflects the Group’s facts and circumstances and the
market conditions. Any significant change in the adopted discount
rate may have significant impact on the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group had recognised a gain on extinguishment of
the original borrowings of approximately RMB1,904,583,000
as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has two operating and reportable segments which

are the Group's strategic business units, as follows:

e Coal business: Coal mining, purchases and sales, filtering,

storage and blending of coal in the PRC.

e  Shipping transportation: Time charter and voyage charter of

vessels.

These strategic business units offer different products and
services, and are managed separately because they require
different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the
strategic business units, the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO")
reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following basis:

e The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted
profit before net finance costs and income tax expense. ltems
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as

unallocated head office and corporate expenses are further
adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining
rights, lease prepayments, interest in an associate and
current assets with the exception of other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade payables, other payables
attributable to activities of the individual segments, accrued
reclamation obligations and borrowings managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (continuED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

A B IRARMIEE
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6. 7 HHEE=®
(a) " HREEE - BEREEB®

Coal business Shipping transportation Total
Brx® HEER s
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F| 22— +F | ZBE-N\F| Z5—+F | ZE-N\F | Z2—+t&
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARBTE | ARBTR | ARET | ARBTR | AR T
Revenue from external customers MEBE P KR 3,482,441 2,857,163 170,428 148,508 3,652,869 3,005,671
Inter-segment revenue 2 s - - 14,774 20,130 14,774 20,130
Reportable segment revenue THES B E 3,482,441 2,857,163 185,202 168,638 3,667,643 3,025,801
Reportable segment profit before THREIBREAERN
taxation 109,811 5,036,222 20,522 40,811 130,333 5,077,033
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 416,302 221,964 14,407 19,404 430,709 241,368
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment ~ #1% B E kR & 2B E
losses) on property, plant and equipment, &8/ (REBERER)EE
net (108,176) |  (2,087,848) 26,284 - (81,892) | (2,087,848)
Net gain on disposal of property, plantand  HE%%  BE Rk &S
equipment Ya 5 (3,537) (1,454) (11,144) - (14,681) (1,454)
Reversal of impairment losses on coal mining iR K EEZREEEED
rights - (2,206,456) - - - (2,206,456)
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment W& 5 Z B Z HEFE/
losses) on trade receivables, net (REBREE)ESE 34,491 (147,436) 406 - 34,897 (147,436)
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment T8 2038 & H 4 fE Yt 5008 2
losses) on prepayments and other BEBE/(REBEEE)
receivables, net B 3,614 (6,409) - - 3,614 (6,409)
Recovery of other receivables previously WOE A SR 2 H R AR IR
written off (11,908) - - - (11,908) -
Recovery of bad debts previously written off 322 B 18 7F #f &4 % @ = (8,403) - - - (8,403)
Wavier of management fee payablesand ~ #H4ENEEEREMN L2
safety supervision fee payables EEE - (160,753) - = - (160,753)
Additions to property, plant and equipment FEWE  BE R HE 392,548 164,753 322 310 392,870 165,063
Reportable segment assets UHREIBEE 10,114,474 10,413,230 307,667 434,901 10,422,141 10,848,131
Reportable segment liabilities THREIHEE (8,187,828) | (10,417,611) (812,935) (927,113) | (9,000,763) | (11,344,724)
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6. DEHEW

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit (b) AHE D MW E - BRBEAER - EE
before taxation, assets and liabilities REEYHEK
Revenue W &=
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —tF
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Total of reportable segments revenue AR E D = R 3,667,643 3,025,801
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 B K &R 2 B8 (14,774) (20,130)
Consolidated revenue e W= 3,652,869 3,005,671
Profit before taxation BR B B & A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARTR| AR T T
Total of reportable segments profit before 7] & & 7 28 B i Al J& £l 42 58
taxation 130,333 5,077,033
Unallocated other income Pl - N 1,904,853 -
Unallocated head office and corporate AOERRAARARRAX
expenses (10,986) (11,880)
Net finance costs B 75 B 2K SF %R (265,118) (378,712)
Consolidated profit before taxation #x A Bk B A E A 1,759,082 4,686,441
Assets BE
2018 2017
—E-N\E| —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB‘'000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Total of reportable segments assets AREDBEEMRR 10,422,141 10,848,131
Elimination of inter-segment receivables %> &B f& & Y 5 1B 2 ¥ 85 (617,893) (611,511)
Unallocated assets Ao EE 70,521 61,622
Consolidated total assets GAEBERRE 9,874,769 10,298,242
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continuED)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit

(b)

7 B EH e
AHREDHWNE BREAERN - EE

before taxation, assets and liabilities (continued) FEBEYHR®
Liabilities 8E
2018 2017
—E-NFE| ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR®FT T
Total of reportable segments liabilities AmENHBEERE 9,000,763 11,344,724
Elimination of inter-segment payables 75 EB FE FE 5 RIE 2 H 8 (1,144,464)| (1,308,551)
Tax payable JE 1t % 18 275,298 282,638
Deferred taxation IR & 18 1,251,189 1,178,514
Unallocated liabilities Ko B BfE&E 9,137 5,534
Consolidated total liabilities e BEeRE 9,391,923 11,502,859
Geographic information (c) EHER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total assets are primarily
dominated by assets handling its coal business and shipping
transportation business. The coal is sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in all coal mines are
physically located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets are almost
all located in the PRC. The vessels are primarily deployed across
geographical markets for shipping transportation throughout
the world. As a result, the directors of the Company consider
that it will not be meaningful to allocate the Group’s assets and
their related capital expenditure to specific geographical areas.
Accordingly, geographical segment information is only presented
for revenue, which is based on the geographical location of
customers.
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(c)

(d)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (conminuep) 6. 2 EHEW
Geographic information (continued) () EFHER®
Revenue from external customers I EFE R E
2018 2017
—E-_N\NE| ZE2E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR| ARBTT
PRC =s) 3,610,638 2,927,911
Other countries H b B =R 42,231 77,760
Total = 3,652,869 3,005,671

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the following customers
in coal business segment with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue are as follows:

d) FEFEFEFZEH

REAR EXZEAEB KBS
10% 2 PR RER D BEF Bl

2018 2017

—E-NFE| ZZE—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR| AR®TT

Customer A Z2EA 727,014 | N/AT i@ A *
Customer B ZFEB 429,200 360,310
Customer C ZPEC 388,511 | N/AZi@E F *
Customer D 2FBD N/AT & B * 320,011

* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the Group's

total revenue for the respective year.
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7. REVENUE W &=

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by ZEBEEE S W KRBT GO

service lines is as follows: =mOoOFAT
2018 2017
—E-NFE| ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT T
Sales of coal RS 3,482,441 2,857,163
Charter hire income e W A 170,428 148,508
3,652,869 3,005,671

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when the goods
are transferred at a point in time. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon the delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering
of time charter services is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of each charter. Revenue from rendering of voyage
charter services is recognised over time by reference to the
progress of the voyage charter services provided by the Group.
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the completion of
the voyage charter services.
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8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMW A WERERE
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZZT—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBTR| AR®TT

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net B 5 sk (E548) % & 6,870 (5,052)
Gain on the extinguishment of BEEEEERN ks

borrowings (note 28) (FT7E28) (i) 1,904,853 -
Net gain on disposal of property, LEWE BELE&KEZ

plant and equipment U %5 5 58 14,681 1,454
Sublease income 2 1WA 331 297
Recovery of other receivables W 5] 38 1 9 8 A0 E e Uk

previously written off P 11,908 -
Government subsidies BT 8 B) & (ii) = 30,352
Recovery of bad debts previously U [8] 38 1 4 6 BO £

written off - 8,403
Waiver of management fee payables %4 % fE 1+ & 12 & & JE -

and safety supervision fee payables TEERSE (iii) - 160,753
Net losses on disposal of subsidiaries 1 & [ff B A 7] & 8 % 58 (iv) - (3,025)
Others Hfth 18,334 2,589

1,956,977 195,771

Notes: B &E -
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a i) BE-Z-—NF+_A=+T—HLFE"

legally binding settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”)
with an asset management company in the PRC, to reduce the amount

of outstanding bank loans assigned by two banks and interest and &)

penalty interest amounting to approximately RMB4,027,188,000 and
RMB582,028,000 in total respectively. The fair value of new borrowings
recognised on extinguishment of the original borrowings amounted
to RMB2,704,363,000 and such reduction has been accounted for
as gain on the extinguishment of borrowings upon loan restructuring
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil). Detail of the loan

restructuring is disclosed in note 28.

ﬁ% R F B K &
402718800071&/\EF¥5820280007E°
?J’H)bélE%&FFK%ME’]%ﬂﬁ’E’D\ﬁ@
B AR #2,704,363,000 7T © A MR

AEBEPE -HEES

—DEZEBORINEEHH
A Hl /Wﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁv%*f%kfﬁ
e HARK

g/-\

B R AE
5 (4 B 1

BE_Z-NF+_H _Jr*EIJJ:EF
J\EEEHX/HW&FEE’]H& S(ZF—tF:
B) - EREANFBERME 280 WE -
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8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES (conrinuep)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group received
unconditional subsidies from local government as recognition of
the Groups contribution to the development of local economy and
demolition of one vessel in the preceding year. No such subsidies were
received by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Included in the government subsidies received by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was the government subsidy of
RMB30,213,000, in respect of demolition of two vessels obtained from
the government during the year ended 31 December 2017 in accordance
with “Implementation Plan for Early Retirement and Replacement of
Obsolete and Worn-out Transportation Vessels And Single-hull Oil
Tankers” (ZEEHRMMAER A RIZAHREZHNEM T R) and
“Administrative Measure For The Special Subsidies Given By The Central
Finance To Encourage Retirement And Replacement Of Obsolete and
Worn-out Transportation Vessels And Single-hull Qil Tankers” (Z&
B AR B B 0h e R EE B T R BB FIRE S EIRPOE) jointly
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Transport, the
Development and Reform Commission, and the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of China (“Vessel Demolition Subsidy”).

On 31 December 2017, a PRC state-owned enterprise, who is responsible
for providing management services and safety supervision to Shanxi
Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong Coal Co., Ltd. (Xinglong Coal) and Shanxi
Xinzhou Shenchi Hongyuan Coal Co., Ltd. (Hongyuan Coal), has waived
its amounts due from the Group of approximately RMB160,753,000
in total (2018: nil) and such gain has been accounted for as waiver of
management fee payables and safety supervision fee payables ended
31 December 2017.

On 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of eleven subsidiaries
of the Group to independent third parties for an aggregate of cash
consideration of United States dollars (“USD"). The subsidiaries were
dormant in nature and had no significant impact on the results and
cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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8. HMWA WaEKkEB»
MaE: (48)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BHE-_T—+tF+-A=+—BLFE"
AEEESEMBRANEREBS S
ERRBEASEEEMEERRMAER
BEREE—FH@— M- -BE—
Z-NFE+-A=+—BLFE K&
BUEESAEREMBE -

AR EERBEE-_T—tF+=-A=
+—HLEFEESHNBNEDEAAR
#30,213,000 c KB IF @B - TH B AR
BHE_ZT—+t&F+-_A=+—BLEE
BEFBEGRES RBEHI BRER
M EZESeURIEMEELLDH S
X BoCE E B & A0 RN BB AR OH B 1R AT 3R
BEEHNERIRIKEEERMMANE
BRBBHREETFRFRYBEHEEEL
B IR IR I BR WA 18 BRORT 2 ER A A A (TR
MM o

RZE—+E+=-A=+—HB B&EMN
W iT et EEEEERAR(TERE
BEDRLATMEEEZEEEGTRA
AZEREEDREEERERZTEE
ENFEEAECECHERRKAERRN
R A £ 4 AR % 160,753,000 T (= Z —
NE:E) ZSWEEAERIEHEZ =
E—t+tF+ A=+ RLEEHRLE
NEBBRENZZEBEER-

R—_E—tF+_A=+—H A& H
RETTETHMHEF R SR EB B L
E-FHEASE+ BB RARZ
EWNBARAYEER HAEEHZEZ
T—+tF+ A=+ BHLEFENESE
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9. NET FINANCE COSTS 9. BB AEFRE
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+ £
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR| AR®TT
Interest income NIPSNT N I ) | (205)
Interest on borrowings & E A a 205,412 338,742
Penalty interest on overdue borrowings BEEES A 20,058 53,116
Interest charge on unwinding of 7 B AL 3R &Y A1 B BA S2 (BT & Gi))
discounts (note (ii)) 78,608 8,822
Less: Interest capitalised into property, W BAEME BERIKEER
plant and equipment (note (i) A1 2 (BT 7 () (38,911) (21,763)
Finance costs smA | 265,167 | 378,917
Net finance costs B 75 Bk AN % 5 265,118 378,712
Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.66% (2017: () MBEABERFHNE666%(ZF—+F:
6.63%) per annum. 6.63%)EFTE R -
(i) This item represents the unwinding of discount for the following (i) HEBENBERMNEZBRBRATEED
liabilities using the effective interest rate: |
2018 2017
—E-N\E =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR%TT
Borrowings (note 25) &g (fa25) 69,423 -
Accrued reclamation obligations (note 29) TER1EZEER (MiF29) 9,185 8,822
78,608 8,822

164



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

10. BR B A7 &

BREAEMNENMEBRUT KR

2018 2017
—E-NE| —ZET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR| AR®TT
Cost of inventories (note (i)) 7 & A (B 55 G)) 3,187,954 2,208,013
Minimum lease payments under KERET 2 xEBRE K
operating lease:
— properties -MxE 3,541 2,452
— vessels - e M 60,734 43,283
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -HMERXENE
equipment 263,550 159,589
Amortisation of coal mining rights B R B T N
(included in cost of sales) (5t A 88 & Ak AN) 167,019 81,678
Amortisation of lease prepayments 7 & 78 1 3R I8 # 5
(included in administrative expenses) (FF AT X) 140 140
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB KRR 5 8
written-off (note 15) (BT #£15) 6,886 5,318
Auditor’s remuneration % S EM B €
— audit services - B Z RS 2,156 1,972
— non-audit services -EEZRE 700 700
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BE®AMAX
directors’ and chief executive’s (TERESEERTHAER
remuneration (note 12)) B < (Bt sE12))
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in -FHae EEEEKEYWERN
kind 377,524 334,717
— Contributions to retirement benefit —RAIKAE F 5T 8t 3K
schemes 26,383 13,303
— Share-based payments -~ AR AEROHMNK - 973
403,907 348,993

Note:

G

(i)  Cost of inventories included approximately RMB622,339,000 (2017:
RMB421,379,000) relating to employee benefit expenses, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of coal mining
rights which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:
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M. rEHHEX

REREKRARADNMENFXE:

2018 2017
—E-NEF —tF
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
AR®BTR| ARBTT
Current tax expense B HA 7% 18 B 2
- PRC Corporate Income Tax - ‘:F' BEFMEDH 47,107 7,945
— Overprovision of PRC Corporate MEFEPECEMRSGHE
Income Tax in prior years (note (iv)) mEECTEw (44,168)] | (18,695)
2,939 (10,750)
Deferred tax (note 19) iR AE T 78 (B 7E19) 72,675 972,841
Income tax expense FTE M A X 75,614 962,091
Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit FANMEHNRAXERBEFE2ENK
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive AXRHBRRAEF RO T
income as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NEFE| ZFE—+F
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Profit before taxation & % BT A 1,759,082 4,686,441
Notional tax expense on profit before HRABEBHEFTERNRB A
taxation, calculated at the applicable AN ZERBEHRI
tax rates 434,837 1,167,685
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AR ZAHAHEEEZ
recognised W2 20,389 48,291
Tax effect of expenses non-deductible ENGIE TR Eﬂ XIZMBEE
for tax purpose 38,829 29,134
Tax effect of income non-taxable for tax JFRFHUW A 2 FHiE &
purpose (40,090) (44,635)
Tax effect of temporary difference not ABEAZEREZEB 2HBETE
recognised 4,050 -
Utilisation of tax loss and deductible PRABEEFERER BB
temporary difference not recognised B NIRRT R =
in prior years (338,233) (219,689)
Overprovision of PRC Corporate Income  BEFERBE D EFMERK
tax in prior years 8 FE B (44,168) (18,695)
Income tax expense PAS B X 75,614 962,091
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conminue)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands (2017: nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did not have
any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
(2017: nil).

Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on the statutory
rate of 25% (2017: 25%) of the assessable profits of subsidiaries which
carried on businesses in the PRC.

A subsidiary of the Group made provisions for the PRC Corporate
Income Tax of RMB48,980,000 in previous years. The Group engaged
an independent third party to review the tax provision of the subsidiary
and the directors believed the likelihood of utilisation of such PRC
Corporate Income Tax provision had become remote and therefore had
decided to release it to profit and loss in the current year.
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M. AEHEA W
B 3

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RERSHEREBRELAESNAAR
RO AKREBARBARSEERAR
BRREESNEMMER(ZE—LF : &) -

MR REBENE RN FAEET
MEMMEENSHOERT &GN ZF
—tEF B MAKEYERZETNE
REABBENEHAIELBEE -

FRECEMBSHEANBRENENERRE
EEK B AR ERBEREEER =R
25% (= F —+HF :25%)5t & »

AEE-—HHBRARARBEFERFTH
1b 2 P 15 B 5T 2 B 8 A R % 48,980,000
T AEBZERBYFEF=ZFEHMZNB
ARMBIERE ESHEHAEEAF
BEr*xmEHBEENAEEEEEEMN
A AERRNFEERZ 2 ERIEZ -
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12. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

NEERRSITHRAEMNE

EEMecHFBOT:

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to
and retirement
Directors’ benefits benefit Share-based
fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
A £
He 2E BAEA RER
EZfe RENET AR it PAE &3t
Name of directors BExng RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR%Tn AR®Tr AREBTR ARMTR ARET:R
For the year ended 31 December BEZ-E-)\E
2018 tZAZt-ALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Da RELE 1,043 680 126 1,849 - 1,849
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) EEREAGIR) 1,043 680 106 1,829 - 1,829
Ms. Wang Jianfei THRLtL 666 123 28 817 - 817
Mr. Fung Wai Shing BRERK L& 984 764 15 1,763 - 1,763
Mr. Liu Jinghong (note (iij&ii) 85 4 5% 4 (W 22 i) R (i) 378 281 - 659 - 659
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng BB L& 20 - - 240 - 240
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen ERLE 37 - - 327 - 327
Mr. Xing Zhiying (note (iv)) T & o A (B 3 () 180 = = 180 = 180
Prof. Sha Zhenquan (note (v)) DEREHR(HEWY) 63 - = 63 = 63
4,924 2,528 275 1,721 - 1,721
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12. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

REMUNERATION (conTinuep)

A B IRARMIEE

31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

NEERRESTHRAEME®

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to
and retirement
Directors' benefits benefit Share-based
fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
AR
g 20 EIRRA BER
ESxhe REVER K Nt pANE B
Name of directors ESfH4 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETn
For the year ended 31 December HZ-F -+ &
2017 tZA=t-HLEEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xu Da RELE 812 1,159 36 2,007 - 2,007
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) A & 5t & (F () 916 1353 51 2,320 - 2,320
Ms. Wang Jianfei FalRat 624 383 17 1,024 - 1,024
Mr. Fung Wai Shing (note (i) 5 18 Ak 5% 4 (P 2 Gi)) 627 1,076 15 1,718 192 1,910
Mr. Liu Jinghong (note (i)(ii)) 25 41 5% A (B 2 i) Je (i) 725 597 - 1322 38 1,360
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng FEBLE 240 = 15 255 7 262
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen AAREE 317 - - 317 7 324
Mr. Xing Zhiying MERLE 240 - - 240 7 247
4,501 4,568 134 9,203 251 9,454
Notes: B 5
(i) Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, is also the chief () ARARTEFABLEENTRARAK
executive of the Company. BITHABR -
(i) Mr. Fung Wai Shing and Mr. Liu Jinghong were appointed as executive (i BEKEERISEAEEB T —LtF
directors of the Company with effect from 12 April 2017. MA+-_HREZEARARBINTES -
(i)  Mr. Lin Jinghong resigned as an executive director of the Company on (i) BRALER_ZT-NFHEAMOBEE
4 May 2018. KRARHITES -
(iv) Mr. Xing Zhixing resigned as an independent non-executive director of (ivy MERBREERZ-_ZT-—NFLAZ=-+—H
the Company on 21 September 2018. BHEARRIBIIFRNITES -
(v)  Prof. Sha Zhenquan was appointed as an independent non-executive v, PEREHER=_Z-N\FLAZ=-+—H

director of the Company on 21 September 2018.
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12.

13.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
REMUNERATION (conTinueD)

There were no amounts paid during the year (2017: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment
with the Group, or inducement to join.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include three (2017: four) directors of the Company, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of
remuneration for the year paid to the remaining two (2017: one)
highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

12.

13.

China Qinfa Group Limited #EZZEEEHBR AR
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BEENBRETHAEM 2@

FARARARLERE S I ME
FEBASEREABZRBAHEM
MBREB(ZE—LF:8\)-

EXNTHITEFTIRTEENGT
RMLEYERN —BRERZFALE
EARBREMBRANEKHEEN
HMREM N FZEALTIRZEZA
TRENME -

BERGSREEAEHMH

& & % i

FRA AEERLRESFHZALE
BARRIZ=Z4(ZT—+tHF WME)E
EOREZHFMEI N EXHE12 [
AEBEHME(ZTE—LF: —2)KR
SEHMALTXNZHEMFBOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RZBENEMEF 2,123 1,062
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes & (K i@ FI| 5T 2/ it 2 90 51
2,213 1,113
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13. EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (continuep)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2017: one) individual with the

BE &M

MEBE(CE—LF: —R)

B.EEREREBAEHFM-

m=E AL

highest emoluments are within the following bands: ZEMMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Number of Number of
HKD individuals individuals
BT A¥ A &
1,000,001-1,500,000 2 1

There were no amounts paid during the year (2017: Nil) to the
five highest paid employees in connection with their retirement
from employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments of the five (2017: four) senior managements
of the Group who are not directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were within the following bands:

FR YEAAEREFEHES M
THENEFEAEEETERIRA
FEFMMBRER( T —LF:8)-

EREE NS
BHE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HB1HF
E AEFRE(ZZE—+tF - WEZ)S
BMEBAB(WLIIEARRQRREE) 2 & B

DHAE -

2018 2017

—E-N\&E —E—tF

Number of Number of

HKD individuals individuals
o AE A
500,001-1,000,000 2
1,000,001-1,500,000 2

Of the senior management of the Group, nine, including one
director who was appointed and one director who resigned
(2017: eight, including two directors who resigned and one
director who was appointed) were the directors of the Company,
whose emoluments are included in Note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company and

14.5REZR
SREXREF

BRERBANDERFALRARAE B
1 a8 hﬁ)\ﬂﬂﬁmﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬂ&

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during WmMETFEIEFE
the year.
The calculations of basic earnings per share attributable to BHE_ZT-N\Fk=

ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively are based on

| A,

ZJr*EIJJ:ﬁ&'ZlS A]
AEE(EH&%K@*UE%E@LAT%&#

Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FF R

—t&+ = A
EBREaRA

the following data: Al > °
2018 2017
-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Profit for the year attributable to equity RARIERFEA AEMNLERNRF
shareholders of the Company 1,504,509 3,158,349
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual A Fﬁ DERBBER ZKARFE
subordinated convertible securities & & % 2 9 Ik (BT 5 30(c))
classified as equity (note 30(c)) (4,966) (5,024)
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary SESREABMETAARAQ A
equity shareholders of the Company used ERERFER ARG F AR
in calculating basic earnings per share 1,499,543 3,153,325
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEREABAMALBR
for the purpose of basic earnings per share le] 1 8 2,493,413,985 | 2,493,413,985
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (conminuep)
Diluted earnings per share

The calculations of diluted earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years

14.85REF @
BREBEEER

RE-F-NFR=
A

—tF+=-H

ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively are based on ABREERESENTDDRERNUT
the following data: HIEFE -
2018 2017
- N\& —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary STEEREAXRERFAAARR A
equity shareholders of the Company used TERERHAABGEFARNRH
in calculating basic earnings per share 1,499,543 3,153,325
Add: Distribution saving relating to perpetual il : & F% DERBBER ZKAREKE
subordinated convertible securities classified & & % 2 9 Ik (BT 35 30(c))
as equity (note 30(c)) 4,966 5,024
Adjusted profit for the year attributable to AEEREERNMALRLD
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company L @EXEFE AEIHF IN
used in calculating diluted earnings per share 4% 5 2 & I 1,504,509 3,158,349
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EAREERAMAL AR
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share le] HE 3 8 2,493,413,985 | 2,493,413,985
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings 3t 5t & & iR # 8 & Fl £ 1 57 &
per share:
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities 3k 5& & n] A RR 118,000,000 118,000,000
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary &t % & fx #5% & 7 F7 B % 8 i
shares for the purpose of diluted earnings i% BN
per share 2,611,413,985 | 2,611,413,985
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the computation BHE-_ZT-NFER-F—ttHF+=A

of diluted earnings per share has not assume the exercise the
Company's outstanding share options since the adjusted exercise
prices of these options were higher than the average market
prices of shares for the outstanding period during years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.M% BERRKR®E
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles Vessels  structures construction Total
HWE ETR b3
REF BE  HHRE RE &M EEY EREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Cost BA
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+tF&-f—-H 1,029,604 994,297 47,548 175,541 745,830 1,716,035 1,326,480 6,035,335
Additions NE 2,755 20,536 1,602 15,512 310 - 124,348 165,063
Transfer =8 81,075 152,891 697 12,228 - 231,688 (478,579) -
Disposal of subsidiaries LENE AR - - (783) - - - - (783)
Disposals & - - - (1,758) = - - (1,758)
Written-off HisH (5,505) = - = = - (531) (6,036)
Exchange differences EXER (31) - - (203) (42,013) - - (42,247)
At 31 December 2017 N=—FE—+F+-A=+—H 1,107,898 1,167,724 49,064 201,320 704,127 1,947,723 971,718 6,149,574
Additions NE 11,680 29,086 3,897 35,649 - 67,374 245,184 392,870
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BHEAR - - 162 1,398 - - - 1,560
Transfer i 1,827 - - - - - (1,827) -
Disposals HE (5.815) = = (3,845) (237,803) (12) - (247,475)
Written-off g8 - (657) - - - - (6,229) (6,886)
Exchange differences ERZES 37 - - 186 25,210 - - 25,433
At 31 Decenber 2018 RET-NFFIASEoA ANMSEN 419618 5313 BT854 2015085 12886 6315076
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t5-F—-H (618,416) (655,320) (43,820) (135,921) (403,714) (978,383) (584,968)  (3,420,542)
Charge for the year ERNTE (19,889) (74,395) (3,143) (11,860) (13,675) (36,627) - (159,589)
Accumulated impairment losses B EERZE 2 25t
transferred from assets under HEER
construction (47,157) (79,384) (363) (6,363) - (121,596) 254,863 -
Reversal of impairment losses ~ Jf (BB & @ 459,200 331,303 7,169 37,895 - 922,176 330,105 2,087,848
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMWBR A = = 160 - - _ _ 160
Disposals HE - - - 1,702 - - - 1,702
Written-off ik 718 - - - - - - 718
Exchange differences EXES 31 - - 40 23,824 - - 23,895
At31 December 2017 RZZ-+F+-A=+-H  (225513) (470.79%)  (39997)  (114507)  (393565)  (214,430) - (1,465,808)
Charge for the year ERFE (42,019) (108,924) (2,501) (14,218) (13,905) (81,983) - (263,550)
(Impairment loss)/Reversal of (REBSE),/RESRER
impairment losses 36,632 17,703 240 3,236 (26,284) 50,365 - 81,892
Disposals & 785 - - 3,661 136,466 - - 140,912
Exchange differences ERER (26) - - (86) (15,263) - - (15,375)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\ETZA=+-H (230141  (569,017)  (42.258)  (121,914)  (312,551)  (246,048) - (1,521,929)
Net carrying amounts BERE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+-A=1+—-8 885,486 627,136 10,865 112,794 178,983 1,769,037 1,208,846 4,793,147
At 31 December 2017 R-F-tF+=-A=1-H 882,385 689,928 9,067 86,813 310,562 1,733,293 971,718 4,683,766
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conminuep)

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain items
of plant and buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB864,376,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB860,015,000). The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly
occupy and use the above mentioned properties and therefore
the aforesaid matter does not affect the ownership rights of the
Group over these assets and hence did not have any significant
impact on the Groups financial position as at 31 December 2018.

The Groups property, plant and equipment with net carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,167,451,000 (2017:
RMB1,373,638,000) were pledged for the Group’s borrowings
(note 28), as follows:

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

15.M¥ BEEXE®

AEEYERER-_ZE-—N\F+=
A=+ HBHEEBFEHNARE
864,376,000( = T —tF: AR
860,015,0007C) W& TH/FE REFIEA
MEEZE-ARQFETRALEE
EREEAREREERERA LMY E
At P EEIAEEREB Y Z
EEECHEAERREAEER_F —
NEFE+ZA=+—"BNFERRLE
FRERTE-

AEBEKRmMFELYARE,167,451,000
T(ZZE—+tF: AR#1,373,638,000
TR ME BELIBHEEBLNES
& & (M 7£28) » BT ATk

2018 2017

—E-N\NE| —T—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTR| ARBTT

Plant and buildings WEREF 173,634 179,433
Machinery 1 23 206,658 259,660
Electronic and other equipment B REMEKE 2,166 2,601
Motor Vehicles RE 33,429 37,672
Vessels B8 159,814 310,562
Mining structures RIBEEEY 591,750 583,710
1,167,451 1,373,638
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coninuep) 15.9% BERERKXE=

During the year, with the continuing significant favourable change
in market circumstances in the coal business segment of the
Group, the management performed an impairment assessment
on certain property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights
of cash-generating unit with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB4,556,828,000 and RMB4,250,347,000 respectively (2017:
RMB2,251,729,000 and RMB2,210,910,000 respectively)
in accordance with IAS 36. The management estimated the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units of which
these property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights
have been allocated. The recoverable amounts are higher than
the carrying amounts of these property, plant and equipment
and coal mining rights for the respective cash-generating units
and accordingly, impairment losses of RMB108,176,000 (2017:
RMB2,087,848,000) in relation to property, plant and equipment
of the coal business segment recognised in prior years has been
reversed.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have
been determined based on value in use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on most recent financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period, and
discount rates of 13.20% to 14.30% (2017: 15.0% to 15.8%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated
using an estimated 2.3% (2017: 2.3%) growth rate which do
not exceed the average growth rate for the relevant markets.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include expected
changes in projected sales quantities, unit selling prices ,unit
costs and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

In addition, the Group conducted a review of the Group's assets
in relation to the shipping segment and determined that certain
asset will not generate future benefit to the Group. Accordingly,
impairment loss of approximately RMB26,284,000 has been
recognised in respect of the such asset.
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16. COAL MINING RIGHTS 16. B % 5% 18 52
RMB’'000
AR T T
Cost & 2N
At 1 January 2017, RZE—ttF—H—H"
31 December 2017, —E—+&+-_BF=+—8 -
31 December 2018 —E—N\&E+=-_A=+—8H 4,776,872
Accumulated amortisation Rt BERBELEE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 R—ZETE—tF—-—H—H (2,484,284)
Charge for the year FARNEH (81,678)
Reversal of impairment losses BB B 18 % [l 2,206,456
At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—-—+tF+-_A=+—H (359,506)
Charge for the year SV (167,019)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H (526,525)
Net carrying amounts fREOFE
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-N\FE+A=+—H 4,250,347
At 31 December 2017 R-ZF—+tF+=-H=1+—8H 4,417,366
The balance represents the rights to conduct mining activities in HREERNLAERBREXBZOER -
Shanxi Province. All the mine sites are located on lands in the FTERIGA RS T FEAEEW
PRC to which the Group has no formal title of ownership, hence EEAER AAMEEERNKIER
none of the carrying amount of lease prepayments (see note 17) MeE17) 2 REEREZE T B - L
relate to these lands. The Department of Land Resources of Shanxi AEETEREAASEERRER
Province issued and renewed the mining rights certificates to the EHRBEEEE - AEE K RRERE
Group. Details of the Group's coal mining rights are as follows: WEFEmT:
Coal mining rights Expiry date 1R R BHA
Xingtao Coal Mine 14 October 2020 5[ B “E-FF+ATMA
Fengxi Coal Mine 24 January 2034 BRREE “E=ME-AZ+MWmA
Chongsheng Coal Mine 28 December 2020 SHKRE S s Bl A=
Xinglong Coal Mine 29 November 2019 AR KR —_ZE-hF+—AZThB
Hongyuan Coal Mine 28 December 2020 RERE “E-EE+-A-+N\H
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16. COAL MINING RIGHTS (conminuep) 16. /& I BRTE o)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s coal mining rights with
net carrying amount of approximately RMB4,250,347,000 (2018:
RMB4,417,366,000) were pledged for the Group's borrowings
(note 28).

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the renewal
of mining rights certificates by the relevant government authorities
is highly probable as the Group submit the relevant regulation
documents, fully settle the mineral exploration and mining right
expense and the renewal of the mining rights certificates can be
completed at minimal cost. In addition, with reference to the
legal opinion from an external lawyer engaged by the Group,
the Group will be able to continuously renew the mining rights
and the business licenses of the respective mining subsidiaries
at minimal charges.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, with the continuing
significant favourable change in market circumstances in the coal
business segment of the Group, the management performed an
impairment assessment on coal mining rights of cash-generating
unit with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB4,417,366,000
in accordance with IAS 36. The management estimated the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units of which these
coal mining rights have been allocated. The recoverable amounts
are higher than the carrying amounts of these coal mining
rights for the respective cash-generating units and accordingly,
impairment losses of RMB2,206,456,000 recognised in prior years
been reversed for the year ended 31 December 2017. Particulars
regarding impairment testing are disclosed in note 15.
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31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17. 8 EFA N RIE
The movement of lease prepayment of the Group, being the land AEEB2HEEBRNRENEZ (AN
use rights located in the PRC is as follows: B ERAE AT :
RMB’'000
AR T T
Cost BR A
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+tF—H—8"
31 December 2017 and —E—t+tHF+_A=F+—"HEK
31 December 2018 —2-Nf+=-A=+—-808 | 6,998
Accumulated amortisation E-: &
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—-—tF—H—H (1,925)
Charge for the year FARNEH (140)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—-—+tF+-_A=+—H (2,065)
Charge for the year F A% iE (140)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—+tF+-A=+—H (2,205)
Net carrying amounts REFE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NEFE+=ZA=+—H 4,793
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+tF+-_A=+—H 4,933
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18B.RA—EHELT 2ER
2018 2017
—BE-N\E| —=2—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR| ARBTX
Unlisted investment: FELEMEE :
Unlisted shares, at cost FELTRMD  HEHAE 49,000 49,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and other DR E R EE LK Et 2 M|
comprehensive loss & 1B (2,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss VEREW SR (46,567) (46,567)
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18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (conminuep)

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s associate

at the end of the reporting period:

1. A — B

NE ZEZEw

TREINAEE -—FBERARES
HARMEHS:

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLDH

Principal
Groups activities
Place of effective Held by Held by and place
Name of associate establishment interest the Company a subsidiary  of operation
r5HE ERF oy N TERH
BERNTER FX 37 i B ERER ] ¥E REEHY
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% - 49% Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa") (2017: 49%) (2017: 49%) in the PRC
RFERECGRE)ERBERRA i & 49% 49% K% 3H &
([RIEZRE]) —t 5 (ZB—t%F: B

49%) 49%)

Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic partnership

for the Group for its coal business.

The Group had discontinued recognition of its share of losses of
Tongmei Qinfa since the year ended 31 December 2016 because
its cumulative share of losses in the associate had exceeded its
investment cost less accumulated impairment losses. The amounts
of unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from the
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for year

RABEREER T AKAE
TERE £ -

A # &= %
BERXKEBFDTEANEES

AREBEBEBEE_ZT-—REF+A=
T-BLEFERKLLEBERE S HREK
REEBR DHRERBEARAZZ
BRAEEBED BB ERERARZRG
MEEBER BB E AR HBEE
%EZ$$?&§£ SRR R /NI

and cumulatively, are as follows: R ARBERBO AT :
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET | AREFTL
Unrecognised share of loss of an AEFEEHE—BEHEE QT
associate for the year EEH RERILE D 10,687 6,413
Accumulated unrecognised share of loss 25t {5 — F‘ﬁ &N A BB
of an associate H) oK B 32 &0 26,039 15,352
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19. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

19. i #ZE B 1B

AREEMBRARNRENNBE NS -
ETEERREERABBEFEE-
MTHRYHEHRESBENME HRETER
IR S ER ) DT

2018 2017

—E-_NE| ZFE—+L#F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TT| AREFTIT

Deferred tax assets BEEFIEE E 9,137 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE (1,260,326) (1,178,514)
(1,251,189) (1,178,514)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and the movements thereon during the current and

ATRARAFERBEFEERERDN
TZEERBEE(RB)REES:

prior years:

Depreciation

allowances
Impairment Revaluation in excess of
allowance Revaluation surplus  the related
of trade arising arising from depreciation
and bills from loan business and
receivables restructuring combinations amortisation Total
EkE S HNE EBAH BBAHE
REWRE EREAM EEH HEREH
MHERE ELENER EffES WHERE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBFTRT AR®TE ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R-E—tE—A—H = = (81,832) (123,841) (205,673)
Charged for the year FREH - = (901,314) (71,527) (972,841)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=ZA=+-8H - - (983,146) (195,368)  (1,178,514)
(Charged)/credit for the year ~ FE R (##),/E % 9,137 (116,571) 17,001 17,758 (72,675)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+—H 9,137 (116,571) (966,145) (177,610)  (1,251,189)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB904,708,000 (2017: RMB2,683,736,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit stream. The tax loss will expire within five years.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20RMIBARIZRE
As at 31 December 2018, the Company has direct and indirect RZE-NE+_A=+—HB XA
interests in the subsidiaries, all of which are private companies. AR TEH B AR EA B & EE
The particulars of the major subsidiaries are set out below: wm FMENBARARIARMARA - ZE

TEMBARNFRHIWT

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEEGLH
Place of Group's Held by Issued and  Principal activities
establishment/ effective The Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
B/ N ] B A2 H == NG| BRTR TEEH
NAER L 3t B ERER 58 58 BR/EMEX REEHE
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - USD4,801/  Investment holding
(Qinfa Investment) Islands (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) USD50,000 in the PRC
FEREARAT KERLES 100% 100% = 4801% 7L/ REER
(2&KE]) (Z2—t%F: (ZE—+%F: 50,000 7T B
100%) 100%)
Hong Kong Qinfa International Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal and
Trading Limited (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) N/A investment holding
in the PRC
EAEREERES Bk 100% = 100% 689,635,000 7T,/ BRREER
ARAA (Z2—t&: (Z2—t%: TEA REEK
100%) 100%) i
Qinhuangdao Development The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Zone Qinfa Trading Co., (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMB68,000,000 in the PRC
Ltd. ©
ZEEHERERE S h H 100% = 100%  AK#68,000,0007,/ B E
BRAFO (ZZ—t%: (Z2—t%: A K % 68,000,000 7 HE
100%) 100%)
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., The PRC 100% - 100% RMBS5,000,000/ Sales of coal
Ltd. @ (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 in the PRC
KEZEESHRAAF0 B 100% = 100% A K #5,000,0007T,/ B E
(ZZ—t%: (Z2—+F: A K #5,000,000 7T mE
100%) 100%)
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., The PRC 100% - 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
Ltd. @ (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) HKD315,000,000 in the PRC
KEERYRERAFO G 100% = 100% 315,000,000 70,/ RREE
(—E—+&: (ZB—+&: 315,000,000 7T Bl
100%) 100%)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuep) 20 AMIB AR 2B’ E®W

Proportion of ownership interest

FEREERLS
Place of Group's Held by Issued and  Principal activities
establishment/ effective The Held by fully paid-up/ and place of

Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital operation

3/ 5 AKHE HAAR HKEAA BEAR TEER

AR ERE B3 b B BRER EE EE Br/EAMER REEHE

Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Co., The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment holding
Ltd. ¥ (Shuozhou Guangfa) (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMB 10,000,000 in the PRC

PHTERRFREBERARO i 100% - 100%  AK#10,000,0007T,/ RkERK
(T EE]) (Z2—t&: (EF—E%: A K #10,000,000 7T i

100%) 100%)

Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group The PRC 80% = 80% RMB300,000,000/ Investment holding
Co., Ltd. " (Huameiao Energy) (2017: 80%) (2017: 80%) RMB300,000,000 in the PRC

LWREEXREREEERAA0 B 80% - 80% AR #300,000,0007T,/ REEK
(=332 (Z2—t&: (ZZ—tF:  AK™¥300,000,0007T H B

80%) 80%)

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB 129,590,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., (2017: 80%) (2017: 80%) RMB129,590,000  operation in the PRC
Ltd. @ (Xingtao Coal)

LWEAAHTFEEZEXRAREX B 80% - 80% AR 129,590,0007C,/ RrRARREE
BRARO(HEEEE]) (ZZ2—t&: (ZB—+1%F: A R #129,590,000 70 HE

80%) 80%)

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., (2017: 80%) (2017: 80%) RMB32,000,000  operation in the PRC
Ltd. 9 (Fengxi Coal)

LAPHFEEEXREARE B 80% - 80%  AK#32,000,0007/ BrRARLEE
BERARO(EEEE] (ZB—t1F: (Z2—+F: AR #32,000,0007 B E

80%) 80%)

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 80% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal (2017: 80%) (2017: 80%) RMB107,290,000  operation in the PRC
Co., Ltd. ©
(Chongsheng Coal)

LWAANFEREXREARE HE 80% = 80% AR 107,290,0007T,/ BRARREE
BRARVISAKED (Z2—1#%: (Z2—1#F: AR ¥ 107,290,000 7T B E

80%) 80%)
Xinglong Coal © The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
FEEEO E 100% - 100% A K# 100,000,000t/ RRARKEE
(Z2—1#%: (Z2—t&: A K ¥ 100,000,000 7T B E

100%) 100%)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuen) 20 RMIBLRRAZRE®
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREERLA

Place of Group's Held by Issued and  Principal activities
establishment/ effective The Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
B /G it X5HE B A2 F HKEAA BRTR TEER
AR BB B3 b B BERER BE BE Br/EMER REERE
Hongyuan Coal © The PRC 100% = 100% RMB 100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
RERE0 Sl 100% - 100% AR #100,000,0007C,/ BRERARREE
(ZZ—tF: (ZZ—t%:  AR#¥100,000,0007 hE

100%) 100%)
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD50,000/  Goods transport and
("Super Grace") Islands (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Super Grace Enterprises Limited RERUES 100% - 100% 50,000% 7t/ HmEHRMR
(TSuper Grace ) (ZT—t&: (ZT—t&F: 50,0003 T NREMRBE
100%) 100%) 2
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/  Goods transport and
("Oriental Wise") Islands (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Oriental Wise Group Limited RERTES 100% = 100% 1571/ HmERRIR
(TOriental Wise ) (Z2—t&F: (ZT—t&F: 50,000 % 7 AREMEE
100%) 100%) 23
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% UsD1/ Goods transport and
Islands (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
Qinfa Chartering Limited KBELHS 100% = 100% 1%/ HmERRNR
(Z2—+F: (Z2—+F: 50,0003 Tt AREMEE
100%) 100%) i
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% UsD1/ Goods transport and
Islands (2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited KERUES 100% = 100% 1%2x/ HmEHRMR
(T2 1% (Z2—+F: 50,000% 7T AREMEE
100%) 100%) 2
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Goods transport and
(2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) N/A logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
EEFEMBEERAA B 100% = 100% 1000087/ HREGRWRE
(Z2—t#: (ZE—t%: TEA UREMBE
100%) 100%) 2%
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conminueo) 20. RKT BB & Al 2 R E o)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREERLS
Place of Group's Held by Issued and  Principal activities
establishment/ effective The Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
3/ 5 AKHE HAAR HKEAA BEAR TEXH
AEER B3 b B BRER EE EE Br/EAMER REEHE
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/  Goods transport and
(2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) N/A  logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
Perpetual Goodluck Limited EH 100% - 100% 1,000 75,/ BARESRDT
(ZB—t%: (Z2—tF: TiER UREMEE
100%) 100%) H
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd.? The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/  Goods transport and
(2017: 100%) (2017: 100%) RMB100,000,000 logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
HKEREMBEBERAFD HE 100% = 100%  AR#%5000000/  HREERDE
(ZB—tF: (Z2—+F: A R %100,000,000 70 AR EMEE
100%) 100%) i
Ordos City Lianhang Trading The PRC 100% - 100% RMB1,000,000/  Sales of coal in PRC
Co., Ltd" (2017: 0%) (2017: 0%) RMB1,000,000
SRLHETEITES B 100% = 100% A R #1,000,0007T,/ RRHEE
BRRA (ZB—t1F: (Z2—tF: A K #1,000,0007 B
0%) 0%)
Qingdao Qinfa Energy Ltd" The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/  Sales of coal in PRC
(2017: 0%) (2017: 0%) RMB 100,000,000
EERERRERARO B 100% = 100% AR #100,000,0007C,/ RRHEE
(ZB—t1F: (Z2—+F: A R %100,000,000 70 B
0%) 0%)
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(i)  These entities were established in the PRC as domestic companies.

(i)  These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings
are secured by the Group’s equity interest in Huameiao Energy,
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal,
Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental
Wise (note 28). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the borrowings
of Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the Group, are secured by
the Group’s equity interest in Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading
and Transportation Co., Ltd (“Yangyuan Gutotong”). As at 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of net assets of Yangyuan
Guotong before any inter-company elimination amounted to
approximately RMB20,898,000 (2017: RMB20,741,000).

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

The following tables list out the financial information relating to
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng Coal, subsidiaries
of the Company which have material non-controlling interest
("NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.
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Xingtao Coal 5B 1R %
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR| AR®TT
As at 31 December R+=—BA=+—8
NCI percentage FE 12 PR HE = L 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREEE 4,164,557 4,223,452
Current assets TE B E 2,856,367 3,613,333
Current liabilities mRBAEE (3.856,798)| (5,131,617)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (698,567) (952,792)
Net assets BEEFE 2,465,559 1,752,376
Carrying amount of NCI EERERREE 483,546 340,909
During the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+t—HILEE
Revenue I z8 502,949 431,911
Reversal of impairment loss on property, %% - WE k&R B 2R EEE
plant and equipment £ o] - 512,145
Reversal of impairment loss on coal HIRERERE 2R EEBEREE
mining rights - 1,350,923
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEE2EWKAZE
for the year 713,183 1,316,031
Profit allocated to NCI 7 BC &= 3F 2 AR R & A9 % A 142,637 263,206
Cash flows generated from/(used in) ESEBRE (ME)ESEE
operating activities 379,156 (7,077)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEETHBEESRE (94,319) (39,408)
Cash flows generated from financing RMEETHAEREEE
activities 283,994 45,930
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Fengxi Coal B K
2018 2017
—E-NE| —ZZET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR| AR®T T
As at 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
NCI percentage FE 12 PR HE = L 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,072,250 2,058,051
Current assets mE B E 895,494 621,831
Current liabilities mE A& (1,672,032) (1,553,969)
Non-current liabilities B EE (287,197) (293,422)
Net assets BEEFHE 1,008,515 832,491
Carrying amount of NCI JEER R REE 201,703 166,498
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+t—HLEE
Revenue W = 396,129 298,202
Reversal of impairment loss on property, %% - WE k&R 2R EEE
plant and equipment £ 0] 108,176 601,234
Reversal of impairment loss on coal HIRERERE 2 REBERELD
mining rights = 200,614
Profit and total comprehensive income FARARMNEZ2EYALRE
for the year 176,024 582,984
Profit allocated to NCI D EFEZEREZRN R 35,205 116,597
Cash flows generated from operating LEFFHMERERE
activities 61,898 16,373
Cash flows used in investing activities KEETHMBEREESRE (62,118) (16,757)
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Chongsheng Coal SEHBEE
2018 2017
—E-NE| —ZET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR| AR®TT
As at 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
NCI percentage FE 12 PR HE = L 20% 20%
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,027,949 2,100,279
Current assets TE B E 883,753 1,049,439
Current liabilities mE A& (1,522,763) (1,749,221)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (273,224) (290,364)
Net assets BEEFE 1,115,715 1,110,133
Carrying amount of NCI FERERKREE 223,143 222,026
During the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+t—HILEE
Revenue W 25 243,632 286,220
Reversal of impairment loss on property, %% - WE k&R B 2R EEE
plant and equipment £ o] - 678,757
Reversal of impairment loss on coal HIRERERE 2R EEBEREE
mining rights - 424,688
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEE2EWKAZE
for the year 5,581 931,446
Profit allocated to NCI SBEE IEERERE S A A 1,117 186,289
Cash flows generated from operating KEFHMERERE
activities 21,706 12,246
Cash flows used in investing activities KEETHMBERESRE (21,255) (12,404)
During the year, there were no dividend paid to the non- RER I E R IFEBRRRIK % E W
controlling shareholders (2017: Nil). RE(ZE—LF:8)-
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21.

22.

INVENTORIES 21. 7 &
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+ £
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Finished goods 2k 58,719 95,029
Fuel A 3,131 4,126
61,850 99,155
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's inventories with carrying RZFE-—NF+ZA=+—H K%
amount of approximately RMB34,543,000 (2017: RMB2,896,000) BREENHARK34543,000c (= F
were pledged for the Group’s borrowings (note 28). —+tF: AR¥2,89,000L) 2 FEE
AL BEEEEEM B F28) -

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 2.BWEZFREAREREE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-\% C—®-N\E| ZT—t%
+-—A=+-—A8 —-B—-B|t-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T AR®B T ARE T
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SZENEREE 567,462 1,034,231 1,034,231
Less: allowance for credit loss W EEEBEG (253,734) (257,499) (251,347)
313,728 776,732 782,884
Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 REME R BERELERFIRE -2
January 2018 was made to recognise additional ECLs on trade EEHRZ-ZZE-—NF-—A—B80HNA
and bills receivable (see note 3.1). BURZERESRBENEREED

BINTAMEEBEB(RME3) -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLEScontinueD)

Ageing analysis

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected by the Group's
management to be recovered within one year from the end of
the reporting period. The Group's exposure to credit risk related
to trade, bills and other receivables are disclosed in note 33(b)(i).

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance
for credit losses) of the Group is as follows:

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

2.ERESFREREWREE®

AR R 2 AT

AEBERERAAERKE XA
AEREBESRBEHRES —F R
Yo lm o 7K £R [ B E B B R IRE B B0
RUEZEEREMEKRABERNEER
2\ B 1 PR 5E 33()(i) % BB

AEEMEYRE S KELEREEG
REEBRBEBREINOT

2018 2017

—E-NE| ZE—+F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR| AR T T

Within 2 months N & A A 126,600 339,148
Over 2 months but within 6 months ME A A EBRBENEA 3,755 350,501
Over 6 months but within 1 year NERNREERNBB—F 2,326 1,610
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FLAEEIBBMRF 56,695 3,509
Over 2 years (note) A i@ M E (M 5%) 124,352 88,116
313,728 782,884

The ageing is counted from the date when trade and bills
receivables are recognised.

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables aged over 2 years amounting
to approximately RMB119,959,000 (2017: RMB87,664,000) were due from
customers which the Group has trade and other payable balances with the
same amount as at the end of the reporting period. Based on past experience
and repayment history of the trade debtors, the directors of the Company
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances.

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from O to 60 days (2017:
0 to 60 days) depending on customers relationship with the Group, their
creditworthiness and past settlement record.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continuen) 2.BWESFREREREE®
Impairment of trade receivables EWE S RERE
The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables BHE_T—+tF+_A=+—RHILF
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: ERWESRERERGELESHUT :
RMB’000
AR T T
As at 1 January 2017 R-_E—+tF—H—H 401,829
Reversal of impairment losses B E B 18 R E (178,563)
Impairment losses recognised ERRNBREESE 31,127
Exchange differences ME H &= 58 (3,046)
As at 31 December 2017 R_E—tF+-_A=+—H 251,347
The above provision for impairment of trade receivables Eat e E B IR R (B B & 1 Bt @ Rl
represented provision for individually and collectively impaired AR BEERE S XEBENEELD
trade receivables of approximately RMB251,347,000. The A R 251,347,000t ° & Bl & & /9 &
individually impaired receivables mainly related to customers who WREBFZERNRBEZE_ZT -t F +
did not make any settlement during the year ended 31 December A=+ BLEFERKREBEBEEN
2017. Impairment losses of approximately RMB178,563,000 ER2BEFPEB BREBEHARK
were reversed as the respective impaired trade receivables being 178,563,0007T 2 & [l - Jh B3 X iB £ F
impaired in prior years had been settled during the year ended EERBEZZEREEKE S REBERE
31 December 2017. E_ET—LtF+-_A=+—HLEFE
BE e
Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired VYEBEZEREZREREKEE
The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables that are RZE—+tF+_A=+—RILEME
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as Al HBERERENERE S HIER
at 31 December 2017 are as follows: FERERERRESTWT :
2017
—E—tHF
RMB’'000
AR T T
Neither past due nor impaired I #% 8 2R SR (B 559,098
Less than 1 year past due B DR — 4 132,222
Over 1 year past due BHA S —F 91,564
782,884
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (conrinuep)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

(continued)

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Details of credit policy impairment assessment of trade and bills

receivable for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 33.
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e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

2.ERESFREREWREE®

TEBEZCEBREZREARERRE

(%)

R—ZE—+EFE+_A=+—8" &
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23. AR RIER H b FE WK IE

2018 2017

—E-NE| ZE—+ £

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET | ARET L

Other deposits and prepayments (note (i) H #f 3% & & 38 {F 7% 38 (B 5% (i) 332,855 235,869
Amounts due from non-controlling JFE U IE 12 A% AR BR 3R OIE (BT & i)

shareholders (note (ii)) 322,703 322,307

Other non-trade receivables HMIEE H EWKIE 81,102 68,986

736,660 627,162

Less: Allowance for credit losses (note (iii)) & : {5 & & 18 8 & (M =% (i) (401,479) (397,667)

335,181 229,495

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Prepayments for purchase of coal and transportation fee amounting
to approximately RMB158,235,000 (2017: RMB130,940,000) and
RMB42,038,000 (2017: RMB23,915,000) respectively are included in
other deposits and prepayments.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao Energy
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of approximately
RMB322,703,000 (2017: RMB322,307,000) were fully impaired in prior
years.

Allowance for credit losses of prepayments and other receivables are
as follows:

(i)

(iii)

BB R TE A FIE 4 A K #158,235,000
(=T —+ 4 : AR%130,940,0007T) &
B BRI RIELH ARKAL2,038,0007T(=
T —F: AR¥239150007T)E 5 A
Hthize RTEMNRIE -

FEWEZTRBEREERBERE R &
BH 2EREBRTERB R —
NF+—_A=Z+ B EEEHAR
#322,703,000L( =T — t F: AR
322,307,000 ERBAEFE2ERE -

BNREREMELRECEBERES
e

2018 2017

A —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR T T

Other deposits and prepayments Hihiz& REMNKIE 36,881 36,062
Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders & U JF 4% % IR 38 30 18 322,703 322,307
Other non-trade receivables HihIE 8 5 E W RIE 41,895 39,298
401,479 397,667
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23. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

The movement in provision for impairment of prepayments and other
receivables during the year ended 31 December 2017 was as follows:

23.

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

FEARERH M ERIE®

B &E - (B8)

vy BEZE=-Z—+tFE+-_A=+—BLEE
T8 1 308 K H e UK BB 2R (B B e
T :

2017

—E—tF

RMB'000

AR T T

At 1 January 2017 R=ZZT—tF—HA—H 405,084
Impairment losses recognised 2R 2R EEE 500
Reversal of impairment losses recognised B R EEE R (6,909)
Uncollectible amounts written-off W85 S AT e B & 58 (720)
Exchange differences EHEHE (288)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF+=_A=+—H 397,667
As at 31 December 2017, management regularly reviews the aging and RZZE—+tE+A=+—H EEBETHR

credit quality of the Group’s prepayment and other receivables. The
above provision for impairment of prepayments and other receivables
represents provision for individually impaired prepayments and other
receivables of approximately RMB397,667,000 with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB397,667,000. The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to prepayments and other receivables which the directors
of the Company consider that the chances of collection/utilisation of
the outstanding amounts are remote.

Details of impairment assessment of prepayments and other receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33.

24.PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2018, no bank deposit was pledged to banks
to secure general credit facilities (2017: RMB123,000).

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of approximately
RMB43,000 (2017: RMB171,000) were restricted for use in
relation to the litigation proceedings as disclosed in note 37(a)(iv).
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24,

HASEEBANRAREMERKEZ Rk &
EEEE - bt A A R H s e W R IE 2 R
BEREBEEREENAR®%397,667,00075T 2 @
BB B B TE A SRR R E R BOGR IR BB A
R % 397,667,000 7T - f& 5l & B 2 F& Y 5K 1B x
ZHARAEETRA/WEEHHARRE S HE
e RENENRBEREMEKRFEARR -

HEZ_Z-—NF+ZA=+—-HILEFEZHA
3R IE B E b R U R IR R B A S B E IR
B FE33

EEBARERZIRHFER
R—_E—NE+_A=+—H ¥ &
RITHFER(ZE—+HF: AR¥ 123,000
TTEETFFRITIEA—REELR-

R-_E-N&+-A=+—8 87
TEHRHANREAL3,00T(ZF — L F:
A R #171,0007T) B M 7% 37(a)iv) BT #
BRFARFMERGIER-
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that the
probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant
and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

B.BERBETEEY

RE-F—\F+-A=+—ALE
KR E B B R AT B 1T 3P
- ERREFIRTEOOBE Y
TEA - B MRS R B AR

EEBETERRETAHHZ —F —
NF+ZA=+—"BIEFENFBSH
IR BT FE33 ©

REMETBZ2REZHER

TRHAMASEREBRELTH AR
28 ERASLIRcEH KA
BEPHzBEERRERELG ML KA
RATRESRURAKEESRARE
MERIBRABELDMERERE

financing activities. mBeE-
Borrowings Total
R st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTET
At 1 January 2017 R=F—t%—A—H 6043271 6,043,271
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREZEE:
Proceeds from borrowings EERSRE 791,131 791,131
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE (788,517) (788,517)
_________ 2014 . 2614
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F+_A=+—H 6,045,885 6,045,885
Changes from financing cash flows: MEREREZSE:
Proceeds from borrowings EBEEMRESHIEA 639,769 639,769
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (938,860) (938,860)
(299,091 (299,091)
Non-cash changes: FESEF
Extinguishment of other borrowings ENEHEREEEEMES
upon loan restructuring (4,027,188) (4,027,188)
Recognition of new other borrowings EREHEERATEMES
upon loan restructuring 2,704,363 2,704,363
Interest charge on unwinding of WEFR 2 E R E9)
discounts (note 9) 69,423 69,423
At 31 December 2018 NR—_E-—NEF+_HA=+—H 4,493,392 4,493,392

196



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A
Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R

26.

27.

TRADE PAYABLES
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26. B4 B 5 KB

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group is as follows: AEBENEBESIRENRETOT :
2018 2017
—E-NF| ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET | ARE T
Within 1 year —F R 31,519 295,919
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FALETBBEMRF 3 345,694
Over 2 years M F LA B 530,932 308,337
562,454 949,950
OTHER PAYABLES 27. EbEES RIE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\E T —+F
+-A=+-AR -A—-B|+tZ-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T ARBTIT
Current B &
Accrued expenses FE SHH% 503,960 929,302 929,302
Contract liabilities (note (i) & 48 &) 66,479 12,298 =
Amount due to ultimate Fﬁﬁ—ﬁ” A% A% 3R 3 IE
controlling shareholder 501 221 221
Amount due to ultimate JE B SR P R A B RIR
holding company 2,165 2,196 2,196
Amount due to an associate FE N — H&* SN 360,694 57,984 57,984
Amounts due to directors ENESED 796 1,446 1,446
Amount due to a related party R —4 E@?@?\??xlﬁ 141 - -
Receipts in advance from customers % 8 & F 78 Jt LA 25,386 17,261 29,559
Other payables (note (ii) H fth F& 5 3% 38 (BT 3% (i) 1,687,848 1,745,281 1,745,281
2,647,970 2,765,989 2,765,989
Non-current 3F BN H8
Other payables (note (ii)) H b & £ 5% 38 (BF 5 Gi)) 47,155 174,603 174,603
2,695,125 2,940,592 2,940,592
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27. OTHER PAYABLES (conTinuep)

27. E b EES R IE

Notes:

(@)

B &E

(i)

31 December 1 January 31 December

Contract liabilities EHAE 2018 2018 2017
= A —2-NF —FtF

+=-—A=+—H —A—B| +t=ZA=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®B T AR®B T ARBT T

Sale of coal HixHE 66,479 12,298 =

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using cumulative effect method
and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018. Upon the adoption
of IFRS 15, amounts previously included as “Receipts in advance from
customers” were reclassified to contact liabilities. All contract liabilities
are expected to be recognised as income within one year.

The Group typically received 100% payment from customers for sales
of coal before the customers obtain the control of coal products which
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised upon the pass of controls.

Movements in contract liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2018
are as follows:

AEEDERRFEZEEIN T RABK
BB EEYESREIFIER -F— N
F— A - BOH Y& BRAE R
WELERAFISHER  EAIGFAITREER
BUERBINEEERDERGDNEE -
EAHNEBERHN —FAEER/NK
A °

AEBBERE P RESKRKE @ZH &
AT E Bt AR 38 & M ENE P 100% B9 -4 3R
EMRENREBELEGNAE BEE
Ugr 2 70 422 1l A X B T R

HE-FT—\F+ZA=+—HBLFE
MEHNBEBEEIHMT

Total

Foly

RMB'000

AR¥BT T

At 1 January 2018 RZZF—-—N\F—H—H 12,298
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract REVEFHAA N EENC AR IS

liabilities at the beginning of the year (12,298)
Forward sale deposit and instalment received during FRARRHNEHEEERE RS BER

the year 66,479

As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 66,479

(i)  Construction payables of approximately RMB958,073,000 (2017: (i) EMENRELREENREERENAR

RMB1,122,937,000) and payables related to mineral exploration
and mining rights of approximately RMB382,978,000 (2017:
RMB480,763,000) are included in other payables.

The amounts due to ultimate holding company, ultimate
controlling shareholder, an associate, directors of the Company
and a related party are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
term of repayment.
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(iii) Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 4.86% to 7.28%
(2017: 4.75% to 7.01%) per annum as at 31 December 2018.

199

28. BORROWINGS 28. 16 &
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 ARBTR| ARBTT
Bank loans RITE X
- Secured - A& (i) 296,033 788,825
- Unsecured - EAK R (ii) 961,370 1,017,222
1,257,403 1,806,047
Other borrowings HiEE (iii) 3,235,989 4,239,838
Total borrowings BEE#EE 4,493,392 6,045,885
Notes: Bt 5E
(i) Secured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% t0 6.72% i M=ZFT—N\F Jr A=+—H B&H#A
(2017: 4.35% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. WITERIRFRNEN F435%£6.72%(=
Z—+ i 4.35% % 7.28%) &M 8 o
(i)  Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to iy R=—F—NF ‘f’ A=+—H EEH
7.00% (2017: 4.35% to 7.20%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. RITERRE R E SN F4.75% £7.00%(=
Tt F:435%%7.20%)F B e

i)y RZE-—NF+ZA=+—80 ' Effx
ERERNENF486%ET28% (= F —
+E 475%E7.01%) 5t B °
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28. BORROWINGS (continueD) 28.

As at 31 December 2018, borrowings of the Group were
repayable as follows:

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZEEBEFRA A
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FF R

BEEe
R—ZE—NF+_A=+—"HBH K&
BEEMERBRWOT :

2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR| ARBTE

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHZREKR
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FUAEBTBRMSF
Over 2 years but within 5 years MEAELEEINBBAF

1,987,770 6,045,885

332,774 =

2,172,848 —
2,505,622 =

4,493,392 6,045,885

Bank loans amounting to approximately RMB260, 100,000 (2017:
RMB1,499,842,000) in aggregate due for repayment after one
year which contain cross default clauses that demands immediate
repayment when there is default in any bank loans repayment
had become repayable on demand and hence are classified as
current liabilities.

Borrowings due for repayment, based on the scheduled repayment
terms set out in the loan agreements and without taking into
account the effect of any repayment on cross default clause are

BERXNEBENBEREREEMETE
REREBENBYUNEZENR —F%
IHEENBRTERREAHNARK
260,100,000 (=T —+ F: A R ¥
1,499,842,0007T)E Xk B E KB & -
.lﬁt/\*ét_’r//lbiﬁg{ °

RIEE R W& Fﬁ%@ﬁlJE"JquiMf%fi% :
TEREABARINENGREEN
TE OINHEENEEDT

l

as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\NE| ZDE—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T | ARETT
Within 1 year or on demand —FE RN EK 1,727,670 4,546,043
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F U FETNBBEMRF 524,274 1,352,342
Over 2 years but within 5 years MEAELETBBAF 2,241,448 147,500
4,493,392 6,045,885

Interest payables on the borrowings are included in other
payables.
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28. BORROWINGS (continueD)

As at 31 December 2018, a secured bank loan and other borrowings
of approximately RMB148,534,000 (2017: RMB641,326,000)
and RMB601,828,000 (2017: RMB2,164,386,000) respectively,
that have been past due and due for immediate payment. These
borrowings carried interest at rates ranging from 4.86% to 7.28%
(2017: 4.75% to 6.83%) per annum. These borrowings are
secured by coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB528,104,000 and
RMB120,827,000 as at 31 December 2018 respectively (2017:
Coal mining rights, property, plant and equipment and inventories
with RMB1,392,654,000, RMB221,627,000 and RMB2,896,000
respectively).

The above-mentioned borrowings are also secured by Fortune
Pearl International Limited’s (Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding
company of the Company) equity interest in the Company and
the Group’s equity interest in Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal,
Hongyuan Coal, Super Grace and Oriental Wise and guaranteed
by the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Company, related
parties and Mr. Xu, the controlling shareholder. In addition, no
bank deposit (2017: RMB171,000) was restricted for use as a
result of the bank borrowings were not renewed or rolled over
upon maturity.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, several banks assigned
their bank loans due from the Group amounting to approximately
RMB4,239,838,000, interest and penalty interest due from the
Group amounting to approximately RMB490,089,000 to asset
management companies in the PRC.
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28. 8 B

R—ZE-—NE+_A=+—80" &
RETEXRLREMEESNOAEAR
#5148,534,000(—ZE—+F: AR
641,326,0007T) & A R ¥601,828,000 7T
(ZF—tF: AK%2,164,386,0007T)
EaBr AR - ZEEEEN
T486%E728% (- T —+F:475%
F683%)MFMNEFENE R Z2F
—NF+=-_A=+—H %Z&EEBEH
BREE D A4 A A K ®528,104,000 7T
& AR #120,827,000 7T 2 K& &k £ & #E
NEME BEEEKB ZZT —tF:
2Bl A AR 1,392,654,000T ~ AR
221,627,0007T & A K % 2,896,000 7T 2
HRETERE DX BEAREBEARRE
B)EER -

FABEETHERBEBEERAR(E
Bl AR ZHREIERAADRARQ A
CHREARAEEREAKE HE
% - BRI ¥ - Super Grace X Oriental
Wise iR #EEHRF - TR AQF AR
RZETHBRAR BEHFRZERRE
RBREEEER LI BEBRITER
(ZZE—+F: AE¥171,0007T) A R
WITEERRIPHEESERFMH
B 1l 55 A o

HE_ZTZ—+tH8+-_A=+—81t
FE - BTHERITHEERKAEENIR
TE XY AR ®A4,239,838,0007T M &
FURAEBNFINERITHEHARKE
490,089,000 TE#EETHHEEEE R
ﬁ}o
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28. BORROWINGS (conminuep) 28. 8 B

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
the Settlement Agreement with an asset management company
in the PRC, to reduce the amounts of outstanding bank loans
assigned by two banks and the relevant interest and penalty
interest amounting to approximately RMB4,027,188,000 and
RMB582,028,000 in total respectively. The management of the
Group considers that the terms of the Settlement Agreement are
substantially different as the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms discounted using the original effective
interest rate is different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
more than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Therefore,
the Group derecognised the original borrowings outstanding
and recognised new borrowings measured at fair value as at the
date of extinguishment. The difference between the carrying
amount of the borrowings derecognised and the fair value of
the new borrowings recognised amounting to approximately
RMB1,904,853,000 is recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Settlement Agreement contained a default clause which
the Group will be required to repay the outstanding balance of
the original borrowings and interest payable of approximately
RMB4,027,188,000 and RMB582,028,000 respectively in the
event of default. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that there is no event of default as at the end of the reporting
period.
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BHEzE—_ZT—-—NF+_A=Z=+—BIL*F
E - AEEETHE -—HEEETRE QA
Y —MEERE UERMmBERT
FTEEREERTERLABAA AR
SR A HED R K AR 4027,188,000
T & A B #582,028,0007T ° AN £ @ &
BERE BEBZHERRKTE
REAEREBEFERANABRERF X
Eﬁiﬁiumiiﬁfﬁgﬁi%ilﬂg{fﬁ%—riﬁ
ERENEHFHRREMBEEZRI10% 4
M ERERERUABREEER SR
BERERTSBREEARERE At
AEERIERERREEEBE LR
BREEERAHBERERAABNENT
BEE- ERIEREERAERD ®
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28. BORROWINGS (continueD)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain banks assigned
their bank loans, interests and penalty interests due from the
Group amounting to approximately RMB543,314,000 in total
and RMB112,023,000 in total to certain asset management
companies in the PRC. As at the end of the reporting period, the
terms of these assigned loans remained unchanged. The Group
is still in the process of negotiating with the asset management
companies to renew the terms of the loans assigned.

The Group's total borrowings are secured by the following assets

28. 8 B

2 E—NF+-_A=+—H1
FE - BTETHEERAEBH
FMERXIFBRBRTHDAR

R1TE &
#543,314,0007T LA K 4

AAHMARE

112,023,000t ETHEETEEE
BRA-BEREHK
FHERERE T - AEENDEE SR
ZEBEEEBEARBRET UNEEAR

HEE RN

R = 1o
MEXHEZRE

AEBEZEEREATIAEEEE

of the Group: YE K47 -
2018 2017
—E-NEFE| ZFE—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 7 AR TR AR T T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENLEKH 15 1,167,451 1,373,638
Coal mining rights FE R BR T 16 4,250,347 4,417,366
Inventories TE 21 34,543 2,896

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's total borrowings
are also secured by other receivables of a related company of
which Mr. Xu is the shareholder, a property held by Mr. Xu,
Fortune Pearl’s equity interest in the Company and the Group’s
equity interest in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou
Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise. As at 31 December
2018, total borrowings of approximately RMB4,493,692,000
(2017: RMB6,045,885,000) were guaranteed by the Company,
certain subsidiaries of the Company, related parties and/or Mr.
Xu (note 36(b)).
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29. ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 29.FEIREEEH
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+ £
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR| ARBTT
At 1 January n—HF—H 105,280 96,458
Interest charge on unwinding of FEFRRZAERX
discounts (note 9(ii)) (BT 3E 9(ii)) 9,185 8,822
At 31 December Nt+=—_A=+—H 114,465 105,280
30. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 30.EX -fBERERE
(a) Movements in components of equity ) EEHoEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEEERH OGN BHIREAR
each component of the Groups consolidated equity is set out in WEESHINGEEEREH K -
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Share capital (b) AR A
No. of shares Amount
[ -]
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each BEREEIOCETNEAER RMB’000
AR T
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December R—ZT—tF—-—H—H"
and 31 December 2018 —E—tF+ZA=1+—H
RZE-NFEF+ZA=+—H 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares,issued and fully paid EER CRITRHAE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December R-ZT—tF—-—H—8H"
and 31 December 2018 —E—+tF+ZA=1+—H
F—Z-NE+ZHA=+—H 2,493,413,985 211,224
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30. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)

(c) Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued convertible securities
to Fortune Pearl with a principal value of HKD194,700,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB157,872,000). The direct
transaction costs attributable to the convertible securities
amounted to approximately RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option of the holder
of convertible securities into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion price
of HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the Company (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments). While the convertible securities confer a
right to receive distributions at 3% per annum, the Company
may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution pursuant
to the terms of the convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or 50% of the
principal amount of the convertible securities each time, on any
distribution payment date at the face value of the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible securities to be redeemed
plus 100% or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions accrued
to such date.

As the convertible securities have no contractual obligation to
repay its principal nor to pay any distributions, they do not meet
the definition for classification of a financial liabilities under
IAS 32. As a result, the whole instrument is classified as equity,
and respective distributions if and when declared are treated as
equity dividends.

The Group had elected to defer distribution payments for the
year ended 31 December 2018 of HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,966,000) (2017:HKD5,841,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB5,204,000)).
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30. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)
(d) Deficit

(i)

(if)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group includes: (i) the
premium arising from the issue of new shares in prior years; (ii)
the expense incurred in connection with issuance of new shares
in prior years; (iii) dividends declared and paid in prior years; and
(iv) amount transferred from share-based compensation reserve
upon exercise of share options.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares were allotted and issued
to the Creditor by capitalisation of part of the Payables. The
excess of the fair value of shares issued totalling HKD33,325,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB27,822,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares issued was credited
to the share premium account, after deducting the issuing
expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries of the Company
and the amount of share capital of the Company transferred
and issued to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire equity
interests in all members of the Group as part of a reorganisation
on 12 June 2009.

(iii) Reserves

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the
Group are required to allocate certain portion (not less than
10%), as determined by their Board of Directors, of their profit
after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the SRF) until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital.
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30. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep) 30.EX - EERRE®

(d)

Deficit (continued)

(i i i) Reserves (continued)

(iv)

(d) /& 4t =)
(iii) 1% & @)

Statutory reserve fund (continued)

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as issued capital.

Specific reserve — maintenance and production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required
to transfer an amount to specific reserve for the maintenance
and production funds and other related expenditures based on
coal production volume. The movement of specific reserve is as
follows:

AT s
FAEREATADIKR HEHBEBER
BREBEHEBERBEBEGFEE TR
AR EBEERFSFEESETERN A
B 317 A% 2 Bl BR A o

ERFEmE-#EREERS

RETERAERAE ASBARER
REE K- EXBABRAZHRGERHR
EHEREEESAREMBBARX
EEFHEEHOT :

RMB’000

AR T T

At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+tF—H—H 221,025

Provision for the year A B 108,312

Utilisation for the year F N B) A (93,513)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+HF+-_A=+—"8BxK

RZE—N\F—HA—H 235,824

Provision for the year A B 112,140

Utilisation for the year F AN E A (226,222)

At 31 December 2018 R—_E—NEFE+=_A=+—H 121,742

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.
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30.

(d)
(v)

(vi)

(e)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)
Deficit (continued)
Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the value of
directors and employee services in respect of share options
granted under a Pre-IPO share option scheme and a share option
scheme as set out in note 31.

Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account
and contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution comprise share premium, contributed surplus
and accumulated losses of approximately RMB104,112,000 in
total (2017: nil).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep)

(e) Capital management (continued)

(f)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
included net of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, as
disclosed in notes 25 and 28 respectively, and equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
perpetual subordinated convertible securities and deficit, as
disclosed in note 30.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any dividends to its ordinary shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on
12 June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option) whereby the grantees were
granted the rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
is 8,400,000 shares which were granted on 12 June 2009 with
the subscription price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from the Listing Date
and the options are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the option in cash.

31.

(a)
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The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () EXBRENGREGHDT
Number of Contractual
Date of Grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BRED
BB BREHE EExRHY AR HR
12 June 2009 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years
anniversary of the Listing Date, 40% on
the third anniversary of the Listing Date
RZZEZNF FTEBEE -BFR 104

FE_RFHH30%

T EBEE=ZRF 540%
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)
(ii)

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre-IPO

Share Options are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

B1.REBREELULROAERMN N
(a0
(@) BXLHEERERESE @

() BRDMEEAMEBRENKE RE
THTEEMT

BEEZE-_Z-NF+-A=+t—-HBLHF
E

Outstanding number of options
HATEEREH R
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2018 the year 2018
R-B-N\E R-B-N\E
-A-H tZA=t-8
RRAER Rii B8 TRH TEE W & 8 EREN W & 8
HKD ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
B T T T
Employees
E&
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 7,600 (2,800) 4,800
B “EENENATZA _évﬂﬁ/\ﬂﬂ' HZE
-NERAT—A

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BZ_F-—tH+-A=t+—-HLHF
E

QOutstanding number of options

RMATEERES R
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2017 the year 2017
-t RZE—+F
—A—-H TZR=+-H
SNVl REAH {1 5 e igkeg: ERER igkeg:i
HKD '000 '000 '000
AT T T T
Employees
]
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 9,600 (2,000) 7,600
B “ETNERATZIE ZEEAERATCZRE

“E-NERNAT-AB
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31.

(a)
(i)

(b)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of Pre-IPO
Share Options are as follows: (continued)

During the year, no share option (2017: Nil) under the Pre-IPO
Share Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for every one existing
share held by the shareholders whose names are on the register
of members on 10 October 2011, the exercise price of the Pre-
IPO Share Options was adjusted from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26,
and the number of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at
10 October 2011 was adjusted from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000
thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2018
had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.5 years
(2017:1.5 years). The weighted average exercise price for the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December 2018 was
HKD1.26 (2017: HKD1.26) per share.

Share option scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme) pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written
resolutions passed on 12 June 2009.
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(b)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS BILERESAEUROGCAERNS
(CONTINUED) :#\(ZE)
Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) B8 AR R =t &l
The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise TERBEERESEIRARRENM
of all options which then has been granted and have yet to be HiBREAZZHIHELE B RART
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share R EEREEMAEETNES
option schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of the BOBE TENSKREILEBRT
shareholder’s approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares EHTHRBETHEBTRMAHD
in issue from time to time. Unless approved by the shareholders, 30% c BRIELCRR R B - BB B E
no option may be granted to any person which if exercised in THEEEZERAEAZAIREHBERES R
full would result in the total number of shares issued and to be (BEZAB)MI2BAABBEE RMZ AL
issued upon exercise of the share options already granted or to FHEZBE TREREZBERE(BRERE T
be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled, and F-EFHEERTEBERE) R €8
outstanding share option) in the 12-month period up to and HEBTEBETETORMAEHER
including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total EHBREHBEREERZEETRMA
number of shares in issue as at the date of such new grant. 1% BINEmRaZATRLDERE-
An option under the Share Option Scheme may be exercised in BREGFEETOHEREZEANRERER
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any BHAEGRREARAAEETEETHH
time during a period as determined by the board of directors of MABERTE mMEBRPBEBEREA
the Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the Hi 5 NS BI04 -
date of the grant.
The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) REBKREBEHEBT

Number Contractual
Date of grant of options Vesting conditions life of options

BRED
g =l BREHE 5B R4 B # 5 BR
17 January 2012 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of the 10 years
first and second anniversary of the grant date
R —ZF RELBBAR4I0% REHBHESE K 104
—A++tH FE_IBFHR30%
30 April 2015 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of the 10 years
first and second anniversary of the grant date
—ET—RfF RELBBAR40%  RELHBHESE K 104
MmA=+H F_RFEHAHE30%
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(b)
(if)

(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options scheme are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BNLEESEEURN/ERDN

R (a0

(b) BRES B

(i) B8 AR 4B S 81 B R 004 F 4917 5 B
mF :

BEZE_ZFT-NE+-A=+—-HLHF

E
Outstanding number of options
HATEEREHE
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2018 the year 2018
R-B-N\F R-B-N\F
-B-H +ZB=t-H
RRAEH Riti B # TS g W & & FERENH W& 8
HKD '000 '000 '000
B T T T
Executive director
BHES
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 20,000 - 20,000
REK & “E-1FMA=Z+A —ET-AEMAZ=THEZE
“Z_h¥MAZTAR
Mr. Liu Jinghong* 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 2,000 (2,000) -
R “T-1FWA=tH ZZE-REWAZ=tHE
“E-h¥MAZTAR
Independent non-
executive directors
BUEHTES
Mr. Huang Guosheng 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - 500
BEBEE “Z-REMAZ+A —E-REMAZTHZE
“E_AfMAZTAR
Mr. Lau Sikyuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - 500
AGREE “Z-nFE@PA=Z+E ZE-REPEAZ+HE
“E-EFMAZTNA
Mr. Xing Zhiying* 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 (500) -
MEREE “E-1fMA=+A —ET-AEMAZ=THEZE
“Z_h¥MAZTAR
23,500 (2,500) 21,000
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

MNEREBEEURNBERNN

(CONTINUED) %k(%)
(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) B8 AR R =t &l
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) BRE WA RMEFHITHEE
options scheme are as follows: (continued) R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) BE-ZE-—-NFE+=-A=+—HLHF
E (&)
Outstanding number of options
HATERRENR
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2018 the year 2018
RZB-NF R=B-NF
-A-H +ZA=1+-H
RRARR BB M TS TRE W & & EREH 1 & &
HKD '000 '000 '000
B T T T
Employees
B8
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 5,188 (1,112) 4,076
B “E--%-B+t+tHB -ET--F-At+tAZ
“E--%-RTAH
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 103,000 (27,000 76,000
ez “E-REMAZ+HE —Z-REEMAZ-tHZ
“E_RFMAZTAA
. lostss (8112 ! 80,076
131,688 (30,612) 101,076

* Mr Liu Jinghong and Mr Xing Zhiying resigned as executive directors
and independent non-executive director of the Company on 4 May
2018 and 21 September 2018 respectively.

# Mr. Fung Wai Shing and Mr. Liu Jinghong were appointed as executive #
directors of the Company on 12 April 2017.
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
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R (a0

(b) BRES B

options scheme are as follows (continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2017

R (4E)

BNLEESEEURN/ERDN

(i) BREASINEE RMEFYITEE

BE_F-tH5+-A=1+—-—HBLHF

E
Outstanding number of options
AATRERESNE
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January  appointment during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2017 of directors the year 2017
RoB-t% R-2-tF
-A-B  EEHf tTZA=t-H
KRARR BB e H Tk & 5 %8 EREN 5 88
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
BT T Th Th Th
Executive director
nrES
Mr. Fung Wai Shing* 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 - 20,000 - 20,000
BEALE “E-RfMA=+H ZE-RfMA=1HE
ZRCREMACTAR
Mr. Liu Jinghong? 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 - 2,000 - 2,000
SR “E-RfMAZtR —E-nfMA=fHE
ZE_REMAZTAR
Independent non-executive
directors
BukynEs
Mr. Huang Guosheng 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
aEBTE “T-Rf@A=+H Z-E-RFMAZ1HE
ZE_REMAZTAH
Mr. Lau Sikyuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
IE Db “E-RENA=+A ZE-REMA=tAHZ
“ECRFMAZTAR
Mr. Xing Zhiying 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
BE&%E “T-REMA=+H Z-E-REMAZ1HE
ZR-REMAZTAR
1,500 22,000 - 23,500

216



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R

31.

(b)
(if)
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS BMILREZEEURGAERNAS
(CONTINUED) /#\(%)
Share option scheme (continued) (b) B8 AR R =t &l
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) B EA S WHE R MEFHTEE
options scheme are as follows (continued): T (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) BE_-_Z—t&E+=-A=t+—HIL#E
E (&)
Outstanding number of options
AT RS A
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January  appointment during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2017 of directors the year 2017
RZE-t£ RZF-t%
-R-A EZHfE TZA=Z+-H
KENER it A & e 16t & B & e A ERKH ka3
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
BT T T T T
Employees
k&
In aggregate 17) anuary 2012 17) anuary 2012 t0 16 January 2022 1.50 8,152 - (2,964) 5,188
&% ZF-Z4-BttR ZF-Z5-fTtHEZ
“E-Cf- ﬂ+AH
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 125,000 (22,000) = 103,000
8% ZE-REMA=TH ‘“*ﬁﬁ@ﬂfﬂ'ﬁi
ZE-REMAZTAR
LB @b @%d) 108188
134,652 - (2,964) 131,688
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31.

(b)
(if)

32.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Share option scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options scheme are as follows (continued):

At 31 December 2018, the number of the exercisable shares
under the Share Option Scheme was approximately 101,076,000
(2017: 131,688,000) shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option under
the Share Option Scheme were granted and exercised (2017: Nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.2 years (31
December 2017: 7.2 years). The weighted average exercise price
for the outstanding share options as at 31 December 2018 was
HKDQ.53 (2017: HKDO0.52) per share.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks and other borrowing creditors with
respect to general banking facilities and borrowings granted
to certain subsidiaries of the Company of approximately
RMB2,819,740,000 (2017: RMB2,577,490,000). In addition, as
at 31 December 2018, the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Company have executed corporate guarantee to certain banks
and an other borrowing creditor with respect to borrowings
granted to an associate of approximately RMB637,710,000
(2017: RMB656,832,000) as disclosed in note 36(c).

The Group has not recognised any financial liability (2017: nil) in
respect of the guarantees granted for general banking facilities
of the associate as the directors of the Company considered that
the amounts of financial guarantee liabilities are immaterial.
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33.

(a)

(b)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

BV.cREBEEREMIAZLQ

e

(a) €@ T EE3R

2018 2017
—E-NF| ZE—1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR® T
Financial assets cREE
At amortised cost KA E 468,658 =
Loans and receivables B3 &k EWFRIE
(including cash and cash equivalents), (BEReRREZFEY) - 893,215
Financial liabilities SEEE
At amortised cost HEEHK A= 7,659,106 9,906,868

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and currency
risk arises in the normal course of the Group's businesses. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and bills receivables and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. In view of the history of business dealings with the
customers and the sound collection history of the receivables
due from them, management believes that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable balance
due from the customers and other debtors. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade and bills
receivables and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there is any dispute with the debtors.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade and bills receivables individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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() FERRKRE®G

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H K&
BeEEERREERBENRE 5HKA
EEWREREREMBEKRIE - EEE
EERGEERR URFERLEEE
ERGFERR - AEBEHAEERE
B BEEERNETFPENTEE
HE-EREZFTFPNEHERL
85 K e W 1% B FE U BR IR A UOGR AL %
Rif EEERSANEHE R KRWKE R
BEFP RkEAMER A EKFKIESH
At EBEREERR - EEERIE
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33.

(b)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminue)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high credit
rating assigned by internal credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 99.8% (2017: 99%)
of the total trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2018.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk by customers as
at 31 December 2018 and 48.9% of the net trade and bills
receivables was due from the five largest trade customers within
the coal business segment as at 31 December 2017. These five
largest trade customers include a state-owned enterprise in the
PRC and customers with good past credit records with the Group.
In addition, 61.5% (2017: 66.4%) of the net prepayments and
other receivables was due from the five largest other debtors as
at 31 December 2018. These five largest other debtors include
state-owned enterprise in the PRC and companies with good
past credit records with the Group. Other than these, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

Financial asset with credit risk exposure
Trade and bills receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for trade and bills receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significant different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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33.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Financial asset with credit risk exposure (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
Exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2018:

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

B.LMEBREEREMIAEZA
RE@

(b) MERBEEEEREE®

(i) EERRKERETG®
AREERRBRNEBREE®@®
JE W B 5 0 TH K FE I 5 (%)

TERUAMAEEEKESNER
EEEREROEERRRENARH
ERABRE-_T—\F+-A=+—8
BE R

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

FHMEER KREAKE EBEERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT

Type 1: Customers within the Group HEEI 1 7B B CE RS

expected that they will pay on time: HAREEEF :

Neither past due nor impaired oK %0 B 7R ok {E R B 0% 147,183 -
Past due for less than 60 days #H D R 60K 8.60% 120,123 10,329
Past due for more than 60 days B HI60 K LA E{B AR 180K
but less than 180 days 9.96% 2,260 225
Past due for more than 180 days BWHISOR A L BLR —F
but less than one year 11.29% 61,683 6,967
..331.249 0 17,521
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: BE2 : EHEEF
Past due more than one year A —F M E 100.00% 236,213 236,213

567,462 253,734

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rate and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information
about specific debtor is updated.
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33.

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR BV.cMEBEEREMIAZA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) ARE®
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) M EEKBEERERBEK®
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) (i) =E R RRAEF @
Financial asset with credit risk exposure (continued) HEEREEERRNEHEE®
Trade and bills receivables (continued) JE W B 5 5B K JE W E B
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade and RERNREKRESIREBERERERD
bills receivables during the year is as follows: BEBEGREZSHNOT :
RMB’000
AR T T
At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 RZE—+tE+_A=1+—"BREE
SR ERIFE3I9E T 251,347
Impact on initial application of IFRS 9 (note 2) A ENBE RSB RELENEORD
T E(ME2) 6,152
As at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RZZE-—NF-—A—BRBERIB
HEEAEIFR T 257,499
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 48,286
Reversal during the year & A B o] (13,389)
Write-off 58 (41,056)
Exchange realignment BN & 2,394
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+=_A=+—H 253,734
Other receivables H & Y k18
The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL of AEEREMEYRKRERESZN12E
other receivables. For those balances expected to have significant AREHEEEENCETEEEEE -
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group apply REHENTRERAREERBREZE
lifetime ECL based on aging for classes with different credit risk BMOESRNS  2EERE T A =
characteristics and exposures. ERBEBREBRON S EAREER

EHIEMEERE-
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33.

(b)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, included in prepayments and
other receivables of the Group are amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of aggregate gross carrying amounts
of RMB322,703,000. Loss allowance of RMB322,703,000 was
provided for these amounts as at 31 December 2018 since the
management of the Group considers the probability of default
is significant in view that these amounts have been overdue for
a long period of time.

For the remaining other non-trade receivables of the Group,
the management of the Group considers the probability of
default by assessing the counterparties’ financial background
and creditability and accordingly, loss allowance of approximately
RMB41,895,000 was provided as at 31 December 2018.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other
receivables during the year is as follows:

33.

(b)

()

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

tREREEREMIAZA
RE@

BREAREEEERBEE®

EE R B &AM

H fib & U 5K IE ()
R—ZZE—NE+=-_RAR=+—H8 &%&
B TE T RIE R HE M E W RIE R IERE
WIEERREEREBEGTAARKE
322,703,000 T W) K IE - E X B X 1E
EAH—BEREH A5EEEER
EENAEEER MR- N\F
T A=+ BERZEREELER
B & A R # 322,703,000 7T °

ERAEEBR THMIEE 5 E WA -
AEBEEESBFMEFAINYHK
EEREEEZERENN TN IR
—E-NFt+_A=+—HELEE
BB 4 AR # 41,895,000 7T °

R4 P9 Bt H i e UK IR RO B 18 B MR PR
ZEHmT

RMB’'000
AR®ETF T
As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 and RZE—+tF+-_A=+—HBHREE
1 January 2018 under IFRS9 SHEAEIVRTER-_ZT—N\F
—A—BREBEMEHRELENFIRT 361,605
Impairment loss recognised EwRREEE 2,902
Reversal during the year FARED (106)
Exchange realignment fE X B 197
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+_A=+—H 364,598
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33.

(b)

(i)

(if)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminue)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
have performed impairment assessment, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly,
any loss allowance for financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Group is measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL. No loss
allowance was recognised as at 31 December 2018 in accordance
with IFRS 9 as the amount is immaterial. Details of the financial
guarantee contract are set out in note 32.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, but the borrowings are subject to
approval by the parent company’s management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with any lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the reporting date of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

33

(b)

(i)

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

ELREREEREBMIAEZA
RE@

BREAREEEERBEE®

ABELERE®

TRIFAKEEZFETESRAEAER
BEAZHBKANIHE FHEZH
BOREVNANMBAAECRE(BRER
BRANKXFEZMNEMNR HWAF
B AERBERERZIAMEXFE)AR
AEEAREANRKRZZEBHFE -

As at 31 December 2018
R=—FBB-NF+=-HA=+—H
More than
Within one year and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FAH —F#% XFHRHEE
BREXR BEFR nE R iR E B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TrR
Current B HA
Trade payables ENE 5 1A 562,454 - 562,454 562,454
Other payables H fth /& < 5K 18 2,556,466 - 2,556,466 2,556,105
Borrowings BE 2,158,863 - 2,158,863 1,987,770
5271783 - 5277783 5106329
Non-current Ik BD H#A
Other payables H fth fE {2 IE - 51,505 51,505 47,155
Borrowings B - 2,800,813 2,800,813 2,505,622
- 2,852,318 2,852,318 2,552,777
5,277,783 2,852,318 8,130,101 7,659,106
Maximum exposure of VBERGEORK
financial guarantee [, B (Bff 3% 32)
contracts (note 32) 360,526 277,184 637,710 637,710
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminue)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b)

(if)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
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(i) RBELEAR®

As at 31 December 2017

R-ZFB—+tF+-A=+—H

B.cREBEEREMIAZLQ

(b) ¥ERBEEEERBEm®

More than
Within  one year and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—F A% —F& XFHRHEL
BER BRFNRN 2 B FREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®FTRT AR®Tx
Current BN HA
Trade payables ETE 5 FIA 949,950 - 949,950 949,950
Other payables H b & 1~ SR IB 2,736,671 - 2,736,671 2,736,430
Borrowings BE 6,045,885 - 6,045,885 6,045,885
2732506z 2732506 9,732,265
Non-current FE BN AR
Other payables H b & 1~ SR I8 — 194,268 194,268 173,603
9,732,506 194,268 9,926,774 9,905,868
Maximum exposure of MBEREHORRKX
financial guarantee [, B (Bff 7% 32)
contracts (note 32) 656,832 - 656,832 656,832
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33.

(b)

(if)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of borrowings
and financial guarantee with respect to borrowings granted to
an associate with a repayment on cross demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in the above table.

The directors of the Company do not consider that it is probable
that the bank and other borrowing creditors will exercise their
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such borrowings of the Group and
an associate will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR B.caEAREEREMIAZA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) AE@®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEAKBEEEERBX®
(continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

(i) RBELEAR®

Maturity analysis - Borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings granted to
an associate subject to a repayment on cross
default clause based on scheduled repayments
FHBONM-BRBTEHERZTRINENKAREE
RERNEERETF BBRELARABECUBERERN

More than
Within one year and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—F R —F#% XKFHEHRL

RIRER BREFR REARE IR H B

RMB’'000 RMB‘'000 RMB’'000 RMB‘'000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®FTRT AR®Tx
At 31 December 2018 R=ZT-—N\EF

t=—A=t+-8

Borrowings BE 888,536 267,460 1,155,996 1,108,870

Maximum exposure of T ERE L
financial guarantee SN E

contracts 15,912 349,503 365,415 335,000

At 31 December 2017 R-ZBE—+tH
+t=A=+-8

Borrowings f& & 4,591,956 1,603,234 6,195,190 6,045,885

Maximum exposure of TEERE LD
financial guarantee = KR B

contracts 320,655 382,649 703,304 656,832

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities R—_ZE—+tF+=A=+—8"

of approximately RMB8,852,285,000. As disclosed in note 28, AREBZZRHAEABFEANDARE

certain borrowings amounted to RMB2,805,712,000 have yet 8,852,285,000 7T ° % 40 Ff ¥ 28 BT # 55 -

been renewed or rolled over upon maturity and carried interest A K #¥2,805,712,0007T 2 # T & & &

at 4.75% to 6.83% per annum. The liquidity of the Group is HEEAEENRF LIK47T5% 2

dependent on its ability to implement the measures to improve 6.83% M FMEFBE -KXEEBZEER

the Groups immediate liquidity and cash flows as described in B 14 KRB B 1T S A BT SR 2 BT A 2 $E B

note 2. HNEAEBRINKESRBUERESR

EMREN °
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR BV.cAEABEEREMIAZA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) ARE@w
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) M EREBEEBRERBEK®
(continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (iii) F = [ b
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from pledged and AEBZMNERBRETERBEERR
restricted deposits, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings. XREIFXR BehB2FEWNRE
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the E-RAEMNEXREEMNEBAZE
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate EFAEESRAZBReRENER
risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored BEAAENERR EBEEEZ
by management is set out as below: AEBMXPFREAI AT :
Interest rate profile MEHR
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s TERFIWNAEBEBEFERKRE R
net borrowings at the reporting date: Z R EBER
2018 2017
“E-N\% —E—t%
Effective Effective
interest rate Carrying interest rate Carrying
per annum value per annum value
ERFRE REE EREMNE FEE
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBT R N
Fixed rate borrowings BEFEEER:
Borrowings B8 475%7.28% 4,167,908 | 435%-7.20% 2845479
Variable rate net borrowings: TRAEEETFH:
Borrowings R 4.35%-5.70% 325,484 4.75%-7.28% 3,200,406
Pledged and restricted deposits BEMARZRE TR 0.00%-0.35% (43) 0.00%-0.35% (294)
Cash and cash equivalents BeERBEELZEEBY 0.00%-0.35% (115,680) 0.00%-0.35% (80,349)
______ A5 Dl
Total net borrowings BESTHE 4,377,669 5,965,242
Net fixed rate borrowings ENEEEFHEMN
as a percentage of total BEEFENEI R
net borrowings 95.2% 47.7%
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33.

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminue)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

(iv)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in the interest rates of variable rate net borrowings prevailing at
the reporting date, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB2,098,000 (2017: RMB31,198,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit after tax and consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied to re-measure those
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the reporting
date. The impact on the Group’s profit after tax and consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2017.

Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through
the Peoples Bank of China or other institutions authorised to buy
and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand. The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily through purchases giving rise to cash balances that
are denominated in USD, while all the other operations of the
Group are mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in exchange rate
affect the RMB value of purchase costs of commodities that are
denominated in foreign currencies.
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B.cREBEEREMIAZLQ

AE@®

(b) ERMEEBEEZERBE®

(iii) & = =@ B )

WRRE DT
BRAMEHEMEBEHRIFITE RFE
HASAMEEEFENFEEE A/
THRIC0EES HiteB8xEE-T
—NF+_A=Z=+—HBLEFEZAEXE
ERHEEMNERTBEARD E N
# AR ¥2098,000(=ZF—EF: A
R ¥ 31,198,000 7T) °

R BEREDTMIEARE 2K HEE
MEhkGaRaEL2KZES &4
BRMNEEHRHEADKELE I
EAREFFERAKERTE LN R
TREASEAERSREN XAR
MEBFRTESR T E - WAKEEK
RGN REEESEZTER AR
XEPHMNETENFELTEEL
fBat- o MIOENE T -t F MM
[l By E AT o

S HE R B
ARBITAIBEHABLBIE - FTEY
RARBOINER 5 BEBEBHEA
RRTKEMERENEEINENK
BET - IEXSZMERANERS P
BARBRITHAHROER ZFEXT
EHERKBEE - AKEMNIIERRE
EREBEELEUNEZTIENR S
BoMAKBEREEMEHBETENA
REBETRZ EXZHTEUINE
AEEMRBRANARKEE-
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33.

(b)

(iv)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

BV.cREBEEREMIAZLQ

RE@®

(b) MERBEEEEREE®

(iv) Zh ¥ & B )

TRESAESENBREAEARREE
HEE MENAEIZEBNIGE
EBUNINEBFE EMELENE
%R e

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —FT—tF

Denominated [ Denominated

in USD in USD

UERFE| NAETFHE

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR TR ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEBY 471 440

(c)

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the foreign exchange risk
associated with the Groups financial assets and liabilities will
not be significant.

Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At each reporting date, capital commitments outstanding not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZEEBEFRA A
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34. 8 K&K IE

RE®en LAREAME®REE
HE B RBTERREDT

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZE2—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR | ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE MK 29,319 114,228
35. OPERATING LEASES 5. 8&EHE

(a) Leases as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

() EREBAZHEE

TARMHECEHERTHRRKEHR
ENRERET :

2018 2017

—E-N\E| Z=2—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T | AREFT T

Within 1 year —F R 4,474 967
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FEHBRFRN 4,608 =
9,082 967

The Group’s leases properties and vessels under non-cancellable
operating lease agreement. The lease terms are between four
months to two years (2017: one month and three years). The
agreements do not include an extension option.

As at 31 December 2018, future minimum lease payments
expected to be received by the Group in relation to non-cancellable
sub-leases of operating leases amounted to RMB623,000 (2017:
RMB240,000).
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(b)

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

OPERATING LEASES (conminuen) . XEHE
Leases as lessor (b) FREEAZHEHE
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non- TAMELEHEE T RRKEMR
cancellable operating leases are as follows: ERKNRERAT :
2018 2017
—E-NE| ZE—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Within 1 year —F RN 2,349 10,523
The Group leases vessels under various agreements which typically AEBERBVLPHEABATRHEME +
run for an initial period of two to sixteen days (2017: one to six ANA(ZCE—+F:—Z2NE@ANET
months). The agreements do not include an extension option. MEHEEM ZEHELTEEL
HRRiZ 4 o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.FAE LT X5

The Group has conducted certain transactions with related parties
of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and his close family members; (ii) Mr. Xu Da, an
executive director and his close family members; (iii) Qinhuangdao
Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a company
controlled by Mr. Xu; (iv) Yuanfan Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yuanfan
Technology”), a company controlled by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa
Industry; (v) Tongmei Qinfa, an associate; (vi) Bo Hai Investment
Limited (“Bo Hai Investment”), a company controlled by Mr.
Xu; and (vii) Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conminuep)

(a)

(b)

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the above

related parties for the year are as follows:

Recurring transactions

(a)

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZEEBEFRA A
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36. ERFTRZ

AEBFRELRBETNRFHE

LI

REMEXRS

Transaction amount
for the years ended
31 December

Payable outstanding
as at 31 December

BEt-A=t+—-HL R+ZA=+—-H=Z2
FEZRZTH RXEENNE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E| ZE—+tF| ZE-NF| ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR | ARBTT| ARBFTR | ARBTT
Sales of coal to HEKRT
- Tongmei Qinfa - A& % 29,593 111,203 1,610 1,610
Chartering HET
- Tongmei Qinfa — [ B & 2% 8,399 = 1,200 =
Purchase of coal from RKEHERKB
- Tongmei Qinfa -FAK R - 27,560 318,797 545,190
Guarantees provided by related parties (b) EEFRMEVER
2018 2017
—E-NF| ZE—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR T
Guarantees of borrowings provided by BEENREERTBERMEH
Mr. Xu and his close family members EEER 7,264,040 7,467,190
Guarantees of borrowings provided by REXTEREEZHABRMAERN
Mr. Xu Da and his close family members EBEEER 5,992,740 7,245,490
Guarantees of borrowings provided by ERTERENEEER
Qinfa Industry 2,756,250 2,772,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by EMBERERENESEER
Yuanfan Technology 152,000 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by HERERENBEER
Bo Hai Investment 2,035,000 3,010,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by ERERIEENEEER
Fortune Pearl 2,035,000 3,010,000
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(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SR MIEE
31 December 2018 —Z—/\G+-A=+—8H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conrinuep)

Guarantees provided to a related party

36. ERRZ
(c) BRHF—BBHEEFNWER

2018 2017
—E-NE| —_ZET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR| AR®TT
Guarantees given by the Group for AEEGRRABEZZESNEE
borrowings obtained by Tongmei Qinfa B HEAER 637,710 656,332

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding positions
with authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

d) BREEBALHE
AREEBALIREEEXEHEREER
g HEREHAKREEZSNENOR
BEEZAT(BREARAESR)-ARE

including the directors of the Company. Key management BEALZME0T :
personnel remuneration are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NFE| ZE2—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR| AR T T
Directors fee EEM2 4,924 4,501
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He EEREYREF 7,627 8,405
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes :E Kk #& 7| 5t 2 ftt 7% 431 201
Share-based payments AR A ER 2R - 425
12,982 13,532

235



N

China Qinfa Group Limited #EZZEEEHBR AR
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\4FF#H
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SRR MEE
31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

37./AEE
(a) RIRFFFR
FREREERTEENFARR

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Outstanding litigations

(i) Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of (i)

bank borrowings

In 2015, a bank filed a lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court against the Group to demand immediate
repayment of the defaulted bank borrowings of approximately
RMB148,882,000 and interest charges of approximately
RMB328,000 respectively. The principal of approximately
RMB 148,882,000 and respective interest charges of approximately
RMB328,000 had already been recognised as borrowings and
accrued expenses included in other payables respectively in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015.

In 2016, another bank filed lawsuit in Shanxi Province High Peoples
Court against the Group to demand immediate repayment of the
defaulted bank borrowings of approximately RMB492,444,000 and
interest charges of approximately RMB 13,068,000 respectively.
The principal of approximately RMB492,444,000 and respective
interest charges of approximately RMB13,068,000 had already
been recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses included
in other payables respectively in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the judgements, several bank accounts of the Group
were frozen for one year from the date of the judgements and
the coal mining rights of the Group and two properties of the
Group’s related companies were frozen for three years from the
date of judgement. In addition, the Group was ordered to make
immediate repayment of the aforesaid balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conrinuep)

(a)
(i)

(if)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of
bank borrowings (continued)

In 2017, two banks filed lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court against the Group to demand immediate repayment
of the bank borrowings of approximately RMB210,771,000 and
interest charges of approximately RMB11,110,000 respectively.
The principal of approximately RMB210,771,000 and respective
interest charges of approximately RMB11,110,000 had already
been recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses included
in other payables respectively in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017. Pursuant to the
judgement by Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration dated
28 June 2018, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of bank borrowings of approximately RMB62,970,000
and interest charges of approximately RMB2,700,000 due to
one of the banks. Pursuant to the judgment issued by Zhuhai
Principal Intermediate People’s Court dated 7 July 2018, the
other bank withdrawn the lawsuit. Accordingly, such litigation
claim was released.

Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the remaining litigation claims are still in
progress. The Group is still in the progress of negotiating with
the four banks to renew its loans outstanding.

Litigation claim relating to the performance of the
contract execution between Beijing Zhongkuang
Wantong Technology Development Company Limited
(Beijing Zhongkuang) and Huameiao Energy and
Hongyuan Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was a litigation
claim initiated by Beijing Zhongkuang against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue payable in relation to
production of coal and maintenance of coal mining system with
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB 10,547,000 and late
penalty charges of approximately RMB2,084,000. The amount
of approximately RMB10,547,000 had already been recognised
as payable to this supplier included in other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017.
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37.H A B B
(a) KRRFR@
(i) FEALZPEEEREEREARA

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conminuep)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)

(ii) Litigation claim relating to the performance of the

contract execution between Beijing Zhongkuang
Wantong Technology Development Company Limited
(Beijing Zhongkuang) and Huameiao Energy and
Hongyuan Coal (continued)

Pursuant to the judgement of the Shenchi County Peoples Court
dated 20 December 2017, the Group was ordered to make
immediate repayment of payable to Beijing Zhongkuang, with
additional late penalty charges of approximately RMB2,084,000.
As a result of the foregoing, the Group further recognised
the late penalty charges of approximately RMB2,084,000 in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017. Subsequently, the Group appealed to Shanxi
Provincial High Peoples Court. Pursuant to the judgement of the
Shanxi Provincial Xinzhou Municipal Intermediate People’s Court
date 16 April 2018, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of payable to Beijing Zhongkuang, with additional
corresponding legal costs. As a result of the foregoing, the group
further recognised the corresponding legal costs of approximately
RMB149,000 in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no further
provision for this litigation claim was required to be made in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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37.

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conrinuep)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iii) Litigation claims relating to repayment to non-

(iv)

controlling shareholders

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were litigation
claims initiated by the non-controlling shareholders of Xingtao
Coal mine, Fengxi Coal mine and Chongsheng Coal mine against
the Group to demand immediate repayment of funds provided to
the Group in 2011 with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB134,414,000 before the acquisition of these coal mines
by the Group. The amount of approximately RMB134,414,000
had already been recognised and offset with the amounts due
from respective non-controlling shareholders in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018. The
directors of the Company are in the opinion that the Group has
a valid ground to defend for the charge. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statement are authorised for issue, these
litigation claims are still in progress.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the provision for the above litigation is sufficient
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018.

Litigation claims relating to the performance of the
contract execution between Yu Lin Zhong Kuang Wan
Tong Construction Limited Company (“Yu Lin Zhong
Kuang”) and Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a litigation
claim initiated by Yu Lin Zhong Kuang against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue payable in relation
to construction of coal mining infrastructure. The amount of
approximately RMB101,323,000 had already been recognised
as payable to this supplier included in other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016.
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37.H A B B
(a) KRRFR@
(ivy EEEmMPEEEEZEZEGR A28

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conminuep)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iv) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the

contract execution between Yu Lin Zhong Kuang
Wan Tong Construction Limited Company (“Yu Lin
Zhong Kuang”) and Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal

(continued)

Pursuant to the judgement issued by Shanxi Provincial Xinzhou
City Intermediate People’s Court dated 9 January 2017, the
Group was ordered to make immediate repayment of payable
of approximately RMB 130,769,000, which including the aforesaid
payable to this supplier of approximately RMB101,323,000 and
late penalty charges of approximately RMB16,345,000 and
interest of approximately RMB13,101,000. As a result of the
foregoing, the Group further recognised the late penalty charges
of approximately RMB 16,345,000 and interest of approximately
RMB13,101,000 in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

On 22 February 2017, the Group appealed to Shanxi Provincial
High People’s Court. Pursuant to the judgement dated 21 July
2017, Shanxi Provincial High People’s Court concluded that in
the absence of reliable evidence on the valuation of construction
work performed by the plaintiff, the original judgement was
overturned and a retrial was ordered. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, the
retrial has yet been arranged. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, no further provision for these litigation claims was
required to be made in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018.
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37.

(a)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuep)
Outstanding litigations (continued)

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31 December 2018,
the Group was not involved in any other material litigation or
arbitration. As far as the Group was aware, the Group had no
other material litigation or claim which was pending or threatened
against the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the Group was the
defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to
certain litigations arising from the ordinary course of business.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or
other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained at present, but the
directors of the Company believe that any possible legal liability
which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have any
material impact on the financial position of the Group.

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of each reporting period, the Group has issued
the guarantees to certain banks and an other borrowing creditor
in respect of borrowings made by Tongmei Qinfa, an associate
of the Group. Under the guarantee, the Group that is a party
to the guarantee are jointly and severally liable for any of the
borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa from those banks and an other
borrowing creditor.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December 2018 under
the guarantees issued is a portion of the outstanding amount of
the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa amounting to approximately
RMB637,710,000 (2017: RMB656,832,000).

Borrowing default clause

The Settlement Agreement entered into between the Group and
an asset management company contained a default clause which
the Group will be required to repay the outstanding balance of
the original borrowings in the event of default. Particulars of the
Settlement Agreement are disclosed in noted 28.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
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38. K D B W B AR R R

EBARARERNFBMRAEXNE

Company at the end of the year is as follows: BT
2018 2017
—E-_N\NE| —D=2—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR| ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZI&E 316,128 =
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H {th & W 3R IR 67 o7
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG @ 144,971 -
Cash and cash equivalents B RBESEEY 380 431
145,418 488
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables E b fE {5 3R I8 (4,388) (4,828)
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BB FHE 14,030 (4340)
Net assets/(liabilities) EE/(BE)FE 457,158 (4,340)
Capital and reserves IR 2 XK f#
Share capital % 7 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible KA R A A AR 3B &
securities 156,931 156,931
Surplus/(deficit) B (E4) 89,003 (372,495)
Capital surplus/(deficiency) BB (ER) 457,158 (4,340)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of
China Qinfa Group Limited on 21 March 2019.

Xu Da
Director

EF

242

R—ZZE-—HhE=ZA-_+—HBEFRZE
REBABAERANESTSH ARKET

%o

Bai Tao

H &

Director

EF



China Qinfa Group Limited R &RZEEEHFR A A
Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF R
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39
COMPANY

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components

VNN RRE

A w) fE B 4z &0 R F A KR FRE

of equity between the beginning and the end of the year are FERFEBIHNMT
set out below:
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based Total
Share Share convertible ~ Contributed Exchange compensation  Accumulated equity/
capital premium securities surplus# reserve reserve losses (deficit)
AR NEARHER B/
BA  ROEE TEREZ QARH+ ENRE MRk 2itBR (B4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Note 30(b)  Note 30 (d)(l) Note 30(c) Note 30 (d)(iv)
B &E30(0)  HE30(d)i) B & 30(0) 3 30()(iv)
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE-t5-F—-H 211,224 344,186* 156,931 658,719* (31,832)* 25,090%  (1,391,720)* (27,402)
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - 20,013 20,013
Other comprehensive income EfzERA
Foreign currency translation NEBREZE
differences - - - - 1,825 - - 1,825
Total comprehensive income ETLON L = - - - 1,825 - 20,013 21,838
Transactions with equity BEEBEAZRS
shareholders, recorded RERERIIR
directly in equity
Equity-settled share-based REREENRDAER
payments IIVEN - - - - - 1,224 - 1,204
Share options lapsed BRHzBRE - - - - - (2,013) 2,013 =
Total transactions with equity HERREALRSEE
shareholders - - - - - (789) 2,013 1,204
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-—tE+ZA=1+-8R
1 January 2018 “2-\f-f-H 211,224 344,186* 156,931 658,719* (30,007)* 24301*  (1,369,694)* (4,340)
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 463,277 463,217
Other comprehensive income EzERA
Foreign currency translation NEBEES
differences - - - - (1,779) - - (1,779)
Total comprehensive income 2ARNEE - - - - (1,779) - 463,277 461,498
Transactions with equity AEBREAZRS REH
shareholders, recorded EBIIE
directly in equity
Share options lapsed BRHMZERE - - - - - (7,624) 7,624 =
Total transactions with HERREALRIER
equity shareholders - - - - - (7,624) 7,624 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF¥+-A=1+—-18 211,224 344,186* 156,931 658,719* (31,786)* 16,677* (898,793)* 457,158

* These reserves accounts comprise the surplus of RMB89,003,000 (2017:
deficit of RMB372,495,000) in the statement of financial position of
the Company.

# Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the net asset value of Qinfa Investment Limited acquired pursuant to
the reorganisation and the nominal value of the share issued by the
Company in exchange.
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40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 0. B EHEREE
On 14 February 2019, the Group entered into a sales and RZZE-—NAF_A+HA AKEH
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose —E2BUE=FFTLUEEHZE AW
a vessel wholly owned by a subsidiary of the Company, at cash ERXRR—HNBARZEREN —
consideration of approximately USD3,993,000 (equivalent to e E M IR 4 A8 43,993,000 % T (8
approximately RMB27,393,000). BERH ARM27,393,0007T) °
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